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The Narrative of a Treadle Sewing Machine

I am a Butterfly sewing machine. Since our Yantian factory commenced operation in 1987, | have served in the sewing
workshop to work with Aunt Lin, one of my close workmates. Over the past two decades, | have produced a great number
of uniforms for our workers. | made my debut as a mechanical treadle sewing machine in a factory. Over the years, the
Company has grown from an early small workshop into a big enterprise with thousands of employees. Due to the relatively
low productivity of a mechanical treadle sewing machine, coupled with the dominance of electric sewing machines in 1990s,
| once thought to myself that | would be phased out one day. However, rather than feeling depressed, | have made my best
effort to have each piece of work completed perfectly in adherence to the mission of providing good services.

In 1993, | was upgraded by the Company into an electric sewing machine with an electric motor, such that | have been
able to work till now. Currently, my major role is to sew a company logo on each new uniform. With continuous technical
improvement as well as the careful maintenance by Aunt Lin, my performance is indeed not a bit less efficient than any
newly bought electric sewing machine. In early 2010 (one to two months before the Chinese New Year), the Company
encountered the most serious labour shortage due to a considerable number of workers going home for the Lunar New
Year. The management responded quickly to come up with various solutions to tackle the problem. All our supporting staff
across the factory were mobilized to help in production, while administrative personnel were sent to various places to assist
in the recruitment work for the Human Resources Department. Mr. Ho, the Chairman of our Company, even bought a sedan
as the prize of a lucky draw to attract new workers. With our concerted efforts, the Company eventually recruited over 2,000
workers in March 2010, the highest single-month recruitment record since the establishment of our group. I, as a traditional
sewing machine serving more than two decades, also set a new record in the number of uniforms produced in a single
month. In order to enable our new employees to start work in the shortest possible time and ensure a smooth production,
our people worked around the clock to proceed with supporting work and trainings of new employees. |, together with my
workmates in the sewing workshop, also worked hard to sew the company logo on our uniforms which in turn shortened
the time for our new employees to get prepared for work, thereby ensuring the timely delivery of products to our customers.

Karrie people are always persevering and emerging stronger in face of adversities. In adherence to our corporate motto of
“Proactive, Services, Commitment”, we are all keeping our efforts to make us more valuable and bring our potential into full
play, and have every confidence to realize our vision to “Vision Leads New Sky".
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2010

Announcement of 2009/10 results
19 July 2010

Last day to register for 2009/10
Final Dividends
27 August 2010

—E-EFEMBER

—EENE  -EEEEELNGAEEY
—E-FF+A+NH

—RRAE-BEERHKRE
K% BT AM
—F-TFNAZTLH

Annual General Meeting BRRBFRE
3 September 2010 —E-TFNA=H
2009/10 Final Dividend —EEANE -ZEEEXRPKRE
Payment Date KE B
20 September 2010 —E-EFAA=TH
Financial Year End B ELER
31 March 2010 —E—FEF=-AF=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL [N
As at
Bz
31 March 2010 30 June 2010
—E-FF —E—TF
=A=+—H NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) SETE (BIT) 80,000,000 80,000,000

Issued (HK$) B 217 (OB7T)

57,709,760 57,709,760
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Key Information for

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2010, the Company had 577,097,600
shares in issue of which approximately 44%® was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 877 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2010:

Shareholders IR 3E FEE ¥

RESBRKRD 205

HE-_ZT—ZTFNA=+H KARIHLZET
% 19577,097,600% - R A RFR = L5
44%0 - HERB » KAB AT ERS77
Heo REBRREMEFRAEERKRERHFR-F
—ZEFRNAZTHREN22HBEERERS &
PwEs TATRESHREBIEEELE -

Number of % of % of

registered number of Number of total issued

Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital

= bk HE BT

Bhl RERBE IR R EE % BEREE R 51 %

New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.11% 243,804,000 42.25%

Ho's family® N 3 0.34% 79,696,000 13.81%

Directors® B0 3 0.34% 2,382,000 0.41%

Individuals BEAKREE 700 79.82% 26,394,420 4.57%

Institutions, corporates and WRIREE -« %

nominees REERMREA 170 19.39% 224,821,180 38.96%

Total &t 877 100.00% 577,097,600 100.00%
Note: 3t

(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public,
excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited, Ho's
family and Directors of the Company.

) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

(3) Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

(1 N B K E R K (BkNew Sense Enterprises
Limited * (IR ERARTESAFRNHDEE
HN) RRATFERRNDEE -

2) ARFKKRBEEFERTEEEAISELL - JFRIT
EEAEALERMERZTAK -

B EERXR (RAEEEERMEALEIN) AR
AZEE-
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As at 30 June 2010

Shareholders

Shares of HK$0.1 each

R-ZE—-ZFXA=1H % R BSREE1ETRH
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
FrERGEE A8 LHEEEIH #qE (hEEESH
1-2,000 547 62.3% 92,872 0.0%
2,001 - 10,000 56 6.4% 366,939 0.1%
10,001 - 20,000 44 5.0% 689,515 0.1%
20,001 - 50,000 65 7.4% 2,418,797 0.4%
50,001 - 100,000 49 5.6% 3,688,688 0.7%
100,001 — 200,000 34 3.9% 4,618,275 0.8%
200,001 — 500,000 25 2.9% 8,021,307 1.4%
500,001 - 1,000,000 20 2.3% 14,618,400 2.5%
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 14 1.6% 18,407,240 3.2%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 8 0.9% 23,051,472 4.0%
Over 5,000,000A 15 1.7% 501,124,095 86.8%
877 100.0% 577,097,600 100.0%
MARKET CAPITALISATION &
As at 31 March 2010 BZ2-_E-ZF=HA=+—H
(Closing Price: HK$0.56) (W{E : 0.5687T)
HK$323,174,656 323,174,656/ 7T
As at 30 June 2010 BE-_Z—-ZHFxA=1+H
(Closing Price: HK$0.51) (Ye™{E : 0.518 7T)
HK$294,319,776 294,319,776/ 7T
Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in 2009/10
—EBEN, —EFEEZREEZERXRE
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
BE (#T) BEE (T
08 r 9 08
HJ q . i
06 | Il T-\ g, {ﬂ 1 06
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Key Information for Shareholders g 3R E & ¥}

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Branch

Share Registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437-6875

Fax:  (852) 2415-1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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2,0000%

iR 3R B %5

REFEFNENRE TRHZEE  BRENE

B BRI BRARES
BRI PR BPER DR
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ERXNBR183%
BAMELT7E1712-16F

T :E  (852) 2862-8628
{EH& : (852) 2529-6087
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Eh 1 (852) 2437-6875

fEH : (852) 2415-1608

B H : pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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JUL7A

NOV 118

FEB 2R

MAR 3H

MAY 58

AUG 8H

<2009 p

Establishment of a joint venture with TECO, engaged in OEM/ODM business for the processing,
manufacture and production of multifunction peripheral products, printers, scanners, facsimile machines
BERRKIEERAR TERENT  HWERFEZREBEER  HRIK - FiHss  EE#20EM/
ODMZT

14th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BITF TR [EEAREERRR]

Awarded the Cleaner Production Partnership logo by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Economic and Trade Commission of Guangdong Province

EREREZFERRECENEFIZEQHRAMRSE EREEKHFFE TR

Transfer the land use right of a plot of land with total site area of approximately 120 Chinese acres situated
at the Yixing Economic Development Zone, Jiangsu Province, the PRC to a third party at the consideration
of RMB20,160,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$22,880,000). In addition, the Group relinquishing the
land use right of the land, Jiangsu Yixing shall grant to the Group the land use right of another plot of
land with a site area of approximately 260 Chinese acres situated at the same zone.

ARE R AR20,160,0007T (FH5704922,880,000/% 7T) & — 1B AR EIEA) A 120M LA BT E
B FEFR I R e + E FARE o R — B4R AR TG A) /A260MAI A F 3 @ 1Y + e AR T e B L -
HreRHts —RUNFRN T HMERERTAEE -

42010 p

Held Strategic Planning Workshop to formulate a five-years strategic planning for the Group

RIINARBFE - BRREERKEF 2 KK

Yixing factory had commenced production, mainly for Automatic Teller Machine, manufacturing of parts &
moulds and assembly of server

HEBERQERRE  TEREEH  THHLE BAKRARSER

Awarded the Caring Company 2005/10 logo for five consecutive years by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

ERHEIRGHEREBESTF [FHHRRBE] 200510 255

Grant share options to subscribe for an aggregate of 30,200,000 ordinary shares at an exercise price of
HK$0.55 each to the eligible participants
A& AR AMCBEER A 2£30,200,0000 B2, 1TREERERNE0.557T

Awarded the “1st Manpower Developer” logo by the Employees Retraining Board, in which Karrie is the
only awardee in manufacturing sector among 80 awardees

EEEBIEIIE (ERB) M2 [ A (R 1st] 1155 - R » 7N 5] 1E0 I M 28 # 1 Hh M — 3 38 SR IF i S &
EEHRR]

“Karrie Management Retreat Camp 2010” for management team to form action plans to execute our
vision for five-years plan
REBBETZMNERBEEE®]2010 BEBRR I AKAFEIE 17852

15th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”
BRITETRAXR [RBREAREESK
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Share Price Movement from 2001 to 2010
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Financial Highlights Bf & &

Turnover percentage by Products

RERBINEXRFI IR

@ Metal and Plastic Business [
e BRBER
@ Electronics Manufacturing Services Business
BT EERTEH ¢
o
2010

2009 lI

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location

REMAELEINEXEFTS X

Japan

SN

Hong Kong

&)

® China

1

Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and China)

TN (FBEEAR - BBRFEH)

North America

1EEM

@ Western Europe

PaER

|

2010 2009 % Changes
—E-EF —ETNF A DL
HKS$ million B&ZET
Revenue WA 2,245 2,464 -9%
Gross profit EF 152 177 -14%
Operating profit £ 5 A 12 26 -54%
Profit for the year INF i A 9 20 -55%
Profit attributable to equity holders — #E53%5H A FE(G % 7 12 22 -45%
Total assets BERE 1,740 1,870 7%
Shareholders’ equity IR 741 741 -
In Million =1E-04
Number of shares R B 577 577 -
Per Share Data grRER
HK Cents JEN
Basic earnings HAHF 2.2 3.8 -42%
Diluted earnings BEg m A 2.2 3.8 -42%
Total cash dividends HIRP IR B 1 1.5 -33%
HK$ BT
Net asset value per share BIREEFE 1.3 1.3 -
Financial Ratios B FG L =R
Gross profit margin (%) EREF (%) 6.8 7.2 -6%
Net profit margin (%) EERAEA] (%) 0.4 0.8 -50%
Net current ratio FmENLL X 1.3 1.7 -24%
Net quick ratio FIRB) L K 1.0 1.3 -23%
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRITEEL R (%) -4 -5 -20%
Interest coverage R BORE L= 11 7 +57%
Dividend payout (%) IKEELLE (%) 45 39 +15%
Turnover to net bank borrowings BEHERIEITEBLL X N/A N/A N/A
Non-current assets to JEMBNE E R
total equity (%) BELE (%) 78 69 +13%
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Financial Highlights B ##1 2=

Definitions EH
i earnings Profit attributable to equity holders SRR AR A =R A ARG R N
per share Weighted average number of shares ! INHE T35 AR 21
Diluted earnings Profit attributable to equity holders R A AE R A
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares - R BUE N AR B
Net asset value Net assets SRAERE BEFE
per share Number of shares as at year end A FIERARE
Gross profit Gross profit ER
1009 S H (9 - 1009
margin (%) Turnover X & BIRER (%) EER X "
Net profit Profit attributable to equity holders A AR A
100% I 9
margin (%) Turnover X ° ABIRAEA (%) k% x 100%
Current assets (less short-term bank e B E (B HR
, borrowings) _ RITEE)
Net trat f R
et current ratio Current liabilities (less short-term bank B mahaE (RS H
borrowings) RITEERE)
Current assets (less inventories TEEE (REER
hort- k i o HASR/TE B
Net quick ratio and s .ort. .tgrm bank borrowings) . \ &E’ﬂfﬁ;ﬂf\a\%)
Current liabilities (less short-term bank mEBAE (e
borrowings) RITEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE
Net gearing (less cash and bank balances) SHARITIEE CRIE S REBITER)
ratio (%) Total equity bt (%) FEZS 4B (E

Earnings before interest expenses, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

Interest coverage
Interest expenses

Dividend
payout (%)

Dividend per share
Earnings per share

x 100%

Turnover to net Turnover

bank borrowings Bank borrowings

(less cash and bank balances)

Non-current

assets to total Non-current assets

equity (%) Total equity

N

ARRA Bt~ PR

. 78 % 2 58 A
*U/%\/Elétt%; ﬂ:_lj,%\i |_|u:||
- SRBE oo
/}L’E/p\klﬁ:f(/) iH&_ﬁ_ﬂ%J X
L3mm ES
FIRITEELL X RITEE
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JEMENE AR FRBEE
RERBELR(%) EmiRE
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KM ER
Our Vision

R B BEEMN Z A BETFRIAEH
To be a leading Integrated Electronics
Manufacturing Services partner

RPN ER
Our Mission
. PEBEERRGRIETRE R
Design for manufacturing '
o WM ALATEEE RMRSS )
Integrated world class manufacturing solution and services
o HEBILEEHY
Reengineering to excellence
o RIENRBEAIFEER
Environment & Enterprise Sustainability
o BHHPKAEIE
Cost effective management

o XBEBALEZERE

Total stakeholder satisfaction

EMHEE

Our Value

F BProactive :

REZE—F  AOEMERRE, BRAE
Heartfelt dedication in all details. Seeking break through and
innovation

R Services :

&

BEHNFEAIREABRIBRERMEE - RANETRE 2 E REENRS ,
Nothing is impossible. Operate with customer-oriented attitude and E}JP/OOC//V&'
remain fully devoted to provide comprehensive and excellent services

for both internal and external customers Hﬁ%%/ﬁcgg
A Commitment : St
E~FAGE - LFRETT d 0

We vow to create a good corporate image by honoring our promises
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Chairman’s Statement FERE

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to
present the annual report of Karrie International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
The Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products including
computer casings, office automation products,
video tape cassettes, moulds, plastic and metal
parts; and

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape drives,
laser printers, multi-function facsimile machines,
“point-of-sale” system and other computer
peripherals.

()] Business Review

Although the future is full of uncertainties and
obstacles, the global economy appears to be
recovering and the market consensus is that the
global economy can get back to the right track as
the business environment is becoming more stable.
As a result, the turnover during the second half year
is better than we expected and the financial results
of the second half year had turned from deficits to
profits.

Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2010
declined by 9% or HK$219,814,000 to
HK$2,240,764,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2009: HK$2,460,578,000) and the
profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company decreased by 43% or HK$9,584,000
to HK$12,497,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2009: HK$22,081,000).

- The turnover of the M&P Business for
the year ended 31 March 2010 was
HK$836,881,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2009: HK$1,256,928,000), which is
33% lower than that for the corresponding
period last year. The turnover of the M&P
Business represents 37% of the total
turnover. The decrease in the turnover was
due to the large decline in the shipment of
server casings by one of our major customers
by approximately 45%.

ﬁ&%m%ﬁ%%$A%%zﬂﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ
~m (2R REMBAR ([RE]) #iE—
%—%¢£H£+—E¢m$ﬁo

FEXRBRESE
SETIENRE

— iﬁﬁaa%ﬂ‘n*%i_&iﬁﬁﬂi&ﬁ
BER BEEMIING  BRAEEE
Mo BRE A ANER TEE: BB EE
"HE

- BIEEXRIER -HENMHEEWMTE
fhes  SETITEN - ZTMEBEK - [
RERG | REMERBEER -

(=) EBEE

BEMBKELTVER  TRETHE
Nz BEEIELEHBRE  mi5
ERARAKBEC A AEREH - Bt
Tﬁéifhﬂ’]’*%%ﬁi LRI IR -

B
f

E

E

7/
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2T ZTF=-_A=+—BLFE
BEETENR T K T7219,814,00058 7T 8%
9%%2,240,764,0008 Tt (= T & 1
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- Following the trend of the FY09/10 interim —  AXREEE ETTTEU%E’JﬁEP NEE
results, the shipment of new models of EPHIFARNES  TEFH
laser printers of one of the major clients XENED ?ii:i'jjll C FTAEF
for our laser printers continued to increase. BEERIEBEREBEE_ZT—ZF
Therefore, the turnover of the EMS Business A= By AEEREER
for the year ended 31 March 2010 rose by H FF T17%%1,403,883,000/8

17% to HK$1,403,883,000 (for the year T(BEZZEZTNAF=A=+—H
ended 31 March 2009: HK$1,203,650,000). 1F - 1,203,650,0005%%) °
Despite the recent financial turmoil, overall RIINECREBMNTE BHEARE
operational costs were lowered by approximately EXRAHBEREEAR BT %'Jﬁﬁiﬁ’j%

PR B A% T 5 K BB A SRR B &
BRELEBMAE T ,%ﬁzs,ooo,ooo,%n
FTAZ FESEMETF) o

HK$25,000,000 and a slight profit for the whole
year was recorded because of the stability of RMB
and the Group’s effective cost control measures, the
decrease in oil price and the reduction of manpower
and salaries.

The Capex for the year ended 31 March 2010 was HEZ—ZTF=A=+—HI1E &F

14

approximately HK$82,893,000, which is more than
the budget of HK$70,000,000 originally planned.
This is due to the expectation of continuous
improvement of economy and the increase
of various cooperation projects, including the
formation of TIS Karrie Technologies (Hong Kong)

J*IE:éf?&éfi’w%szwa 0007 7T -

Lt ¥8 & #970,000,000/ 7T & « 1t Jh &
RIEHREES ii*Lﬁ%&i-bu%ﬁ/\f’EIE
BrwH R &IEzEERRAEAR
B (&E) BRAR (I=k&]) ° ZIKENE
ﬁﬁﬁm&éﬁ—%%% M - 0

Limited (“TIS Karrie”), a joint venture with TECO. MEAEMAES  UENAEEREFE LM
The Group thinks that it is necessary to increase WANE T °
the investment on certain infrastructure, e.g.
constructing an integrated administration building,
in order to enhance our competitive edge as well as
to attract talents and retain work force.
Net Gearing Ratio
Turnover Capex as at 31 March
FRITEELLR
e EE&EERE ®BE=HA=+-—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2001/02 1,156,262,000 15,000,000 -18%
2002/03 1,737,979,000 24,000,000 -9%
2003/04 1,692,960,000 59,000,000 1%
2004/05 2,563,190,000 62,000,000 56%
2005/06 3,592,741,000 92,000,000 21%
2006/07 3,320,030,000 92,000,000 25%
2007/08 2,799,967,000 199,000,000 8%
2008/09 2,460,578,000 115,000,000 -5%
2009/10 2,240,764,000 82,893,000 -4%
2010/11 N/A~ 38 A 65,000,000* 35%*

*

Initial estimation

B2
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Challenge

The global economy started recovering
in the beginning of the third quarter.
Since the customers remain cautious, the
number of shipments has increased but
quantity for each shipment is relatively
small. Furthermore, the forth quarter is a
traditionally slack period. Therefore, the
financial results of the entire financial year
record a slight profit.

This coming year is still full of difficulties and
we face the following major challenges:

(@  The first challenge is the fluctuation
of the price of raw materials (like the
electronic parts) due to the shortage
of supply when the market recovered
during the second half of 2009.
Rising raw materials price will lead to
an increase in production cost.

(b) The second challenge is the rising
salary level in the PRC due to the
rapid development of the Chinese
economy and the encouragement of
domestic consumption in China that
create more job opportunities locally
for workers. The trend is obviously
that the improved wage level means
some workers choose to seek
employment in their home provinces
instead of seeking jobs elsewhere. In
addition, with workers giving more
weight to their living standard and
the raise of minimum wages in May
of this year, the rise of labour cost is
unavoidable.

g

HE =G 2REEDEHE
B o NTEXRBHEIL I - BEIRN
BEENEHRD - EREPDA
REEENEE - L FWFTY
BREVRZE - Bt - 2FEBEREK

SLETRERF] o

SEDERMmEL —F &
T 5 PREK

(@ BERERMHERBRNTR
EeoLERE_TTAFET
FEER R 55—
R (i & F T M)
HAESK o BRI EHERIRR

EA BEHAERA L

OH]

by HX G BEFE G ARFEH
&E%ﬂ?&Lﬁ&*ﬁEﬁUé&W
ﬁ«ﬁ  RTE it ke
% TEKFHIRS - T
HMT THBE B 28858 - N
F  RIBE/REEEFEKFE
EARFRAEASREL
B BTITKRALLAREEN
17 °
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Furthermore, the implemented
“Labour Contract Law” undoubtedly
leads to more disputes between
employees and employers and it is no
exception for the Group. However,
the Group always respects the spirit
of law by actively taking appropriate
measures. In light of the increasing
production cost due to the rise of
the statutory minimum wages, the
Group will undoubtedly have to
adjust the price of its products and
reduce the size of its workforce via
expansion of the scale of automated
manufacturing capacity to enhance
operational efficiency and to reduce
production cost. We would like to
emphasis that the prime aim of such
price adjustment is not to raise our
profit but to ensure the “cost push”
impact be borne by the customers.
We believe, as a long-term business
partner, the customers should share
certain responsibilities in this aspect.

The Group faced the shortage of
labour in the PRC at the end of
2009 so we quickly responded by
taking certain measures in relation
to remuneration, fringe benefits and
bonus. For example, a lucky draw was
and will be held quarterly. The prizes
include car and cash etc and the
free group wedding ceremony and
local tours are arranged for workers.
In addition, the workers’ meal and
working environment are being
improved. The main objective of all
such measures is to retain existing
workers and attract new workers or
former workers coming back from
their home provinces. The problem
of shortage of labour was basically
solved in March of this year. The
Group believes that by adopting the
“humane” approach, instead of the
“military” approach, in managing
our employees and the operations,
a harmonious working atmosphere
can be created and the Group will be
regarded as a good employer.

(& BE RE) BT
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(@) The third challenge is the instability of
economic environment. Europe Debt
Crisis creates uncertainties on the
global economic recovery.

In order to control the costs of production
under the fierce competition in the market,
a company cannot only reduce the size of
the workforce but also adopt the “total cost
effective” measures to improve production
efficiency by optimizing each procedure
of our production process. During the
implementation of measures to improve
cost efficiency of the Company, we received
support of the employees at all levels. As
a result, the expenditure of the Group
was reduced successfully and thus a profit
is recorded for the Group this year. The
management notes that the production
cost (especially the labour cost) will rise and
profits will be squeezed. We shall proactively
communicate with our customers with a
view to transfer part of the costs to them
reasonably.

Factory

- Production in Yixing factory had
been commenced in February 2010,
mainly for Automatic Teller Machine
("ATM"), manufacturing of parts &
moulds and assembly of server.

- The construction of B2B in Yu Quan
had been completed. This factory
is being used by TIS Karrie, one of
our major joint venture companies.
Assembly lines and production
equipments had been installed.
Production already commenced in
March 2010.

- In addition, the B2A integrated
administration building will be
constructed soon. The integrated
administration building will enhance
the management efficiency. All
administrative matters will be
processed together to reduce
operational hindrance and to reduce
costs.
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Construction Plan For Yu Quan Plant
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Floor Plan For Feng Gang Plant
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Joint Venture Companies

The Group had established various joint
venture companies with different partners.
These joint ventures include Sagem Karrie
Technologies (Hong Kong) Limited (“SKT"),
60% interest of which is beneficially
owned by the Group, and TIS Karrie, 49%
interest of which is beneficially owned
by the Group. The establishment of joint
venture companies can strengthen the
business relationship between business
partners and the Group can create business
synergy. The establishment of the joint
ventures also enable the Company to get
access to the demand of the global market
so as to improve the Group's profitability
and turnover. In addition, the production
technologies will be further enhanced.

For SKT, due to the lack of manpower
and raw materials, the shipment had been
delayed even though the demand is strong.
Same as last year, a loss is recorded this
year. At the beginning of March 2010, the
situation had gradually been improved. The
problems of manpower and raw materials
had been gradually resolved. Timely
shipments are made as the orders are placed.
Backlog orders were being handled and the
operation is back on the right track. With its
operation getting back on track, we expect
SKT will improve its profitability very soon.

TIS Karrie also commenced production in
March 2010. The production and shipment
of April and May are satisfactory. We are
looking forward for a fruitful result by the
end of FY10/11.
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The signing ceremony of the
joint venture in Taiwan between
Mr. Francis Kwok, Group Deputy
Chairman & COO and Mr.
Eugene Huang, Chairman of
Teco Image Systems Co., Ltd
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Vision Leads New Sky

Vision is a great aspiration for an enterprise and is
a macro and long-term objective. Values, Missions
and Objectives are the basic elements for Vision.
Values are a set of culture and norm guiding all
members/staffs behaviour and direction for goals.
Missions are the summary of the activities and
working focus. Objectives will become practicable
actions through different tasks.

Vision creates clear intention and the correct
direction so that plans can be correctly formulated
to focus all efforts on the appropriate objectives.
As we understand, the road ahead of us will not be
flat but rough at the beginning.

In order to formulate our vision, the executive
committee of our company together with 28 core
members of various departments held the “2010
strategic workshop” at function rooms in Hong
Kong Gold Coast Hotel in February 2010 in order to
set out the vision of the Group for next five years.
Meaningful mission statements and clear values
and objectives had been established. Through open
discussion, we framed our vision as at 2015 “To
be a leading Integrated Electronics Manufacturing
Services Partner”. We aim to be not only the
manufacturers of our customers but also the
partners of our customers.

(1) Values

Values provide a broad guidance in the
process of seeking our objectives. We believe
that the objective we are operating towards
is correct and our corporate culture is as

follows:

Proactive Heartfelt dedication in all
details (main theme for
annual report of 2005/06).
Seeking break through and
innovation.

Services Nothing is impossible.

Operate with customer-
oriented attitude and remain
fully devoted to provide
comprehensive and excellent
services for both internal and
external customers.

Commitment We vow to create a good
corporate image by honoring
our promises.
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On 26 and 27 February 2010, a two-day Strategic Planning Workshop was held in order to set a clear objective and
get adequate preparation for the Management Retreat Camp in May. The attendants were the core members of the
management team. Dedicated, open-minded and united, they contributed good plans and ideas for the future development
of the Group.
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The Group continuously enhances its
“value-adding” capability, strengthens the
automation process and improves supply
chain management, and thus deepening the
core value of “Gear up” (the main theme
of our 2009/10 interim report). As a result,
we are still confident and should have
sufficient capability to maintain the support
and good graces from our customers despite
the difficult business environment and
challenging conditions.

Missions

In order to reach our vision, we should
have summary of activities and focuses for
stepping forward. Missions are such focuses.
Six points have been formulated as the
summary of our activities and our missions,
known as the “DIRECT" as follows:

“D" = Design for manufacturing

PEEBCEMRREETRF

wyn

= Integrated world-class
manufacturing solutions and
services

R RS S L E T RMRTS

“R" = Re-engineering to excellence
RERILESY
“E” = Environment & Enterprise

Sustainability
RIENBEAFEER

“C" = Cost effective management
B AN E TR
“T" = Total stakeholder satisfaction

YHERRSARERE

(1

$EIT%ﬁﬁh%EIﬁﬁm
w e B B 2 i e 58
R TEERA 2 B0 A
?%n/ TEETREE
TH) EEEEERENSHE
HRAKBHERT - RS2 H

HIBE RAE L - BEEFH TR
SR e
Zap
REZRS  BAVERTHHSE

&gﬂmﬁmﬁﬁv@ﬁ%t%%
2 R ERKET 7T /NIEMSE
Ffr:8 [ DIRECT ra&@ AR CENE

‘D" = Design for
manufacturing
PHEEmRT MRS
TrF

= Integrated world-class
manufacturing solutions
and services
}E1 )| /
AN AR5

MEEERR

“R” = Re-engineering to
excellence

FEBRLEEY

“E” = Environment &
Enterprise Sustainability

BRI NERAFEER

“C” = Cost effective
management
B AE R

“T" = Total stakeholder

satisfaction

EGERESATEmE



Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1A BBRAE] o Annual Report 2009/10 G4

D)

3)

)

Chairman’s Statement FERE

Objectives

The management also understands that in
order to put the summary of our activities
into actions, we should divide those
objectives into different tasks and give them
to the department heads. Therefore, the 3rd
“Management Retreat Camp” session was
held at the banquet room of Castfast Hotel
in Fenggang in May 2010 so that we could
put those vision into action plans through
brainstorming. There were approximately
130 attendees (the highest participants
in record). All participants participate in
different open platforms and actively engage
in discussion. 16 action plans and chief
tasks were formulated at the end of the
brainstorming session.

Conclusion

The management recognizes that vision of
the Group must undergo the process of
creation, consolidation and realization that
cannot be completed within a short period
of time. We should elaborate the team
spirits of “Together, We Can” (main theme
of 2008/09 interim report) and “Joint Forces
to Excel” (main theme of 2007/08 annual
report) to overcome difficulties and achieve
bright future. In order to keep the vision
of the Group active, we should develop
it persistently. Vision will only become
“beautiful intention” without persistent
motivation. Vision requires persistence and
we should maintain our persistency as “High
aspiration makes strong practitioners”. Vision
is a process but not the final destination.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend
Policy” since the first quarter of the financial year
of 2006/07, which outlines the factors that should
be taken into account in determining the dividend
for distribution, such as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company, cash flow and Capex.
After careful considerations of the aforementioned
factors, the Board hopes to maintain the Company’s
track record of paying dividends to shareholders for
thirteen consecutive years so the Board recommends
to pay a final dividend of HK1 cent per share to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of members of the Company on 3 September 2010.

am  BE

SEETTHME  BEETE R
EfEpE = RERRARAN - BH
M AL R RS TRER - L E
EEPESMPATENOF - I
AEER —_ZE—TFHARERME
RESEZERETTEEER
g HLBELEERED BE=
REERATHHE - SRERE
EANBAIRIB0ON - RERER
g2 - BeELFREMMAR
8 B2 ETR - EMRe &
& 16fEE 2EBRITENFTE

(V) A

EEEWRHT - FBREABZKE
& BELRBEANTRER ST
e—EAERZ AEHTK - A
REREEGGEY  BFRAL (ZF
TNVENTBHEETE) : —F
BB (—TZ2+L TNFHEH)
EHER - RHERIFHARE - I
AVARFKRAR /AN - TEHT
NER  RBERD N ZBEER®
BIEHHNREIME  HESE
ARTEMN - B NIT P (9817
EEE| -BERAR—RBER M
PR A E -

REBUR

BEEER_ZTEXR /TLFEFEFE
EENRM BB BE] - #AE
BRI HORER BN K ESBERIAE
BHRE - AREBBRERSA ARG R
M BREeREMRERE -EFGLKE
BEE LM FBERZRER - 5 LMERE
B+=—FEFERERSMNLE 2
BRBERBBBERNABWTFRAER -F
—EFNA=ZHERRINARARRE
AT AR RRR o

25



[ZRES « fIFT KR | AEBR2010F5A7RSHRBERRTERENEIE  £5EB130ZRFEMEN T SBEEASHE
BIEARAFNERRERTHTE  SHEAFTFEHETEEANTH  FSABN—BFEEN P EERSEEBHE
BHFARE  SEREBEKABRENIE

With the theme of “Vision Leads New Sky”, Management Retreat Camp of the Group was held on 7 and 8 May 2010,
more than 130 middle and senior managers from Mainland China and Hong Kong participated in the session to formulate
our corporate strategy and action plans for the next five years. Participants had non-stop and intensive discussions at the
sessions, and made suggestions on various aspects of the topic like a swarm of hard-working bees, and contributed their
efforts to the Group.
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(v)

v)

Geographical Distribution

The Group has always adopted a diversified
approach in transporting its goods and does not rely
on one single market. Details are set out in segment
information in Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

Prospects

With the slow recovery of the global economy,
the number of shipments is gradually increasing.
The Group takes an optimistic but cautious view
in respect of our prospects. We hope that we will
attain for a low double digit growth next year.
However, certain crises lie ahead:

(1) Fluctuation of exchange rate

The yuan rate reform has been proposed
by China recently and that will increase
the volatility of the yuan’s exchange rate.
[t means that yuan will not have a one-
off revaluation and the market expects that
yuan will appreciate moderately. Accordingly,
our operational costs will be increased. The
volatility of yuan will create uncertainties to
the Group.

) Debt crisis

Sovereign debt in certain European Countries
remain at a high level, which is far out of
the limits set forth by the European Union.
This European credit crisis adversely affects
the financial market and slows down the
pace of recovery from the recession. It is still
uncertain whether this debt crisis is same as
the sub-prime mortgage crisis. The concern
is that the spread of the debt crisis may
trigger a financial turmoil for a second time
and affect, to a certain extent, the orders
from Europe.

3) Labour costs

There have been protests organised by
workers in the PRC recently. There are signs
that more protests will be taking place.
Workers are now demanding higher wages
and better benefits. They are demanding for
more rights to protect their own interests. In
addition, the statutory minimum wages in
the PRC had been increased in May and the
labour costs will rise inevitably.
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The rise of wages brings challenge to the
Group but we hope to limit its impact. In
fact, we had already raised the wages of
our workers before the implementation of
the statutory required minimum wages. We
try our best to address to workers’ demand
and take active steps to discuss with workers
on the basis of openness and mutual
understanding so as to reach “All Wins”
situations.

Plant’s production

Customers put more emphasis on production
with low carbon emissions and “Green
Production”. As the cost of “Green
Production” has increased, our production
costs have also increased.

Dongguan possesses a sound city
infrastructure and the suppliers of raw
materials and electronic components are
closely located. Furthermore, the board of
directors of the Company believes that the
rise of production costs can be tackled by
adopting strict cost control measures and
increasing production efficiency. Therefore,
the Group has no intention to relocate our
production plants in Dongguan to other
relatively less economic developed outlaying
Provinces or nearby countries. The removal
of plants in Dongguan will bring merely short
term benefits. The other local governments
may increase their levies and reduce their
special credits several years later, thus
eliminating those benefits derived from the
removal of the production plants. In addition,
the quality of labour and expertise is
comparatively lower in such other regions or
countries and it is more difficult to manage
the workforce in other countries because
of the cultural difference. The insufficiency
of the supply chain and related supportive
business is also a drawback. Accordingly,
Dongguan, remains the best location for us
to have our production plant.

(4)
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(%)

Diversification

The manufacturing sector faces many
difficulties in many aspects in the current
market environment. If The Group does not
make any change to tackle the obstacles
in the current market environment, it is
likely our business will diminish gradually
and cannot grow in the future. In order to
balance our income and profit, the Group
needs to seek breakthrough and innovation
to diversify its business. There are two levels
of diversification:

()

(ii)

Diversification under principal
business activities:

The Group devotes to broaden our
sources and bases of customers. We
also explore new products like clinical
equipments, motor vehicle products,
visual accessories, and assembly of
ATM parts. We have been seeking to
understand the relevant standards,
to collect information and to train
necessary personnel so as to gain
professional knowledge rapidly.
Shipments of some of the new
products had already been started in
the financial year of 2010/11.

Diversification of the non-principal
business activities:

Manufacturing production can no
longer be undertaken based on
the traditional production model
that is not energy efficient. New
production model shall be adopted
to achieve the principle of energy
saving, emission reduction and
environmental protection so as to
comply with the “Three Low and
One High” and “New cages for new
birds” policies in China. With the
increasing production costs, the risk
to the Group will become greater if
the Group chooses to rely solely on
its manufacturing business. Therefore,
at the end of 2007 (at time of rights
issue), | had explored the possibility of
engaging other businesses to broaden
our source of income and maximise
the shareholders’ return. As the
current macro-economic environment
is becoming more mature, local
provisional authorities in the PRC
encourage the industrial sector to
change their business model to that
of the service sector so as to activate
local economy.

(5)
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In fact, | have decided that Karrie
Group should be specialized in
industrial production and | personally
has started developing properties,
hotel, and specialising in tourism
industry and other leisure vacation
businesses since the Asian Financial
Turmoil in 1997. | always think that
industrial production can stimulate
population flow for the purpose of
establishing an independent small
community and therefore strive to
implement the appropriate business
model to achieve such idea. |
believe that the local economy and
community construction can be
improved by appropriate business
model in industrial production. |
established Wedding City, hotels,
supermarket, shopping mall,
residential properties and various
leisure facilities around our factories
in Fenggang and Yantien to stimulate
the economy of the surrounding
areas. The establishment is well
regarded with the support and
trust from the local government.
| believe | can assist the Group in
developing and operating other types
of business with my experience in
those industries. The Group is still in
the stage of exploration and does
not have any concrete plan at the
moment.

After the financial turmoil last year, the global economy
has become more stable and the worse time has passed.
Although the Group faced numerous risks during the
global financial turmoil, we were able to minimise the
impact of the risk and maintain the stability of our financial
performance by enhancing our corporate governance level,
strictly controlling our costs and improving our system.

Both opportunities and challenges lie ahead in the
forthcoming year. We shall adopt the objective of “Vision
Leads New Sky” to face the challenges. Meanwhile, we
shall be devoted to grow diversely to create the new
opportunities for the Group.

The Group’s unaudited turnover for the two months
ended 31 May 2010 was HK$457,324,000 (2009/10:
HK$295,406,000), as the unaudited turnover for these two
months may not reflect the final results for the year ended
31 March 2011, investors and shareholders should exercise
caution when dealing in the shares of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Robust Cash Generating Ability

With the new Capex cycle slowing down, the Group
has taken a group-wide effort to improve the cash cycle.
As a result, the Group maintains a net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$107,446,000 as compared to
last year’s net cash inflow of HK$147,441,000 despite a
9% decrease in turnover.

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
staying below 1

The Non-current assets to Total Equity Ratio stayed at a
healthy level of 78% (2008/09: 69%). This means that the
Group is using long term shareholders’ fund to finance
non-current assets such as plants and machinery. The sole
purpose of the existing bank borrowings is to finance the
working capital.

Financing for Growth

As at 31 March 2010, the audited net bank balance was
approximately HK$31,485,000. As such, we still expect the
net gearing ratio will stay at a level of below 35%. We are
also following our house rule of using our profit after tax
and proceeds from the Rights Issue to finance our capital
expenditures:

MIEEIR
EHHNBRED

BEN—BHRETEERERABPEHORE &
EEBRERE HhEENEReRERAPENE
Z HAREEE TR TI%  BRENDER K
LR FE S RAL 107,446,000 T (£
FEZERESRAA147,441,000870) ©

FRBDEERERATL RERMUT

FERBEERBERBRL REBERNT8%
BEAKF (ZZZEN/BAFE : 69%) KK
SEZ [FERPEE | HE M - EARE
ZREBBEMXSE  BARITEERE—EAR
MEBETRAERE -

AERRHESEE

RZZE—ZFTF=ZA=1+—H  K&EZNFR]T
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Financing Capex by Profit
LUaFEREEEEREZETHIR

03/04  04/05 0506  06/07  07/08 0809  09/10

HK$ million BEBATL 00/01 01/02 02/03
Profit After Tax B RA 26 78 120
Depreciation and FEREH

Amortisation 39 34 32

Proceeds of Rights Issue & - - -

90 147 186 125 13 20 9

34 38 50 54 60 57 18
- - - - - -

65 112 152

124 185 236 179 195 77 57

Less: B

CAPEX ETEERE 65 15 24 59 62 92 92 199 115 83
Dividend/Dividends B8/ BRER A

To Be Distributed 0 13 92+ 82 86 103* 47 4 9 6
(Deficit)/Surplus (BR)/ &% (42) (16) 36 (17) 37 4 40 8) (47) (32)
(Net Bank Borrowings)/  (EiR{T(EE),/

Net Cash S (51) 64 34 6 @34 (112)  (141) (52) 36 31
(Net Gearing Ratioy ~ (FB{TEELR)/

Net Cash Ratio FReE (16%)  18% 9% (1%)  (56%)  21%)  (25%)  (8%) 5% 4%
* Including special dividend * BIERRIIE
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Resources Available

Total bank borrowings is about HK$387,830,000. The
Directors are confident that the cash in hand and bank
balances of HK$419,315,000 with banking facilities of
HK$1,229,790,000, the Group is able to meet its current
operational and capital expenditure requirements and to
make strategic investments when opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions
are denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
or RMB. As the exchange rates of the RMB against Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar rose continuously during the
relevant period, the Group was exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation risks and pressure on its production cost. The
Group will actively communicate with its customers in
order to adjust the selling prices of its products to mitigate
the impact of the appreciation of the RMB on its business.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Tea-break with Individual Investors

We are glad that the “tea-break with individual investors”
has been successfully held for 14th times. Owing to the
sluggish market sentiment, particularly due to the lack of
interests among investors in the shares of small industrial
enterprises, the attendance rate gradually decreased over
years. However, the Group adheres to the principles of
“openness, fairness and equality” and believes that all
investors (large or small) should have the same right to get
access to the Company’s information. With these principles
in mind and considering that the tea-break remains to
be an effective and efficient way for the Company to
communicate with its investors, the Group will continue to
organise tea-break with individual investors but will only
hold the tea-break once annually (provisionally to be held
in August each year). In the event that the investment
environment improves and investors become enthusiastic
in participating in the tea-break again, we will consider
gradually increasing the number of tea-break per year. The
next tea-break is scheduled on 6 August 2010 from 7 p.m.
to 9 p.m. at Hover City Chiuchow Restaurant, 1/F., Cheung
Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon (Lai
Chi Kok MTR Station Exit). As part of the Group’s social
responsibility efforts, participants will be asked to donate
at least HK$100 to charity and the Group will match the
donation up to a maximum of HK$10,000. The Group will
request the relevant charity to issue a receipt to the donor
for tax deduction purpose.
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Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com.hk for more details. Application
form can be downloaded from the website or obtained
by calling 2411-0913 during office hours. Since seats
are limited, the Group will allocate the quota by lot if
the total number of application is more than the seats
available. Only investors whose applications are confirmed
can join the function. Investors are advised to grasp this
opportunity to communicate directly with the management
of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

At the end of March 2010, the Group had approximately
5,650 employees (approximately 6,770 employees at
the end of March 2009). With a good reputation in the
local community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group
will also grant bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business
performance and the appraisal and reward system. Other
employee benefits include medical insurance, “Cooperative
Home & Car Ownership Scheme” and mandatory
provident fund.

Performance Based Incentives

The standard 13th month pay was abolished in 2002
and replaced by a performance based bonus system and
more objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will receive bonus higher than
what they would have received before the new system was
implemented.

Dividend

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1 cent (2008/09: HK 1.5 cents) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 3 September 2010. Together with the interim
dividend, total dividend paid for this year amounted to
HK1 cent (2008/09: HK1.5 cents) per share. The final
dividend, subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 3 September 2010, will be
payable to those entitled on 20 September 2010.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee made
up of one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors whose duties include reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
with the external auditors during the year. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group particularly during the
global financial turmoil, and my fellow Directors, managers
and all staff for their considerable contributions to the
Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Executive Directors
are: Messrs. Ho Cheuk Fai, Kwok Wing Kin, Francis and
Lee Shu Ki; the Non-executive Director is: Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming; the Independent Non-executive Directors are:
Messrs. So Wai Chun, Chan Sui Sum, Raymond and Fong
Hoi Shing.

By Order of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2010
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified
and generalized for easy
understanding)
1. Quotation Phase
— Around 12 to 15 months prior
to shipment, Customer A sends
out Request for Quotation (RFQ)
for a project to all “qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase
— Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to us;
— Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the next
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype Making

Phase

— According to Customer A's
specification, we start to
perform the design works, make
the moulds and prototype;

— This process would take around
6 to 12 months;

— Customer A would also work
with our purchasing department
on electronics components and
the list of qualified suppliers for
such components.

4. Shipment Phase
— Customer A finalizes and revises
the final shipment schedule;
— We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and Payment
— Customer A takes goods from
JIT warehouses;
— We get paid after the normal
credit period (generally 60 days).
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the
confirmed project and the related engineering works have
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
page 26).
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A
project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

2. We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-
in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

5. While the metal and plastic enclosures business
is an integral part of the computer and computer
peripheral sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan
but not in Hong Kong.

6. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia or
Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market is by
shipment destination rather than country of origin of
the customers.
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APPENDIX 2

Corporate Governance

1.

Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve
decision-making efficiency. The day-to-day operations
of the Group are now in the hands of a group of
professional managers;

Efforts to improve transparency

— disclosing in annual report detailed explanation
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind;

— meeting with individual shareholders annually
through a new “tea-break” program;

— disclosing price sensitive information on a
timely basis, including continuing connected
transaction, profit warning and discloseable
transaction.

Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to shareholders;

Clearly defined ROE objective of 20%;

Clearly defined future turnover targets;

Establishment of vision through clearly defined
missions, values and objectives;

Encouraging executive directors to hold at least
500,000 shares of the Group;

Willingness to share wealth created with all
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the
aggregated amount of the Group’s dividends paid/
payable is around HK$583,234,000 or around 83%
of the shareholders’ fund.

Remarks: * Because of the importance of maintaining financial

stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 3

B 8 =

Dividend and Dividend Policy:

RERRKREBER :
An unbroken 13 years’ record of dividend payment
135 BASRK B £ oK R B
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

SEBEERSHEDRREMEEFRZ0% U LEBERS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

TIERIKE2REZBIGE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal Special Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
b RE  BEIRE RE
H R RE P O BERE BRRE NEF a5t TR =R

(Excluding)* (Including)*

(FEEER)* (BFEER)*
1997/98 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 1.00 13%  N/A TEHR
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 4.00 58%  N/A TNEFA
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 4.40 77%  N/A TNEf
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil £ 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil £ 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 20.00 87%  N/A TN@EH
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 21.00 58%  N/A TNEHR
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil £ 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 11.50 38%  N/A TNEH
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 0.75 27%  N/A TER
2008/09 Nil £ 1.50 1.50 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 1.50 39%  N/ATEA
2009/10 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil £ 1.00 45%  N/A TEHR
Remarks:  * Excluding special dividend #Including special dividend
B * B IER B B IR R B
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Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FERERIREEHY

No. of days H & )
4 ——A—— Inventory Turnover 17 &A% 5

100 ~ -~ @- - Debtor Turnover Ji& s i i 8 Ef
90

80

70

60 -

50

40

30 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 J
00/01  01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10

(no. of days) (B#4) 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10

Inventory Turnover

FEIBEH 67 48 39 42 72 39 45 37 36 47
Debtor Turnover

JRE K R 3 45 2R 65 64 56 63 80 61 67 56 62 68
Inventory turnover (Base on year end stock value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days FEEEE (UFERTEE T HERA) x 365H

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days FEUIRBEEEN (AEKREWIR 4 %%58) x 3650

Inventory Turnover Days 75 EE 1]

(no. of days) (H&k) 08/09 09/10 Change #18%
Raw Materials ¥} 19 26 +37%
WIP F &5 6 8 +33%
Finished Goods 45K i 11 13 +18%
Total &5t 36 47 +31%
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APPENDIX 5 Bt %
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
EFREARNREDE
(%) - -
30 o —A— Gross Profit Margin = EF2& (%)
-0 - Net Profit Margin ~ #5%I 2= (%)
25
20
15
10
O----DO-_
5 - B el = SRS
o~ B-..
0 I I I I I I , O -r-0O-=-+-0 )
00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10
(%) 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10
Gross Profit Margin 17.0 19.4 15.0 13.7 12.4 10.7 9.1 6.4 7.2 6.8
EFI%
Net Profit Margin 2.9 6.8 6.9 5.3 5.7 5.2 3.8 0.5 0.8 0.4
)=
HK$(million) ( & #;&7T)
Turnover/Revenue 893 1,156 1,738 1,693 2,563 3,597* 3,328* 2,803* 2,464* 2,245*
BERE WA
Profit for the year 26 78 120 90 147 186 125 13 20 9
INF 5 A
* Revenue = Turnover + Other gains
KA = EEHE+ Hiblim
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APPENDIX 6

FAQ

BUSINESS

What is so special about Karrie's business model?

- Normally we deal with projects, which
can take one year from initial project
confirmation, development and engineering
works to final shipment of goods. A project
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

- Usually we are the only vendor for a
particular project confirmed. Combined with
the 18 to 24 months shipment cycle, we are
bestowed with relatively long-term business
visibility. (2004/05 Annual Report, page 60)

Would rising cost of raw material affect the
performance of the Group?

Under the Group’s versatile ‘Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism’ most of the raw materials
other than electro-galvanized steel plates are
sourced through the customers or through suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price (other than steel) has only a marginal impact
on the bottom line. (2004/05 Annual Report, page
18)

Experts say RMB is going to appreciate more in
the coming two years. What is the impact on the
Group?

- RMB payments represents about 15% of the
total cost of sales.

- As most of our competitors are also based
in China and on the basis that customers
stick to their present purchasing practice,
in theory we could raise price to cover the
increase in cost over the time.

To whom do Karrie sell its products?
Our products, including computer server casings,

laser printers, magnetic tape drive, are mainly sold
to multi-national customers.
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CAPEX, DIVIDEND AND FINANCE

5. Are you worried about a high level of bank
borrowings?

The Group’s shareholders fund is much
higher than the non-current assets meaning
that the Group is financing its non-current
assets through stable shareholders’ fund
rather than bank borrowings;

Any increase in net bank borrowings could
therefore be attributed to the increased
working capital requirement due to an
increase in turnover. This is a positive news
but not the otherwise.

6. What is the status of new Yu Quan and
Yi Xing Plants?

The site area of Yu Quan Plant is
approximately 240,000 sq. m. as compared
to the combined site area of 89,000 sq. m.
of the existing Yan Tien Plant and Fenggang
Plant;

We will build Yu Quan Plants in various
phases depending on the economic
conditions. Phase | has launched production
in October 2006;

Phase Il of Yu Quan Plant was completed by
end of 2008 and has launched production;

It is expected that Phase Ill of Yu Quan Plant
to be completed by the end of 2010;

Yi Xing Plant has commenced production in
February 2010.

7. Is Karrie going to change its dividend policy because
of the capex and working capital requirements?

*Remarks:

Our dividend policy is to pay out 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to
shareholders;

In 2009/10, we paid out a total of HK1 cent
as dividend (payout ratio: 45%), making the
13th year of unbroken dividend payment
record;

Because of the importance of maintaining financial
stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHERS

8. Should you worry about the corporate governance
standard of Karrie?

- For three consecutive years from 2003-2005,
fund managers and research analysts have
voted Karrie as one of the best-managed
companies in Hong Kong in the Asiamoney
Polls. In the 2004 Poll, Karrie was voted as the
second best in Corporate Governance in Hong
Kong. In 2005 Karrie was voted as the best
small cap in the same poll;

- We have made detailed explanation of
corporate strategies and the rationale behind
in our annual reports and our effort was
recognised by Hong Kong Management
Association and awarded with “Honorable
Mentions” in 2006 and 2007 Best Annual
Report Award, also being awarded with 2007
IR Magazine Award “Best Annual Report
and Other Corporate Literature” Award.
In 2008, we had been awarded “Citation
for Achievement in Corporate Governance
Disclosure” in the 2008 Hong Kong
Management Association Best Annual Reports

Award;

- Since 2001 the day-to-day operation of
Karrie has been in the hands of a group of
professional managers. The management team
is not related to the controlling shareholder;

- Karrie is also willing to share with shareholders
the wealth created through distribution of
dividend. Since 2000/01, the aggregated
amount of the Group’s dividends paid/payable
is around HK$583,234,000 or around 83% of
the shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2010;

- To increase its transparency, Karrie

a. arranges “tea-breaks” with individual
shareholders annually;

b. publishes an easy-to-read annual reports
with graphs, tables and other useful
information; and

C. discloses price sensitive information on
a timely basis.

9. Who are the major shareholders?

- As at 30 June 2010, the Ho's family/New Sense
Enterprises Limited held around 56% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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APPENDIX 7 M85+
c Profithattlgbtlgable
_ Capex Ca pex to shareholders
ERMERX N N ISR A1 32 )
HKS'000 EEEERE HKS'000
FET TR
200,000 - - 200,000
160,000 |- - 160,000
120,000 |- - 120,000
80,000 ~ > 180,000
40,000 - ll - 40,000
0 i B 0
97/98 | 98/99 | 99/00 | 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 | 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 | 08/09 09/10 10/11*
— g%e'rgﬁﬁﬁ 67,604 | 76,176 | 56,595 | 65,034 | 14,675 | 24,488 | 58,842 | 62,236 | 92,059 | 91,625 |198,529 | 114,641 | 82,893 | 65,000
—o—  Profit for the year
EXEF 27,865 | 25,162 | 20,616 | 26,368 | 78,370 | 119,808 | 90,440 | 146,573 | 186,379 | 124,928 | 13,148 | 20,433 | 9,110 ?
* Budget only Phase 1: Phase 2 > Phase 3 Phase 4: Phase 5: Phase 6: Phase 7: Phase 8: Phase 9:
*JEHE Asian Restructuring, investment Rapid growth Consolid- Rapid growth Consolid- | Restructuring, | Global financial | Establish
financial and market repositioning ation ation investment turmoil vision for
crisis in fixed 5 years
assetsand
market
repqslt-
ioning
124 BB FMER SEIREs - FEMEER - |BBEE | EERER EAN 12 VN 1
TMEM | $RHEM - 0 RS ERERL R EEH g EEY | EpEd- RIRERUEMW | BRUSF
AR EEAE LEES
A RIS
EFEAL
APPENDIX 8 Ffit &% J\
(% Group’s Target ROE at 20% or above
= 3 [—] ~
40 - SEZBERERERREFEENR20%H UL
353 353
35+
30 -
S W 251
1
£ m
§ J 20
c
S & 15p
¢ ¥
10 -
5L
0 J
00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10
HKS$ (m)
BEEE 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10
Profit after Tax S5k erwal 26 78 120 90 147 186 125 13 20 9
Total Equity mERERS 3% 347 364 375 416 527 557 676 741 741
Return on IR
Equity (%) B2 (%) 73 225 330 240 353 353 224 1.9 2.7 1.2
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Karrie on Perpetual Motion:

Persistence
Consistence

Continuance

INTRODUCTION

The Group has published particulars of its corporate
social responsibility on a yearly basis since its listing in
1996, and has incorporated the Sustainability Report
as a separate section in its annual report since last year
(2008/09). Upholding the tenet of “Karrie on Perpetual
Motion”, the Group has committed to the fulfilment of
its social responsibilities in all aspects under the principles
of persistence, consistence and continuance. The Group
is of the view that “High aspiration makes strong
practitioners”. We must adhere to the established plans
and accomplish the objectives, mission and tasks set in line
with the vision we pursue. At the same time, we need to
build a corporate reputation highlighted with the concept
of “Karrie on Perpetual Motion” with the relentless,
concerted and dedicated efforts of our staff to ensure
sustainable development of the Group.

Regarding the "“DIRECT” mission of the Group, details
of which are set out on page 24 in this annual report,
the "E” therein represents “Environment & Enterprise
Sustainability” which is closely related to the theme of
this report. We aim to become one of the most popular
employers. And to become a popular employer, we have
to be a manufacturer committed to fulfilling corporate
social responsibility, creating a sense of belonging among
its employees and thus reducing the staff turnover rate
and maintaining a stable workforce. The corporate social
responsibility has been incorporated into our long-term
strategy and mission. To become a popular employer, the
Group has adopted the following measures:

(I Balancing interests and sharing values

(I Establishing a dedicated team to concertedly build
the “Karrie” brand

()  Contributing to community development and
establishing the relationship as a partner

(IV)  Striving for the Best Corporate Governance and
adhering to the Principle of Integrity
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(V1)

(VI

)

Maintaining professional development and staff
training

Ensuring green production and environmental
protection

Sustaining development of the Group and winning
public recognition

Balancing interests and share values

Karrie's ability to become a successful integrated
electronic manufacturing service provider depends
upon its ability to protect and balance the interests
of various stakeholders, including shareholders,
employees, suppliers, business partners, regulators,
public investors, the media and the local
government, etc. To this end, it is necessary for
Karrie to understand the expectations and needs of
all stakeholders. For instance, in order to facilitate
communication with its investors and shareholders,
Karrie holds tea break each year in addition to
the annual general meeting. Members of the
management will attend the tea break and answer
queries raised by shareholders. In addition, the
Group also delegates employees to attend various
events and meetings, with a view to enable the
employees to have a better understanding of the
market trends and the latest amendments to the
relevant laws and regulations.

The economic benefits generated by the Group are
distributed to various stakeholders in different ways,
such as:

(a) Shareholders: According to the existing
dividend policy, 30% of
the profit attributable to
shareholders are paid to
shareholders by way of
dividend. The Group has
declared and paid dividends
for 13 consecutive years.
(b)  The public: Through participation in
various public welfare
activities and charitable
donations (for details
please refer to Section Il
headed “Contribution to
community development as
a partner” of this report).
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(0) Employees: By way of salary and other
incentives. As at the end
of March 2010, the Group
had approximately 5,650
employees, providing great
employment opportunities
for the local community.
In addition, in March
2010, the Group granted
a total of 30,200,000
share options to 150
individuals (representing
the highest number
of grantees in history)
who were all employees
of the Group and its
associated companies,
at a subscription price of
HK$0.55 per share. Such
grant of share options was
intended to provide key
employees with the bounty
of rising share price as a
result of their collaborated
efforts.

Establishing a dedicated team to concertedly
build the “Karrie” brand

Karrie attaches great importance to talented people,
and regards employees as indispensable assets of
the Group who are committed to the continuous
growth of the Group. Looking back at the year
full of challenges, Karrie was committed to (a) the
fulfilment of its social responsibilities, (b) attaining
the long-term development and (c) the provision
of better welfare for employees in protecting
the interests of different stakeholders. Therefore,
Karrie should coordinate and balance such interests
cautiously. In addition, Karrie is committed to
the improvement of the relevant mechanism, so
as to ensure that employees are treated in a fair
and equal manner, and their rights and interests
are duly protected. Under the people-oriented
principle, Karrie pays great attention to humanity
development and the concerns and well-being of
employees. Furthermore, Karrie also pays attention
to the employees’ requests, which are managed in
accordance with the principles of law (system) —
reason (basis and grounds) — sentiment (emotion)
with a view to achieve a win-win situation.
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Further, the Company also understands the
importance of keeping balance between work and
leisure time for employees who want to have a rich
personal life in addition to a successful career. To
this end, various social activities named as “Let’s
Climb the Mount Wutong Hand in Hand” (EF 18
W - B2 EIE), “Gather at Successful Land”
(1N %8 18€) and “Have a Date with Hill and
Sea” (BILUEH - &HRABF) were held to provide a
platform for single employees to find their love and
not feel lonely in anticipation that employees can
build a happy family while earning a living far from
home and thus be devoted to work. These social
activities were very popular amongst employees.
The Company also held social activities named
as “Find Chinese White Dolphin — a Trip to Tai O
Fishing Village” (FHHEHBK « KRAR 2 IK)

for its employees and their family to participate.

Moreover, in order to help young newly joined
employees in dealing with their work or emotions,
the Company has established the “Castfast Youth
Caring Team” (BT S 8 T/ \8) with senior
executives and volunteers, and set up hotlines for
employees to talk about their personal problems.
On some occasions, the Company offers assistance
to employees with problems in their personal lives.
To enrich our employees’ social life and ease off
their pressure, Karrie organized an activity named
“Gather at Successful Land under a Midsummer
Night Sky” ((RE 2 & @ EXfERKTI%8) which was
attended by over 600 young employees.
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SERERETRITRBIER  TRERITHAHIEE
B FRERR— RN ARBIRBE DS - HF R
BEAANES—FER -

The Group organized a free mass wedding ceremony
for staff, Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and CEO of the
Group, is acting as a marriage witness in person at
the Rose Church for the newlyweds, witnessing them
stepping into a new stage of life.

[RE—KR #het—&£| BRSEIREMNRESTF
ETRRES BERZEBAAZE  BELE B
BEETHME-

“One day together, maybe a lifetime forever.” The
match making party provides an opportunity for
unmarried employees to make friends, attracting
hundreds of participants. The employees care for the
development of the Group and in return the Group
cares for the happiness of its employees.

A EF@EER: —B—KR BWEZHNATER
RIZRE -
Karrie's Healthly Month slogan: “An apple a
day keeps doctors away”. Karrie guys, keep
healthy diet!
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The “Karrie Club” has been set up in Mainland
China to provide staff members with a venue
to relax and socialize. It serves the purposes
of enriching employees’ time after work and
increasing their sense of belonging to the Group.
The "Committee on the Concerns for the Staff”
holds regular informal discussions with new
employees to help them in adapting to the working
environment. In addition, to promote the awareness
of our female employees in Mainland China of their
physical health, the Company especially arranged
over 300 women employees to attend free physical
examination on two kinds of cancers (breast cancer
and cervical cancer). The Company also organized
various festive variety shows and recreational
and cultural activities in the PRC. Furthermore, to
enable the staff to carry out various recreational
activities even in rainy day, the Company has
especially constructed an indoor staff recreational
centre with an area of over 2,800 sg.m. During the
World Cup period in June 2010, the Company also
organized the “Who's the Winner in World Cup
Final Contest” for employees to feel the passion of
the World Cup, and recorded all the matches and
replayed them for our night-shift employees in the
canteens.

The Company also cares about employees’ mental
and physical health. Following the successful “Karrie
Healthy Month” last year, the Healthy Month
was also held this year, advocating one fruit each
day, promoting smile always and staging trivial
knowledge competition between departments. All
these efforts were designed to increase employees’
awareness about physical and mental health and to
help them relieve pressure so that they can devote
themselves to their future career and the Company’s
interest.
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A 2009F Ik = /A H %1 5 P K B &9 85
TR EFEAIEEELRAIEF
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—HEERLE  BRERZFER
IR o
To cope with the unprecedented
labour shortage in the Peal River Delta
in late 2009, our Chairman, Dr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, innovatively organized big
lucky draws with attractive first prize
being a limousine in order to retain
good staff. The lucky guy of the first
lucky draw, a security guard, was
called to the site to receive his prize at
the same night.

A [NAHAFTEERBEED  KORMNETER
L T AR ZE | AR3535 5 e |
In "Who's the Winner in World Cup Final
Contest”, who knows Karrie's employees won't
have the predicting ability as Paul the Octopus!

Eo L L EEE
1 B o)

201'-.':5!!-'145&

A REIEEENRETISELBE - WRKDVDIER
BREMIRKER - BAEEAR -
The Management of the Company comes on stage
to show funny comedy, and the result of the DVD
episode sold for charity to Haiti is encouraging.
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Last but not least, the Company also understands &% BNITRERAAXNE =B
that a new father needs more time to take care of EEHNERERELERRE THER
his newborn baby and show love and support for Bk BSFER BESUHES
his wife. Starting from this year, male employees ZERIN=ZREBHFER MEBAIZ
in Hong Kong are entitled to three-day paid ERIBERBHEZHERRBEE - FERE
paternity leave while employees can have flexibility RANEREIRELFEN—IHEK [
in arranging their vacations according to particular R IBRRIEH RN A ERER

need. Paternity leave is part of the measures taken
by the Company to care about employees’ family
life, which helps to increase the staff’s sense of
belonging to Karrie.

All the above measures and activities have led to FMERIBERE RS ERMERELIRE
a higher stability index, an improved operating B EMTEERNERRRDTHER
efficiency and a reduction in recruitment and HFIAAR

training cost.

A SEEEETFRE [HARBIE]R752005/10 AT - #H
For the fifth consecutive year, the Group was awarded the “Caring Company”
logo 2005/10. Thank you, Karrie's volunteers!



Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1A BBRAE] o Annual Report 2009/10 G4

(D)

1BH
Serial
No.

1

Sustainability Report Al ERRRESE

Contributing to community development and
establishing the relationship as a partner

The Company pays constant attention to the
community’s needs, and participates in and supports
social activities with a view to grow along with the
community. In May 2005, the Company formed
a volunteer group for charitable works to assist in
various donation and voluntary activities conducted
by the Company from time to time. Part of the

activities are as follows:

REHE

Beneficiary Institution

ERgEEBRERR
Sheng Kung Hui St.
Christopher” s Home

BEBERGAMKE
B

Hong Kong Sheng Kung
Hui Tai Wo
Neighbourhood Elderly
Centre

GERNEaN
AEAAESgEER

Helping Hand Tai Wo Hau
Christa Tisdall Jockey Club
Care Home

PHEEEe - BB
People” s Food Bank run by
St. James’ Settlement (SJS)

BB LEELHH

LA U
HHCKLA Buddhist Po Kwong
School

BRI
Feng Shan, Guangxi

BEItFE
Hong Kong Red Cross

EEIEAE
Activity Title

BAAEER A HME
112009

“Nothing is Impossible”
Outward Bound
Programme in 2009

PIRE DRSS

Sharing Mid-Autumn
Festival Love to Warm
People in the Suburban

Y ps i
Noah” s Ark Trip

BEFBmEEta
Chinese New Year
Gift Transfer Program

NS A AT/
Standard Chartered
Hong Kong Marathon

2 K& KoK
Bring water to the
drought-stricken area

HEEOMERIR
Show love for earthquake
disaster relief

() BHERAR BRUHE

ARAEIEIEHEFTERZEFFHT
gEE BuYRFAAXE - R-_FTFTH

FHhA  ARFAEKT THERFEE/
M1 BB B AR R R R SR IR R R
BRELAY  MOEHEREAT :

RENERE
Activity Category

AEEESEEE - FENTEBERGEEBERERSEM
[ZAMAFEEAREERNEE ] FEEBTRANIMNREEN
BHIR REAMRESFIREEEZEINLEEAR] N
18 - @b FIEFIEEE S o

“Nothing is Impossible” Outward Bound Programme was
sponsored by Ho Cheuk Fai Foundation with St. Christopher” s
Home for the third consecutive year, which aimed at facilitating
the all-around development of children. Through various
activities like war game training and adventure-ship, children are
cultivated with spirit of “Nothing is impossible” to strengthen
their endurance.

ETHBP OB ETHREETE -
Volunteers to help the Centre hold Mid-Autumn Festival
Gathering in the suburban.

ETHBEREMRELREE -
Volunteers to help push wheelchairs and visit the venue with
the elderly.

B-ETAFENERFRLEFRMNERARTEAL -
Run internally to encourage colleagues in donating their food
during Chinese New Year for distribution to people in need
since 2006.

BHHERMEL NS —SF_ AT \BRITZETSRR
W2 RERBEE -

Sponsor clothing and registration fees to the teachers and
students who participated the Standard Chartered Hong Kong
Marathon held at 28 February 2010.

FREABILERR  AFEEBRRKRERE

Made its way to the drought-stricken area in Feng Shan county,
Guangxi, and sent mineral water and consolation money to the
victims.

NEBERABEBRL BB RIMIEREEN - KESASE -
The management performed funny drama to raise charity funds
for earthquake-stricken area, and evidenced by encouraging
results.
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A —FSRIBERE - BEEG EIRK  ERERERLBED AR - IBEFRHE -

High-spirited, a group of vigorous senior officers in jersey are in the basketball court, ready for a match.

—HK—0E - EEIKER
HEABILZER - Bibf
XEBRKEERS  &EF
BEE R - BRAXFR
ZEM IR RS

This is more than bottled
water! Bottled water
and consolation money
are handed over by our
representatives to the
people in the drought-hit
area of Fengshan County,
Guangxi Autonomous
Region. Being so grateful,
the local residents is giving
us their written expression
of gratitude for our relief
efforts.

A REBETTRREENESY  REAEOERSBEMARER

A ZTTMBBTHIAEREEDEFA - M1 B BELE - EAMPIARIRA o
BAESZX AR EELRE - An eye-opening arrangement for the children of our staff during
Volunteers are trekking together with the elderly. the summer vocation, a close contact with the “Olympic Drums”
Their care and love make the winter a warmer in our factory, was one of the activities prepared for them.

one.
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Since 2008, the Company has granted holiday to
employees who act as volunteers in the Company’s
volunteer event to encourage more staff to
participate in voluntary work and the voluntary
service working hours may increase year after year
and be increased to 1,737 hours for 2009 (last year:
1,300 hours). During the year 2009/10, the Group
continued to make charity donations, including
the Haiti earthquake relief, the drought relief for
the five provinces in China’s southwest region, the
Yushu earthquake relief donations, the “Walk for
a Million” initiated by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong in the Stonecutters Island in the New
Territories, the ORBIS Pin Day Fundraising Campaign
and Volunteers Assisting Hong Kong Federation
of Handicapped Youth to Organize the Flag Day.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman of the Company,
had made several donations matching the amount
donated by our staff on “a-dollar-for-a-dollar” basis.
The charitable and other donations of the Group
for the year amounted to HK$86,000 (2008/09:
HK$366,000).

Striving for Best Corporate Governance and
adhering to the Principle of Integrity

The Company has well-established corporate
governance structure to enhance the accountability
to its shareholders and other stakeholders. Please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as
set out in this annual report for details. In order
to avoid excessive concentration of power, the
Company has established the Executive Committee
comprising professional management personel to
handle daily operations. Furthermore, the Company
has also established the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee has its
defined scope of duties and terms of reference.
All members of the Board of Directors have strictly
complied with the Model Code and confirmed that
they have observed the requirements regarding
securities transactions by directors. The directors
have also made disclosure of their personal interests
in the shares of the Company in accordance with
the relevant statutory requirements.

Honesty, fairness and justice are the core
values of the Group. All our staff members are
prohibited from taking advantage of their powers
and authorities for personal interests. They are
also required to treat suppliers and processing
contractors fairly. It is because illegal business
practices may not only adversely affect the
Company’s financial interest, but also create a
negative impact on the Company’s goodwill.

(v)
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As such, all our staff members are required to
strictly comply with the Code of Employees’
Ethical Disciplines (“Ethical Disciplines”), which
was compiled to optimize and strengthen the
“Regulations and Guidelines for Employees’
Acceptance of Benefits” issued last year. The
Ethical Disciplines will be revised from time to
time so as to keep abreast with the changing
operating environment. The Company has issued
a letter named “Peers’ Belief (E&[R%)" to each
of its suppliers and processing contractors so
as to encourage them as partners to report any
information about unfair and dishonest transactions
on the online platform. Each supplier is also
required to complete a supplier special investigation
questionnaire.

The Group has also established the Internal Audit
Department to improve its workflow and risk
management. The Internal Audit Department
has issued the drafts of “Guidelines for Internal
Control” and the “Guidelines for Risk Control of
Financial Investment “with an aim to establish a
complete internal control mechanism and enhance
risk management. The Executive Committee will
prudently review, discuss and improve the guidelines
for implementation.

Maintaining professional development and
staff training

The training and development programs of the
Company aim at “Developing Professional Skills
and Maintaining Sustainable Development” of
the Company. The core objective of the training
program is to improve our staff's knowledge,
skills and abilities while the core objective of our
development program is to achieve sound and
sustainable development for the Company as well
as its staff.

(V)
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Training and development programs

1. In respect of training work conducted during
the year, the Company held a total of 209
training programs (including 140 internal
training programs and 69 external programs)
in Hong Kong and mainland China with
a total of more than 54,000 participants.
These training programs covered aspects
such as management skills, production and
engineering technologies and management,
5S management, ISO and quality
management, environmental protection and
clean production, information technology
and EICC (Electronics Industry Citizenship
Coalition) and etc. Major training courses of
the year are listed as follows:

> Management skills training
- “"Workshop of Efficient
Management Skills and
Leadership”

This program is tailor-made for those
who have management potential
and the objective is to teach them
comprehensive management skills
by giving them an introduction of
the role and job responsibilities of
a manager, communications and
incentives, coaching techniques and
employees’ performance evaluation.
Some participants have subsequently
passed Manager Promotion and
Assessment System during the year
and it indicated that the training
program was useful and essential to a
successful career.

SEEBIERBA A & Eist] 17
W REAEERESEBRATS
ERODERER - ANWERR
THRABKBREZ R/ NMAERST
REfRBERRERRE -

Being awarded the “1st
Manpower Developer” logo is
a recognition of the Group’s
efforts to foster learning
culture and to promote career
development amongst its
employees. Miss Silvia Chan,
General Manager of Human
Resources and Administration,
is receiving the award from Mr.
Matthew Cheung Kin-chung,

Secretary for Labour and Welfare
Bureau.

[Fl] TEE RAFEHREM
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Production and Engineering
Technologies and Management—
Failure Mode and Effects Analysis
(FMEA)

This course mainly gives its
participants tips on how to detect
mistakes through an assessment of
the workflow and how to improve
product quality and reliability by
taking timely prevention measures.
Staff members from different
departments have proactively and
continuously put the knowledge
they have gained from such training
program into practice in their work
so as to enhance the engineering and
production management system of
the Company. This also reflects that
the participants value the knowledge
they have gained from such training
program.

55 Management — “5S Leadership
Review (Greenbelt) Course” and
“Karrie 5S Internal Training”

The Company proactively promotes
the “5S Management”. Last year
the Company engaged an external
training institution to provide the
“5S Leadership Review (Greenbelt)
Course” for the management team
of the Company. Then the members
of the management team passed
what they have leant from the
course to the 5S commissioners of
their respective departments, and
eventually to all staff members in
their departments. Through this
kind of “Karrie 5S Internal Training”
conducted by 5S commissioners, more
and more employees have received
“5S Management” training. Ever
since, our overall “5S Management ”
standards have greatly improved and
won a good reputation among our
customers. By June 2010, more than
5,500 employees have been trained
with the concept of “5S” within the
period of a year.
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(FMEA — Failure Mode &
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In respect of “Career Development”, for
the purpose of encouraging the continuous
career development of employees, the
Company has introduced various learning
policies and human resources development
schemes and other development plans,
including:

>

The Policy of Encouraging Studies

The Company has introduced
different incentive systems such
as “Training Allowance System”
and “Reimbursement of Expenses
on Books” etc, to encourage
all staff members to engage in
advanced learning and self-studying.
Meanwhile, the Company has set
up an “Internal Tutor Allowance
System” in order to encourage
employees to teach in their spare
time and share with other colleagues
their professional knowledge and
skills. Now the Company has an
internal tutor team of 50 members.
Through different incentive policies,
the Company has been able to
secure a continuous introduction and
assimilation of new knowledge within
the Company and thus the capabilities
of our staff and the Company have
been continuously improved.

Sustainable Development in
Management Skills

The Company has attached much
importance on the cultivation of
talents. For employees with great
potential, the Company proactively
offers them training opportunities,
including the management skills
training programs mentioned above.
Meanwhile, the Company also
specifically formulates appropriate
personal training programs for
employees to address their future
career development direction in view
to equip and prepare them for higher
level management positions. These
plans do not only help improving
the overall ability of our staff, but
also present the long-term plan of
the Company to ensure sustainable
development.
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University Graduates Training Scheme

This scheme has been carried
out for several years to provide
university graduates of China and
Hong Kong with the progressive
and comprehensive on-the-job
training. Batches of trainees have
experienced the actual working
environment in the industrial industry
by receiving practical training in
our plants. Through the scheme,
the Group endeavors to nurture
talents of all varieties. Since 2004,
the Company has already arranged
different placement programs for,
among others, project engineers and
merchandisers. The recruitment and
selection of a new batch of university
graduates (project engineers) was also
carried out this year.

Short-term Placement Program

Adhering to the principle of “what
comes from the society shall be used
for the benefits of the society”, the
Company proactively offers short-term
placement opportunities for students
so that they can gain work experience
and understand the actual working
environment in both Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Since 2006, many
placement positions available for the
Short-term Placement Program have
been provided by the Company to
university students of Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company launched
the Hong Kong Student Mainland
Placement Program in 2007, and
introduced the summer internship
program for staff's children in
2008. The main objective of this
program is to let our staff's children
experience the joy and hardship at
work, to understand their parents’
working environment and to enhance
communication between the
employees and their children.
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Scheme for Mainland University
Students

As the business of the Company
expands, our fourth plant was
completed in Yixing, Jiangsu Province
at the end of 2007. Meanwhile,
the Company cooperated with local
tertiary institutions and recruited
in aggregate 65 intern students
from universities in Yixing since the
beginning of 2008. These students
were sent to our Fenggang Plant in
Dongguan for an internship of 18
months. In accordance to the human
resource plan of the Company and
the personal preference of each
intern student, the Company has
formulated detailed and practical
learning plans for these students, and
thus developed a pool of prospective
employees for the Company who are
willing to learn and work diligently
and possess good attributes. This will
benefit the long-term development of
the Company.

Volunteer Training Programs

In order to encourage the employees
of the Company to undertake
volunteering initiatives on an on-going
basis, training programs covering
skills relating to project preparation,
communication, leadership and
training are held regularly so that
participants can organize a volunteer
activity independently. Our purpose is
to promote and encourage employees
to become an all-purpose volunteer.
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“Torch Project” Youth Technical
Personnel Training Programs
organized by VTC Plastics and Tooling
Technology Development Centre

On 13 August 2009, a tour for
students from the Polytechnic
University and the Vocational Training
Council (VTC) was organized by the
Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers
Association to visit production plants
in Mainland China. Through the site
visit, students studying similar subjects
at different universities in Hong Kong
had an opportunity to interact with
each other. These students became
more familiar with the working
conditions and production process of
the manufacturing industry, and more
confident to join the manufacturing
sector in the future. More than 30
graduating students participated in
this activity.

Intellectual Capital Management
(ICM) Consultancy Program

These on-site consultant services are
specially designed for Hong Kong
organizations and jointly launched by
the Hong Kong Intellectual Property
Department, the Innovation and
Technology Commission and the
Department of Trade and Industry
Organization. The ICM Consultants
visited our Company and provided
the following advices: creating the
best environment for organizations
to create value and build internal
networks; helping organizations in
obtaining knowledge of ICM and
providing free consultancy services to
help organizations in the application
of ICM tools to maximize their
business potential and to compete
effectively in the market; helping
organizations to strengthen their
business management, so as to
improve productivity and ensure
sustainable development.
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The Group always attaches much
importance to industrial safety. In
addition to offering appropriate
training and carrying out investigation
into violations of production safety
standard and procedure, it has
increased investment on safety
equipment annually to improve
the working conditions and avoid
occurrence of accidents. The relevant
measures have proved to be quite
effective. For example, the number
of work-related injuries has been
declining for several consecutive years
and is being kept to a low level while
the Group does not have any serious
work-related injury record in the
work-related impairment assessment.

Participate In the Upgrading Programs
for Hong Kong Enterprises In
Dongqguan

In order to enhance its
competitiveness, the Company
participated in “DG TURN" program
organized by Dongguan Foreign Trade
& Economic Cooperation Bureau
and the Hong Kong Productivity
Council in June 2010. Based on
experts’ on-site assessment and
analysis, the Company was able to
solve the problems it encountered
in the process of upgrading and
implementing effective improvement.
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Strictly following the standard of the 1SO14001
environment management system, the Group has
always been paying attention to environmental
protection in its production process, and has passed a
series of site supervision and certificate verification. Mr.
Edward Yau, JP, Secretary for Hong Kong Environment
Bureau, is presenting the certificate of “Guangdong-
Hong Kong Cleaner Production Partnership
(manufacturing)” to the Group.

(VI) Ensuring green production and environmental

protection

To stay competitive, the Group could no longer
depend on the production mode with high energy
consumption but low economic efficiency. Low-
carbon and environment-friendly production is
one of the important missions of the Group. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and CEO of the Group,
also shared the Company’s experience in practicing
environmental protection, energy efficiency
measures and cleaner production in his interview
with journalists. The key measures are as follows:
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Actively participated in Cleaner Production
Partnership Program promoted by the
Environmental Protection Department of
Hong Kong Government

During the year, the Company participated in
the site evaluation projects under the Cleaner
Production Partnership Program and assessed
its plants for the possible implementation of
measures in promoting energy saving, low-
emission and lower consumption production
model; and launched some proposed and
feasible cleaner production improvement
plans.

In addition, the Company also participated in
the certified improvement projects under the
Cleaner Production Partnership Program and
evaluated the effectiveness of the projects
implemented under the energy saving &
emission reduction plan.

On 18 September 2009, at the invitation
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council
(Shenzhen), the Company attended the
seminar introducing “Cleaner Production
Partnership Program” as the representative
of the cleaner production enterprises. At the
seminar, Mr. Ho Kai Man, Chairman of the
Company’s Energy Committee presented and
shared the experience of the Company in
practicing cleaner production.

To allow other companies to further
understand how companies implement
cleaner production, on 20 January 2010,
Fenggang Castfast Industrial Factory of
Karrie Group in Dongguan was invited by
Hong Kong Productivity Council to organize
a visit at the manufacturing facility of
Karrie Group for Good Cleaner Production
Factory Tour Group. This site visit helped
visiting manufacturers to better understand
the cleaner production technology and its
effectiveness and encouraged the visiting
manufacturers to implement cleaner
production.
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National Cleaner Production Auditor

In order to implement the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Promotion
of Cleaner Production” and the “Interim
Procedures for Cleaner Production Audits”,
and to help the Company in conducting
a thorough cleaner production audits and
strengthening the construction of a team of
cleaner production auditors, the Company
recommended some employees to obtain
the national qualification in March 2010,
so that the Company could carry out
cleaner production in line with the nation’s
development in future.

Conducted energy audits

As the nation began to give more weight
to energy efficiency and energy audits of
enterprises, the Company engaged CLP
Power Hong Kong Limited to conduct an
energy audit on its plants in May 2010 so
as to attain efficient and sustainable growth
and improve the energy efficiency and
consumption of water and electricity.

Invited by the Guangdong Association of
Environmental Protection Industry to share
experiences

In the first half of 2010, the Company was
invited to participate in the compilation
of "A Collection of Achievements in
Construction of Resource-conserving
and Environment-friendly Society”
edited by the Guangdong Association of
Environmental Protection Industry (under
the guidance of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Guangdong Province) sharing
the experiences in clean production and
environmental protection. The book will be
published in this October.
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Earth Hour

In order to act in concert with the global call
for an “Earth Hour” advocated by World
Wide Fund for Nature (WWF), during the
period from 8:30 pm to 9:30 pm on 17
March 2010, all the unnecessary lights were
turned off in our office building in Hong
Kong and plants in Mainland China to spread
the message of Earth Hour to our staff. By
introducing the theme of “lights are turned
off but our consciousness is being lit up”,
we aimed to enlighten the environmental
awareness of our staff through this
meaningful activity, and to achieve a low-
carbon living and foster a good civil life habit
in their daily lives.

Meanwhile, the Group also adopted the
energy-saving measures as follows:

o starting to install the plastic injection
moulding machines in which the
magnetic induction heating method
was applied, thereby saving 55% of
electricity consumption.

o starting the test to explore the
possibility to replace diesel pumps
with electric heating pumps.

° testing the energy-saving equipment
used in the variable pumps of plastic
injection moulding machines in our
plants.

o replacing the energy-saving light tubes
with energy-saving incandescent lights
to illuminate the stairwells.

] energy economizers were applied in
84 sets of 5-horsepower cabinet air
conditioners since early June, thereby
electricity consumption was saved
at rates between 4.37% to 20.23%
(depending on the environment).
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(VIl) Sustaining development of the Group and
winning public recognition

The Group adhered to the doctrine of “high
aspiration makes strong practitioners”. By earnestly
fulfilling its well elaborated vision, the Group gained
industry-wide recognition.

>

”

Awarded the “1st Manpower Developer
logo

In April 2010, the Company was awarded
the “1st Manpower Developer” title by
the Employees Retraining Board under the
Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region with recognition of
our effort in the implementation of “Talent
Training and Development” over the years.
Meanwhile, Karrie was the only enterprise
in the hardware and plastic products
manufacturing industry that had received
accreditation among the eighty award-
winning enterprises.

Awarded the “Hong Kong - Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partnership” logo

In order to acclaim the efforts and
achievements of factories operated by Hong
Kong investors in the implementation of
clean production, the Environment Bureau
of HKSAR and the Economic and Trade
Commission of Guangdong Province jointly
launched the “Hong Kong - Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partnership” recognition
scheme, whereby the certificate of “Hong
Kong - Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partnership (Manufacturing Sector)” title was
granted to the enterprises that proactively
participated in such scheme and with
excellent performance in clean production,
with a view to encourage them to implement
clean production step by step and constantly,
and to share successful experiences with
their peers.
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On 25 November 2009, Mr. Ho Kai Man,
Chairmen of the Energy-saving Committee
of the Company, attended the “Hong
Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partnership” logo presentation ceremony,
which was jointly organized by the Economic
and Information Technology Commission of
Guangdong Province and the Environment
Bureau of HKSAR. The Company was one
of the forty-three enterprises awarded
the “Hong Kong - Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partnership” logo in Guangdong
Province.

> Awarded Caring Company 2005/10 logo for
five consecutive years

The Company has been awarded the “Caring
Company” logo for five consecutive years
since 2005 by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service, as recognition of our
contribution to the society and our effort to
create a harmonious society.

CONCLUSION

In addition to 1SO14001 environmental management
system certification, the Group also introduced in 2010
the Electronic Industry Code of Conduct into our company
management system, the management system (including
labour, environmental protection, occupational health
and safety, business ethics etc.) is tending more complete.
Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition (“EICC") is an
alliance consisting of international leading manufacturers
and large electronic and electrical enterprises, and is set up
for the purpose of making some rules (such as Electronic
Industry Code of Conduct) to guide the enterprises to
fulfil corporate social responsibility and to improve the
working environment and conditions in electronic industry
accordingly, and it also urges the manufacturing industry
to take responsibility for environmental protection. The
contents of the Code focus on labour, occupational
healthy and safe, environmental protection, business ethics
and management system. In compliance with the relevant
requirements and rules and to make independent audit,
the Group has established an ad hoc group to conduct
the relevant trainings and other assignments such as
corresponding rectification and internal audit. The Group
has adopted this globally optimized code of conduct, and
the management team has formulated guidelines that help
the Group in implementing such code of conduct.

RZZEZENF+—AZ+HBEA
B Z B e X EARBSUEERFA
BRELEMEZEBLNEZEGRES
BNRRRESENR [BHER
BN IZEBEREE . BB A
ERAAE BB FREENH]
Heh — S8 % -

> T EESE R EEE
2005/10125%

BE-_TERFEARREBRLFR
SEBLERGHERE THAR
BE] R UEEARRREHLSE
EHHER R FEHRT S -

AREBEKRTEEISO401REERE ZRARE
I BER BT FREECCETITETALE
AIBARRERRZG  FEEBRKBRS4ST -
RR - BELRRE HEEEEAMEBT
BoBFITELAREE ([EICC)) THEBIFR KRB
REAAEFREROEMAKOEE - UG
FTEBLEASEAN —LEE (EFTENT
AZEERD) MR BEFTEPNIERER
1§14 - BB BEREL T  BELZEREE R
R EEEELREERRSHEE REZHEE
DR MER| WETBILEZ  MAEEBERK
VEENME - URASHBEHRE 2B - HE
BURANLEZETIIE AEEERPNEZIK
BEBITRER  WHERBEL T HiTHE
SEEETRAEREE -

71



72

Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1M BBRAE) o Annual Report 2009/10 G4

Corporate Governance Report ¥ B8R ESE

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (the “Year”),
the Group has applied the principles of the recently
promulgated Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied
with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
CG Code, save for deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the
said deviations from the CG Code.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2010, the Board consisted of
seven Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman
and Chief Operating Officer) and Mr. Lee
Shu Ki as executive Directors; Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming as a non-executive Director and Mr.
So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs.
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The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products
and services. The Board is collectively
responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group;
monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the
standard of corporate governance of the
Group. It also makes decisions on matters
such as approving the annual results, interim
results and quarterly operational review,
connected transactions, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, declaring dividends
and adopting accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met five times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2009, quarterly operational review
and interim results of the Group for the Year.

1.2

1.3
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1.4

The attendance records of Board meetings

held during the Year are set out below:

Attendance of individual Directors at

Board meetings during the Year

UTRAFEEEESHRNHFL

FEEESEERMENESHHE
2

No. of attendance/

No. of meetings  Attendance rates

HERE SRR i fE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Bfch e 5/5 100%
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis Pk ER A A 5/5 100%
Mr. Lee Shu Ki RIS E 5/5 100%
Non-executive Directors HHITEFE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming {a] 2R 5 A 5/5 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ FF#77& &
Mr. So Wai Chun ERERESE 5/5 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond FRImaR L& 5/5 100%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing apisEbitas 5/5 100%
Average attendance rate FIGHER 100%

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee
and a remuneration committee. Detailed
descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles,
procedures and arrangements of the Board in
relation to the scheduling and proceeding of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion
of agenda items, records and availability of
minutes.
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2. Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2010, the Board comprises
seven Directors: three executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, the non-executive Director, is
the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board has received annual confirmations
of independence in writing from each of
the independent non-executive Directors
and believed that all the independent non-
executive Directors met the guidelines for
assessment of independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, production
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report.

2.2
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3. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors
3.1 At each annual general meeting of the

3.2

3.3

Company (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by
rotation. The Director, since his last election
or appointment who has been the longest
in office shall retire and be eligible for re-
election at the AGM. The Chairman and/or
the Managing Director of the Group shall
not, when holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into
account in determining the number of
Directors to retire in each year. With the
introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2010, non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming)
including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements
of retirement by rotation and re-election by
Shareholders at the AGM in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”).

The names and biographical details of
the Directors who will offer themselves
for election or re-election at the forth
coming AGM are set out in the circular to
Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making
an informed decision on their elections.

3.
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3.1

3.2

3.3
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3.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the experience and skills of
the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During
the Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the re-
appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance. Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2010, the Company had applied
the principles and complied with the requirements
set out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except the following:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company
does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr.
Ho") currently holds both positions.
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Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has
substantial experience in the manufacturing
industry. At the same time, Mr. Ho has the
appropriate skills and business acumen which are
the pre-requisites for assuming the role of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows the Group to be more effective and
efficient in developing long-term business strategies
and execution of business plans. The Board
considers that there is no need to segregate the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Ho shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

According to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive
Director should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as non-executive Director on 1 June
2007 without a specific term but Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming is subject to retirement by rotation according
to the Bye-laws of the Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 stipulated that
every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, the number nearest to one-third but
not greater than one-third shall retire from office
provided that notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s bye-laws, the Chairman of the Directors
and/or the Managing Director of the Company
shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in
each year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
should hold office only until the next following
AGM and would then be eligible for re-election.
With the introduction of the CG Code and to
comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Group will voluntarily retire at the annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every
three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.
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The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate

governance.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

1. Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a year. It
is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and comprises
two other members, namely Mr. Chan Sui
Sum, Raymond and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business by the RC is two.

The principal responsibilities of RC are to
formulate remuneration policy of the Group,
review and make recommendations to
the Board in respect of the remuneration
policy and to determine the remuneration
of the executive Directors and the senior
management.

The RC met once during the Year with an
attendance rate of 100% and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff.

2. Audit Committee (“AC")

2.1

The AC’s membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2010:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing; and

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.
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2.2

2.3

The operations of the AC are regulated by
its terms of reference. The main duties of the
AC include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly operational
review, interim and annual results of
the Group;

o to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control which
involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business
process; and

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance and risk
management.

The AC met two times during the Year with
an attendance rate of 100% and reviewed
the interim results of the Group for the Year
and the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2009. The AC had also
reviewed the Group’s audited annual results
of the Year. The Company Secretary of the
Company keeps all minutes of the AC.

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

1.1

The Company has adopted a Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Group (the “Company’'s Model Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

2.2

2.3
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Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, they have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out
in both the Company’s Model Code and the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2010.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

1.1

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group's position and
prospects and extending the coverage
of such information to include annual,
interim and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control system to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
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During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes
and budget.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the Audit
Committee. The responsible Department Heads will
be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’s external
auditor HK$1,580,000 for audit services of
the Group and for non-audit related services
approximately HK$260,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service fees.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Company strives to convey to
Shareholders pertinent information in a
clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration
their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders concerned. Their
views are communicated to the Board
comprehensively.
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The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication
of annual, interim reports, results
announcements and releases. All
communications to Shareholders are also
available on the Company's website at
www.karrie.com.hk.

We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders on all general meetings.
The AGM provides a useful platform for
Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according
to the Listing Rules. The chairman of the
meeting will therefore demand a poll for
every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-Laws.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Results announcement

As from January 2009, the Company had
discontinued its current practice of adopting
quarterly results announcement. Annual
reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
Company can still provide the Shareholders
and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.
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3.

Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual
results released via teletext. Briefing for
analysts by way of presentation at luncheons,
receptions or telephone conferences are
organized thereafter. During the briefing, the
Group’s management provides an in-depth
analysis of the Group's performances in
respect of the relevant periods and ensures
that the financial performance and accounts
of the Group are well understood. There is
also ample opportunity for the analysts and
media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the
Group has been arranging tea-break with
individual investors to build up an interactive
and direct communication channel. This
allows individual investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Group would give an update about the
status of the Group’s development and share
of their feelings toward the Group.

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and
the latest news of the Group’s developments
on its Company's website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 64, was appointed as a
Director of the Company in October 1996 and is
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company as well as the founder of the Group. Prior
to founding the Group in 1980, Mr. Ho had over
10 years' experience in factory management and in
running operations specialised in manufacturing plastic,
metal and electronic products. He is responsible for
the Group’s overall corporate strategies and objectives.
He is also a director of New Sense Enterprises Limited,
a corporate substantial shareholder of the Company,
and the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-
executive Director and the husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu,
who is a member of management team.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized
by the academic. He was awarded with fellow
membership of the Asian Knowledge Management
Association in September of 2003 and Honorary
Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration and Honorary Doctorate in Management
by Lincoln University in April of 2007. He was
appointed as a part-time professor at the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China in Sichuan,
Chengdu.

Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Political
Consultative Conference in January 2008 and was
reappointed as a member of 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province in January 2007. He was also
awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. Mr. Ho
currently participates in affairs of different associations,
which include Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers
Association, China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Overseas Friendship Association
of Dongguan, Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Hebei Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association, Hong Kong Hebei Association
Ltd, Jiangsu Yixing Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Promotion United Association, Hong Kong Jiangsu
Exchange Promotion Association, The Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’'s Association and
Dongguan University of Technology Education
Foundation of Dongguan City.
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Mr. KWOK Wing Kin, Francis, aged 48, was appointed
as a Director of the Company in October 2000, and is
a Deputy Chairman and the Marketing Director as well
as Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group.
Mr. Kwok was re-designated as a Deputy Chairman and
a Chief Operational Officer as well as Convener of the
Executive Committee of the Group with effect from 1
January 2008. Mr. Kwok graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a diploma in business management.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, Mr. Kwok had ten
years' experience in plastic manufacturing sector and
procurement work in electronics manufacturing sector.

Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 54, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in December 1997, and is the Financial
Controller and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group’s Accounting Department. Mr.
Lee graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
higher diploma in accountancy and is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. He
has over 25 years' accounting and financial management
experience in manufacturing businesses. Mr. Lee joined the
Group in June 1995.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 56, was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
1 June 2007. He was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and
was a Deputy Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as
well as the Convener of the Executive Committee of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall supervision of the
Group’s operation business. He joined the Group in 1980
and has over 20 years’ experience in factory production.
He is also the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one
of the executive Directors, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and the brother-in-law
of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is a member of the management
team.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 70, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptish
University in the United States with a bachelor degree
in Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience
in the construction industry. He is also a director of Exalt
International Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2004. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and management. He holds a master
degree in professional accounting, a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration and a higher diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 61, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years' experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible
for supervising personnel and overall administration of the
Group. She is also the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is
one of the executive Directors, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and sister-in-law of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director.
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Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 38, is the General
Manager — Human Resources and Administration of the
Group and responsible for the overall operation of human
resources, administration and EDP department of the
Group. Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive
Committee and Internal Audit Committee of the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong
Kong majoring in Public Administration and Management.
She joined the Group in 1996 and has over 10 years’
experience in administration and management.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 43, is the Senior Marketing
Director of the Group and an observer of the Executive
Committee, responsible for the Group's marketing
development related work. He joined the Group in 1985
and has over 15 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 52, is the General Manager
of TIS Technologies (H.K.) Ltd., a joint venture company
of the Group responsible for general operation and
management of TIS as from 1 November 2009. Prior to
this appointment, he was the Marketing Director of the
Group, responsible for project development and marketing
for the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 1988 and he
had over 30 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 45, is the General Manager
— Production Operation and Quality of the Group and an
observer of the Executive Committee. Mr. Chan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate
in Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group
in 1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years' experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 45, is the Assistant General
Manager at the Group’s factories in China and an observer
of the Executive Committee, responsible for the overall
personnel and administration management. She joined
the Group in 1984 and has over 18 years’' experience
in managing the production process of manufacturing
industries and 8 years’ experience in overall personnel and
administration management.

REKNE - =+ )\ AEBEANEREIT
BEEE  AEANER  TTHREEMBZE
BEE - RNMAREBERTZ B AT
BHEEGINE - RNMNARBTEUHARE
¥ FEAHTHRER - R —ANAREN
AREE  BEATFTBRRERELR -

RBXEE W+ =m AKESAHHEE
FRITRZEEGIERE  AEKEMISEKA
B BR-NANAFMARER  HEAE+I
FHEMMGHERLR

IPERE AT B-TTAF+—A
—HBEETEERARIRAMK (B ERA
Al (TR 858 AERRCEBREENRE
B BUERTAMAAREMSRE  AEAR
EEREREMGER TERER—NNANEF
MARSEI FEHE = T FHE RN HHERL

RERLE OTHER - AKELEEEFEESR
EREENMITRESIEKE - RELEER
REBETSR CABEBETRE)  H5HH
ETRSARE - BR AL -ZFMAXEE
Al - AR+t ="FREFRE/ANREERE

mAR/NE - W+RRK - AEEFTERKE &
BB NMITEZEGIEKE  AEBRRAAE
FITHREREE - TR —NAN\EFMAKRE
CBEABTNFREEXLERFERLR
RNEANERITHREREELR



Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1A BBRAE] o Annual Report 2009/10 G4

Senior Management Profile SR EEAEZBAER

Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 58, is the Senior
Internal Audit Manager of the Group, responsible for
setting up internal audit procedure and reporting directly
to the Board and the Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong
graduated from Curtin University of Technology, WA with
a bachelor degree in Management and Marketing. He
also holds a master degree of Accounting from the same
University. He is a fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants, UK and is an associate member
of CPA Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 10 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

Mr. HA Hon Leung, aged 50, is the Technical Director
of the Engineering and R&D Department, responsible
for managing engineering capabilities and project
development. Mr. Ha holds a bachelor degree from The
University of Windsor, Canada, and a master degree from
The University of Waterloo, Canada, both in Electrical
Engineering. He also holds a master degree in business
administration from Heriot-Watt University, UK. Mr. Ha
has over 20 years’ experience in engineering and technical
management in the electronics industry.

Mr. CHEUNG Pui Kuen, aged 49, is the General Manager
of Supply Chain Management of the Group, responsible
for the overall operation of the Group’s supply chain
management and logistics system. Mr. Cheung graduated
from The Loughborough University of Technology,
United Kingdom with a bachelor degree in Aeronautical
Engineering and Design. He also holds a master degree in
Industrial Engineering and Industrial Management from the
University of Hong Kong, master degree in Global Supply
Chain Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and master degree in business administration
from Upper lowa University, USA. Mr. Cheung rejoined
the Group in 2008. He has over 20 years’ experience in
manufacturing engineering and supply chain management.

Mr. LEUNG Kwok Ming, Daniel, aged 44, is the
General Manager of System Integration of the Group,
responsible for system integration and factory operational
management. Mr. Leung graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering and a master degree in Mechatronics. He
joined the Group in June 2009. He has over 10 years’
experience in global procurement engineering and over 10
years' operational management experience in factory of
electronics and system integration products.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of computer casings, office automation products,
moulds, plastic and metal parts (together referred to as
“Metal and Plastic Business”) and provision of electronic
manufacturing services business (“EMS Business”).

The Group’s turnover by principal product category and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended to pay a final dividend of HK1
cent (2008/09: HK1.5 cents) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 3 September 2010. Together with the interim
dividend, total dividend paid for this year amounted to
HK1 cent (2008/09: HK 1.5 cents) per share.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 117 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 17 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the Company's reserves of
approximately HK$242,034,000 representing the
contributed surplus and retained profit were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$86,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the Year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 and was
subsequently amended on 4 August 2006 to comply with
the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
effected on 1 September 2001. Details of the New Scheme
are summarised herein below:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity
(as defined in the New Scheme);
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The participants of the New Scheme include any
employee, director (including executive and non-
executive director of the Group), shareholder,
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, other service
provider, partner and business or strategic alliance
partner of the Group or any Invested Entity (as
defined in the New Scheme) or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any of the
above persons;

The total number of shares that may be issued
by the Company if all options granted under the
New Scheme have been exercised is 30,200,000,
which represents 5.23% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this report;

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company at the date of adoption of the
New Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed, shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit by the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time;

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no participants shall be granted any
option if the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to such participant in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital in issue for the time
being and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme at any time during
a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
at its sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
or a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised,;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted under the New Scheme is
determined based on a formula: P = N x Ep, where
“P" is the subscription price; “N" is the number of
shares to be subscribed; and "Ep” is the exercise
price of the highest of (a) the nominal value of a
share in the Company on the date of grant; (b)
the closing price of shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (c)
the average of the closing prices of shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the New
Scheme; and

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date of the New
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRERE ()
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Etdl (&)
(x) Details of share option movements during the Year x) BEFFERAEETZERESIHFE
under the New Scheme are as follows: LU
Number of Share Options
EREHA
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before  exercise Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March
Name Grant  Price Period grant  options 2009  theYear  the Year  the Year 2010
RERE RERE —ZTAE —E-ZF
BitiAA ¥ =A=1t-0 RFEE REAFE RFEE =A=t-H
2] RUEAH TRE s ZE# 2B EATR ERT T &%/BE  EEROE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(B7) (#7) (#7) (F) (F) (F) (%) (F)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
BEZRERTHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - - 450 - - 450
fIEHEE 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 450 - - 450
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - - 600 - - 600
04/03/2020
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis  05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - - 900 - - 900
PKEEE 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 900 - - 900
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - - 1,200 - - 1,200
04/03/2020
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - - 630 - - 630
TR 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 630 - - 630
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - - 840 - - 840
04/03/2020
Ms. Ho Po Chu 05/03/2010 0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - - 270 - - 270
S 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 270 - - 270
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - - 360 - - 360
04/03/2020
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) ERESTE (#8)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Etdl (&)
x)  (Cont'd) x) (%)
Number of Share Options
BIRESE
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/

before  exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at31 March during during during at 31 March

Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2009  theYear  the Year  the Year 2010
REBRE RBRE —BINF ZE-%F
R AA kA ZA=+-B WEFE REFE REEE ZA=1-H
#E RERH fHE yid Bt ZBR  HETR BT T XM/ HAAE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) (000) (‘'000) (000) (000)
() (&) (&) (F) () (%) (F) (f)
Mr. Ho Kai Man 050322010 055  01/12/2010- 054 - - 90 - - 90
s 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 90 - - 0
04/03/2020
050032010 055  01/07/2012- 054 - - 120 - - 120
04/03/2020

(i) Other Eligible Participants

EthAER2EE
Employees 05/032010 0.5 01/12/2010- 0.54 - - 7175 - - 7175
&8 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - - 6,525 - - 6,525
04/03/2020
05/032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - - 8,700 - - 8,700

04/03/2020
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd) B8 (2)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Etdl (&)
(xiy  Details of share option movements during the xiy WREFFAENR-_ZT-—ZTFHNA-—ABEZ
period between 1 April 2009 to 30 June 2010: T-ZEFNA=ZTHILEZEREZESF
BT
Number of Share Options
BREHA
Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during during during
Closing the period the period  the period
Price Price at from 1 April from 1 April from 1 April
before  exercise Outstanding 2010 to 2010to 2010 to Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at 31 March 30 June 30 June 30 June at 30 June
Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
ZE-2F -EB-BF C%-%F
WNiERE NERE —T-2F DNA-BZ NA-HE NA-RE -B-%%
R AA A =A=+-A ~A=+A ~A=tHE AA=tA ~A=1A
#E RERH fEE i ZE# 2Bl HETHR BT ff RM/BE  HAGE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
() (&) () (F) () (%) (F) ()
(i)  Directors/Chief Executives
EZRERITHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 0500322010 0.55  01/12/2010- 054 - 450 - - - 450
f=aEsE 04/03/2020
0500322010 055  01/07/2011- 054 - 450 - - - 450
04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2012- 054 - 600 - - - 600
04/03/2020
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis ~ 05/03/2010  0.55  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 900 - - - 900
PBRAE 04/03/2020
050032010 055  01/07/2011- 054 - 900 - - - 900
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 1,200 - - - 1,200
04/03/2020
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 05/03/2010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
SRELE 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 630 - - - 630
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0.55  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 840 - - - 840,
04/03/2020
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) ERESTE (#8)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Etdl (&)
(x)  (Cont'd) xiy (#&)
Number of Share Options

BRERA

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during during during

Closing the period  the period  the period
Price Price at from 1 April from 1 April from 1 April
before  exercise Outstanding 2010 to 2010to 2010 to Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise date of date of at31March ~ 30June  30June  30June at30June
Name Grant  Price Period grant options 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010

“E-3f ZB-Bf "Z-%f
RERE RERE -—2-2F NA-AZ WA-AEZ WMA-AE —E-%f
R AA 78 ZB=+t-B ~B=tE A~A=1tH AA=tH RAE=tH

2 REAH THE Es PAEL 2B EATE ERT T &%/BE  EEROE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) (000) ('000) (000) (000)
(%7) (B7) (%) (%) (F) (F) (%) (F)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 05/032010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
MEGTL 04/03/2020
05/032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 270 - - - 270
04/03/2020
05/032010 0.5  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 360 - - - 360
04/03/2020
Mr. Ho Kai Man 05/032010 0.5  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 90 - - - 90
L 04/03/2020
05032010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 90 - - - 90
04/03/2020
05/032010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 120 - - - 120
04/03/2020

(i) Other Eligible Participants

bR ER2EE
Employees 05/03/2010 055  01/12/2010- 0.54 - 7175 - . (54) 7121
E8 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 055  01/07/2011- 0.54 - 6,525 - - (54) 6,471
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 055  01/07/2012- 0.54 - 8,700 - - (72) 8,628

04/03/2020




98

Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1M BBRAE) o Annual Report 2009/10 G4

Report of the Directors EE 2R &

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited in the year
of 2009/10 to perform a valuation of the share options
granted under the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the cost of share-based transactions should
be recognised as an expense over the period from the date
of grant until they are exercisable by the receiver of such
payment. The expense required to be reported for share
options granted on or before 31 March 2010 would be
estimated as follows:

BRESTE (@)
#atd (&)

—BEERERRAR_ZZN, —TFEEH
AR AR BEBEMER -

RIEB BV IEREERE 5% ([ F PR
2])  BRERREBBENRATFEEREBNE
mEINEG BT HERIR,R - BH
RZE—ZFTF=ZA=+—BaUAREAOER
REFTEAMIBRIR T HEFmmT -

Financial Year

BB
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total

&t
P&L expenses (HK$'000) 419 4,700 1,588 299 7,006

Bk (F787T)

Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement are determined with the
Trinomial Model valuation model based on the following
assumptions:

Date of valuation CEER=R:G

Date of grant RHAH

Option value RIHEEE

Market price at date of grant PR A ZTSER
Exercisable price 1TEE

Risk-free interest rate e P

Life of options AR A BF H

Expected Volatility (120 months) FEERK & (1201& )

Expected Dividend yield TEERE AR S

RiZEBRaRTHRZEERREERIIRE
AT BRERSLIR=IAA BT HE

05 Mar 2010 —E—ZF=AFAH
05 Mar 2010 —ZE—ZF=ATHR
HK$0.223-HK$0.244 7B#50.223-75%0.244

HK$0.55 &#0.55

HK$0.55 #&#0.55

2.68% 2.68%

10 years +4F
50.73% 50.73%

2.78% 2.78%
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

There are several relevant measures that may be considered
to assess the financial impact of the share option schemes,
including the expense of share-based transactions under
generally accepted financial reporting standards (e.g.,
HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based transactions is
attributed over the period from the original transaction
date (i.e., grant date) to the date when the recipient’s
entitlement to the payment has been fully realized (i.e.,
vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

The result of the Trinomial Model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the
options due to limitations of the Trinomial Model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the Year and the expense of share-based transactions
under HKFRS2 requirement, the Trinomial option pricing
model has been used. The Trinomial Model is one of the
generally most accepted methods used to calculate the
value of options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the Trinomial Model include the risk free
rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger price multiple.
The risk free rate has made reference to the yield Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date. The dividend yield makes
reference to the dividend history and it is assumed that the
grantee will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last ten financial years is set out on page
191 of this annual report.

BRESTE (@)
#atd (&)

REABEAETNANLEEAEFEBERE
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MRZNBEH - ERAERN XX ZH
HEXHAeREEEEHA (AR BF
ER) #sH -

BHRBERRKBELKE R - I B IRRA
NS B B R TR HA R 2OK B K 1) fa] TR B &
L ARERGH -  TBRBARKNEF A8
BEFEMATNAAER-

i A BRREIRES  EUBREFE=AAR
AR BMEEENEREENRER=ZEARN
ER R G A BN B A AT E -

FEVBEIRE TEAFEARND AR
ZOEBHNER=ZBEAREFG - =1BRX
BN ERRREEELBRN NN ZNE
AXHRAERBEMNITTEZ— -

“EABR 2YBREBRE 2 EEARF X
REmmE - RBTEBREMNER KBS EFR
Z-BEARNEDNZ2BEBIINEESCRE 2O
HE - REEBRIRREBBELCEEBR
REEBRIB X ETERRITERBRE -

B
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 8 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 are set out in Notes 19 to the financial
statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman &
Chief Operational Officer)

Mr. Lee Shu Ki

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for specific terms and hold office until 30 June 2011, 4
February 2011 and 6 December 2010, respectively, subject
to extension.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Bye-
laws and A.4.2. of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices, Messrs. So Wai Chun and Chan Sui Sum will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All such Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

BEEEHN
AREER  ARARBERBEREBEREFMEX
EBZERRITRIFETLEMNGL - TERF
BHEAH
B B 7]

ARABEMBRARZFHE  BRTHRKRM T
80

TTEREEX
AEER-_ZT-ZTF=-_A=1+—H2ZBTEXK
BE BN BHRERME19 -

BExg

iiEW&@§$¢ﬁE%¢’EEZ§$m
HITES

ISR (LB FTHARE)

HKEREE (BIFEHREEHEH)

FRIFEL

FHTES

GEEEPHES

BUYFHTES
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fRIm R4
AL

PN/ ﬂﬁi#ﬁﬁ%%ZE%ﬂ%%ﬁi%é
T EEES IR = géifﬂz/\ﬂ +H8 -
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o IEEARR AN ©

BRBANRERMAIE7TIRMAT - #RERLE
MR EERREGRITZRRBFEAE £
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on 17
November 2009, a new lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) dated 16 November 2009 was entered into
between Kings Lion Development Limited (“Kings Lion”)
as landlord and Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“Karrie
Industrial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with one car parking space in the same
building at a monthly rental of HK$132,865 (that is, at
approximately HK$5 per square foot) for a term of two
years commencing on 18 November 2009.

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his spouse, control 100% of the voting power in general
meeting and also control the board of Directors of Kings
Lion. The transaction contemplated under the Lease
Agreement (the “Lease Transaction”) therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Lease Transaction have been set out in the announcement
dated 16 November 2009 issued to the shareholders of
the Company.

EEZRBER

ARRYEEFENRRBFASG LEREETZ
EZFVEMAIAIR - FABHARREEL L
ZRBAEK CEERERRS)

EENEN 2=

2R A) E E Y B A B AN 6 P A f) B D R
RGP RARRZEBMARRESTEZKME
BERBEANG EEZARL -

EREERER _ZETZAF+—A++tBHm
o SIMBEEAERAR ([SM)) (BEA) B
FMERERRAR (ZFMERD (ARFIZE2E
MEBAR) (FZBA) R_ZZAF+—A+<
BRI AZES LA AK611-6195F 8/ T
XRXRENEHRDEE GREEEF26,573F 75
W) BERIZEMRZAE THBEMTZHAE
& ((HEH=zE]) - AM132,865%8 T (A&
EHRL5ETT) 0 AHME  HEBA-ZZTA
F+—A+/\Bist -

BIECETRB) F14AF - AR Q T 2
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THIHZ R AE100% R ERERHEES o
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MRAD F+HAZEE = FIHFBRARE 2
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AR-ZZETAF+—A+ABEREZELZA
A o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

On 10 July 2008 (Hong Kong time), Karrie Technologies
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the
“Shareholders’ Agreement”) with Sagem Communications
SAS (“Sagem”) for the establishment of a joint venture,
Sagem Karrie Technologies (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “JVCO"). The JVCO entered into a servicing
agreement (“Sagem Servicing Agreement”) and a supply
agreement (“Sagem Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.
The technical services to be provided by Sagem under the
Sagem Servicing Agreement encourages technical support
services in relation to technology qualification, required
certification, product safety, etc. The products to be
delivered by the JVCO to Sagem under the Sagem Supply
Agreement include multi-function fax printers, TS and TT
fax machines, related PCBA and associated spare parts,
which will be supplied by the JVCO to Sagem.

Following the completion of the Shareholders’” Agreement,
the JVCO will become an indirect 60% owned subsidiary
of the Company. By virtue of its 40% interests in the
JVCO, Sagem will become a substantial shareholder of
the Company at subsidiary’s level and hence a connected
person of the Company. The transactions contemplated
under each of the Sagem Servicing Agreement and
the Sagem Supply Agreement will therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those
transactions have been set out in the circular dated 11
August 2008 issued to the shareholders of the Company.

On 5 February 2009, the Company entered into the
raw materials purchase agreement (the “Raw Materials
Purchase Agreement”) and the products supply agreement
(the “Products Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.

It was originally intended that the Sagem Supply
Agreement would replace the existing supply arrangement
with Sagem (the “Existing Supply Arrangement”) after
all the orders committed thereunder had been delivered
and completed by the end of 2008. However, as the
production equipment and machinery in the factory will be
installed in phases, the JVCO will not be able to commence
full operations until January 2010 to take over all the
manufacturing activities which would have otherwise
been undertaken by the other members of the Group
under the Existing Supply Arrangement. The Products
Supply Agreement will enable the Group to continue
supplying the Products to Sagem and its subsidiaries (the
“Sagem Group”) after the termination of the Existing
Supply Arrangement but before the JVCO commences full
operations under the Sagem Supply Agreement in January
2010.
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RZZEZENFLA+H (FERRE)  AA7Z
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

It was originally intended that the existing raw materials
purchase arrangement with Sagem (the “Existing Raw
Materials Purchase Arrangement”) would be terminated
as and when Sagem had completed the delivery of all the
orders committed thereunder by the end of 2008, after
which the Group would source raw materials from other
independent third party suppliers. In view of the changing
market conditions, the Group now takes the view that it
is beneficial for the Group to source raw materials from
the Sagem Group instead of sourcing the same from
the independent third party suppliers directly. The Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement will enable the Group
to reduce the administration costs, eliminate the risk of
default of independent third party suppliers and ensure a
reliable supply of raw materials with consistent quality.

The transactions contemplated under each of the Products
Supply Agreement and the Raw Material Purchase
Agreement therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions have been
set out in the circular dated 5 March 2009 issued to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Transaction and confirmed that the Transaction has
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of its business and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Board of Directors engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transaction
on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Related Services 4400 "“Engagements to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported their factual
findings on the selected samples based on the agreed
procedures to the Board of Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2010

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as

R-CE—ZFF=H=+—H

RARBEERESITHRABERR T REM
REEE (BE R (GEH R BAEEND) ([CGEF%
BIY1) BXVEL) &A% (0 K AB B8 R0 P A A A
HERKE  MZEEFZRABRQIEE (EHK
M%ﬁw%&%ﬁﬁZ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%:mm
mﬁ<im@ﬂ§$ﬁ%ﬁﬁx%mﬁ SR
([CRETAD]) BAARNFREEYERS P
BRAR ([BRZFT]) - 00T -

follows:
(A) Interests in the Company () MEATZRER
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BRAEEIEBTZEZBEREE
Corporate/ % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share
interests interests interests interests capital
EERERED
B ARz REREE HithiE s artERE  BRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al pE S A 12,492,000 299,804,000 243,804,000 312,296,000 54.11
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M3E—) (B EE—) (FfzE=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming  {r] 2B 4 13,604,000 — 243,804,000 257,408,000 44.60
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(HzE=) (fFEE=)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, 2Bk B2 4 3,980,000 - ~ 3,980,000 0.69
Francis (Note 4)
(P5Emm)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki A E 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 0.61
(Note 5)
(M=EH)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing  J3/83 5 4 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu (E-$% S 56,000,000 256,296,000 243,804,000 312,296,000 54.11
(Note 6) (Note 6) (Note 2)
(P 5E7S) (FFEE7S) (frsE=)
Notes: PEE
1. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai comprise — U R AL 8 A I B $512,492,0008%
12,492,000 Shares. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be ARElEBBERG - MEBrEwRAsFa
interested in (a) 56,000,000 Shares held by his spouse, (a)E BL (B ] & %ﬁif’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁz
Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 243,804,000 56,000,000 A% 17 + K (b)E ﬁk@zﬁ@?\ﬁ%ﬁ
Shares in which his children under 18 are interested. Such 243,804,000 & 1 THE o ZEREKWIS
243,804,000 Shares in which his children under 18 are B T S 2 243,804, 0008 B {7 E2 (A k=
interested duplicate with his interests as founder of The Ho ﬁﬁ?ﬁi{’ﬁ%Ho FamlIyTrustEUi/\E/\TXM g

Family Trust in the same block of Shares referred to in Note 2
below.

Pt R — SRR e 2 EER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(A)
2.

(B)

(i)

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

243,804,000 Shares are held by New Sense Enterprises
Limited (“New Sense”), the entire issued share capital of
which is owned by Equity Trust (BVI) Limited as trustee for
a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
is deemed to be interested in these 243,804,000 Shares
as founder of The Ho Family Trust. Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are
the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are thus
deemed to be interested in the 243,804,000 Shares held
under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
243,804,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
12,104,000 ordinary shares and 1,500,000 outstanding share
options.

The personal interests of Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
comprise 980,000 ordinary shares and 3,000,000 outstanding
share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise 1,400,000
ordinary shares and 2,100,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
55,100,000 ordinary shares and 900,000 outstanding share
options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in
(a) 10,886,000 shares held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
as beneficial owner and (b) 243,804,000 shares in which her
children under 18 are interested. Such 243,804,000 shares
in which her children under 18 are interested are duplicated
with her interests in the same block of shares referred to in
Note 2 above.

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations

Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL")

() FFEiaBRR

EERRSTRAEZROER (&)
(F) REQARZERE (F)

— - 243,804,0000% % 17 FANew Sense Enterprises
Limited ([New Sensel) 5% - ,H\’\E‘EE%ﬁ
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YEABHo Family TrustZ BISZ A - %BUE
243,804,000 ffn) 7 #E A #E 55 o fa] B
ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁiﬁﬂ)@ﬁif‘ﬁizikﬁ 187
Ho Family Trustz X m A« BE1
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(2) REBEEZERRAR

A ([ FEm])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100E T2 ERZRELEROBE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EEEE
PN FEES Hit s BitERE RBRESE KB FRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
Beyittas (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(HEE—) (fE—) (MEE=) (FHEE—) (M=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
RBHL L (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(B —) (FsE—) (fEE=) (=) (MEE=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated

corporations (Cont’d)

(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL")

EER

= = /=

1T

BAEBZRGER (7)

(2) REBEEZERRXR (&)

FERRERLA ([FERF))

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100ETZERFREEROHE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
Ll EE
BARR REER Hitfi AR KREIL xE ERESHL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
lesE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Bt —) (BfzE—) (M=) (=) (M=)

(i) Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL")

BHREZERER LA ([FZFEES)

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREE1ETZERFREEROEA

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EEEES
(PN 53 R Hithigzs aitiEE BREIWL KB HERESWL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
ieE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(FE—) (fE—) (FfsEm) (FE—) (FizEm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
g%t (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(HE—) (HE—) (FfzEmm) (M=) (Ff5Em)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B)

(iii)

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL") (Cont’d)

Notes:

Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“KIBVI”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred
shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. Accordingly,
KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non-voting
deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Mr. Ho Po Chu have each created short
positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in
the Company; and (i) the interests of their children
under 18 in the Company, as referred to in Notes
1, 2 and 3 under the section headed “(A) Interests
in the Company” above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms.
Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be interested in the
long positions that KIBVI has in these non-voting
deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these non-voting deferred
shares.

The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each.

The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises
10,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each.

The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10
ordinary shares of HK$1 each.

EERRSTRAEZROER (&)

(2) REBEEZERRXR (&)

EFIREHERERL A ([FFRE])
(%)

GEE

— Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
([KIBVI]) » RRRIZEEZEKBA
A] R T AR B R R A 0 S AR Ry
EULTRENER  FENEEET
HEFMBAENEREEELERD - AR
(B EMABE]R L LA LA TR T
REEMSBELEBBE XA KBV
ERERERH2ER - BE  RLEd
(MR ArEl Rl 2MiZ— =k
ZR APIREISHEA T TLEAR
KRR Z R AEBEENAEIRKZ
TEBAHEBEFBKIBVIFZER D 2
oo i F R E ARG LR 5 R
=IHBEER -

= EFEREETRMBHS0,000 K E
E1008 7L 2 BIREIRER D K10 &
METEIE 10078 7T 2 B (5 42 AK o

EERREEEITRMDME10,000F K@
E1008 L BT ERLER M K10 E
JETEIE 10078 7T 2 EmARAR (5 42 AK o

M. ZFRESBTRMOE2ZBREREES

TLZ R ERRIE R R0 R EEN
BT BRI AR
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Report of the Directors EE 2R &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

As at 30 June 2010

There have been no changes in the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and any associated corporations (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
during the period from 1 April 2010 to 30 June 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competes with the business of the Group.

EERRSTRAEZROER (&)

B EXFIREESN  RABIBREFERZESTTEHRA
BYEEEAEARE RERBBEENRND
MR MMEFEBTRNED AR M SHE
o SR B (@R B (R IR G ]) F3521RB TR T
2B MArEcErE  Sk(b)RIE (RS A B A
R MBS o

R-E-—FFEXNA=1H

R_TE—ZFOA-HBE_ZT—ZTFA=T
BHEIfE - ARBSEEFRESTBRAREAR
7 R AT A AR A B &Y B (0 S AR A (0 P R B Y
Bm SRR - Mz FEEMRR@QRE (RS
&P £352{F A T teF 2 B ATRCirE =X
(b1 CIRAEST R WA A R R B 32 Fr - R
BHIRE -

EENBFERB 2 ES

ARREESMEERNEEBRHF 2 XHBF
BRI
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 March 2010 and 30 June 2010

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

FERR

R-E—FF=H=+—HR-F—FFXAH
=+A

UFAT (FEEFERARAZBETEA
8) WA R D BAR RIS P B A AR AR A
AER GEHIED)) F336HEFE 2 B0 M2 E
HEAE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIET 2 EERHE
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests Other interests percentage
EEERS
RERERE EARERE HitifEz BERESL
New Sense 243,804,000 - 42.24%
(Note Fff&E)
Equity Trust (BVI) Limited - 243,804,000 42.24%

(Note Bff:T)

Note:  Equity Trust (BVI) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
243,804,000 Shares held by New Sense by virtue of the fact
that Equity Trust (BVI) Limited as trustee for The Ho Family
Trust owns the entire issued share capital of New Sense.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010 and 30
June 2010, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in Shares” above, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Bit3E © R Equity Trust (BVI) Limited &35 B New Sense
2 E B 1T ZHo Family TrustZ 55+ &
Equity Trust (BVI) Limited %% & #E B iZ Z A New
Sense$d A 2 243,804,000 (% 15 2 fEzs o

BREXREZENESTRAEBREELER
THRABZERD#Es ] PREN RZT—F
FZA=+—"HAR-_T-FTHFEXA=1THEH X
BATHEEARRR 2B RAARER D 2
KR ML FREEIOREFBRE(EFED) £
3361%7B T BT 2 ERCMATRCER
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Report of the Directors EE 2 #{ &

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2010 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 19%
Five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales
The largest customer 26%
Five largest customers combined 87%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 30 August 2010 to Friday, 3 September
2010 (both dates inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2010 and for attending the Annual
General Meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 27 August 2010.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EE%F&&@%

BE_T-ZTF-_A=+t—BULFE ~5H
EE%L\E’EEPE&%:)E‘ZE%E&%%E DA

BE
&AM ER 19%
AARHEE G 48%
BAZFE 26%
AREF (L 87%

Brbaish  REEZ WENBEAINESH
TR AR BN BS5 % 2 BRI A
PlAEEEBHERLES 2 -

ZEREBFER

ARARIEH_ZE—ZFTFN\A=ZFTH (EH—) =
“E-TFNA=H (EHRH) (BREEEMX)
EEREROBFERLTFE WA FEERE
E-FT-ZFTFZA=F+—BULEFE KK
ERLEREBFAG 2ER  FIEEZZ
BhEEHERAEECRE AR -2 —F
FNAZ++HH (EHER) TFUB=TDRIZ%
=N/ ﬂﬁAE;%ZHﬁfﬁzﬁ)f%zarﬁ /B RR
BEELARAR: MItABTBEEFERFKE
%1835ﬁé%uﬂtﬂlm7$§171236i

NEERE

RAFRAZEBE  BERAAGESHARAE
BREEARRREZEZMNE  ARFHEETHHA
FHREEE BTLPRETRAUBETARRE
BEITIRINAI25% °
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2010

¥ BB

AEEZRBBERB KESTMEFME
% B TR EEERLREBERE
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AEEEm
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Independent Auditor’s Report

1B M 2R,

BERBKESRTAIEHAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 115 to 190, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

B B R
REANBEREZERERAAZERR
(REFZELMA L BRA])

Rz EED (AT M) BEEZHET
115251908 = FI BB ZERER A A ([
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HBEHREK  MEETBRRBENR_E—Z
A=+ HZGARRREERBREH
ZBRIFEEZHGAERER GRA2EKER
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SETBURBEE R H AT s pRRE o
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M i O> B

EERVMBBRRAAREZER

BERFEZFARERBEBESMASHEML
FEVBRE LR RIRBES (R RED) 2 %
BRERRNMNEEMAFUHINRZFHREMH
BR - EATERER  BERMMEEEREK
B EmRF 45 R 75 HmR AR 2 WERE S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AABET RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 July 2010
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Balance Sheets

EERER

As at 31 March 2010 R=E—ZF=H=+—H

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —"TTHNF ZB-BF —"TTNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FExT FAET FHExT FETT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FEMEBEE
Leasehold land and HET K
land use rights (5 A 6 64,835 72,096 = =
Property, plant and E
equipment P 7 471,378 435,732 - —
Investment in subsidiaries RHEB A A
ZRE 8 - - 489,319 496,607
Investment in associated NN
companies ZI8E 9 28,299 601 - -
Other non-current assets HiIERSEE 11 12,803 - - -
Deferred tax assets EETIREE 20 1,692 349 - =
579,007 508,778 489,319 496,607
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 12 269,636 227,062 - -
Trade receivables B S YRR 11 416,150 419,064 - -
Amount due from JFE Y B B A &)
a subsidiary R X 8 - - 7,000 -
Amount due from NG
an associated company MR 9 10,226 - - -
Prepayments, deposits BN 'ERk
and other receivables H fth YRR 11 43,119 69,486 411 335
Tax prepaid B HIE 2,331 4,017 - 253
Time deposit FEHFER 13 91,312 - - -
Cash and bank balances Re MIBITHEF 14 328,003 641,440 375 382
1,160,777 1,361,069 7,786 970
Total assets BERE 1,739,784 1,869,847 497,105 497,577
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves AATERFAA
attributable to the FE(E R A K
Company’s equity holders e
Share capital %N 15 57,710 57,710 57,710 57,710
Other reserves H fth ## 17 199,812 199,748 387,077 386,658
Retained earnings RB B
— Proposed final — B R HA
dividend iz B 5,771 8,657 5,771 8,657
— Others — Hph 438,780 432,054 43,078 41,824
702,073 698,169 493,636 494,849
Minority interest DR 39,403 43,026 = -
Total equity RS AEE 741,476 741,195 493,636 494,849
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Balance Sheets

EERMER

As at 31 March 2010 R=ZE—ZF=H=+—H
Group Company
AEH ART
2010 2009 2010 2009
=g-8F _"TT\F =%-BFE _—IENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE THERT THET THERT FET
LIABILITIES aE&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Long-term bank borrowings RHIRITIEE 19 76,300 118,700 - -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE 20 4,742 6,880 = =
Provision for long RERG €4
service payments 21 8,264 12,929 749 622
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o EEREEECE 0
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables B S IERIRK 18 405,143 298,596 - —
Accruals and other payables fETE 8 & EHith
JEE IR R 18 187,140 200,465 2,720 2,106
Receipts in advance TRUIR R 4,884 3,636 =
Amount due to JEEE 2N A
an associated company BRFX 9 305 211 = =
Short-term bank borrowings 2 ER1TEE 19 311,530 487,235 - -
909,002 990,143 2,720 2,106
Total liabilities BERE 998,308 1,128,652 3,469 2,728
Total equity and liabilities  #25 & & E#&(E 1,739,784 1,869,847 497,105 497,577
Net current assets/(liabilities) 7ENEEFE
(B8E) 251,775 370,926 5,066 (1,136)
Total assets less current BEERME
liabilities BfE 830,782 879,704 494,385 495,471

Ho Cheuk Fai
(EIph
Director

EE

Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
KR

Director

EE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

M RAAR S TSR 2 R B
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z - —ZFF =H=+—H It

2010 2009
—E-FF —EBETNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FET TETT
Revenue WA 22 2,245,172 2,463,926
Cost of sales $HEE B AR 23 (2,093,154) (2,286,474)
Gross profit EF 152,018 177,452
Distribution and selling expenses DiE R HEE R 23 (27,276) (30,709)
General and administrative expenses —MRITREA 23 (112,703) (120,387)
Operating profit R 12,039 26,356
Finance income BATEUA 25 3,312 10,071
Finance costs B TER AR 25 (5,392) (12,888)
Share of (loss)/profit of associated FE(REEE A7) (B518),
companies S A 9 (2,682) 201
Profit before taxation B AR A 7,277 23,740
Income tax credit/(expense) FEBEtA S/ (XH) 26 1,833 (3,307)
Profit for the year FE A 9,110 20,433
Attributable to: FEAE -
Equity holders of the Company NATEZSFHE A 12,497 22,081
Minority interest DENT RS (3,387) (1,648)
9,110 20,433
Earnings per share of profit RATERRFFB A
attributable to the equity FEIR TR T
holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted — BEARGE 28 2.2 centsiEAl 3.8 centsiB Il
Dividends % 8 29 5,771 8,657
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these X AR I ISk 2 B AER D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SmeEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 H#EZ - —ZF=A=+—H1t

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE THET FHET
Profit for the year FEH 9,110 20,433
Other comprehensive Hh 2|
(expense)/income: (BH) WA :
Effect of foreign exchange HNEER B )
rate changes a7 17 (591) 625
Other comprehensive (expense)/income 4 [E E A2 H
ferWevees BN 2 . 825
Total comprehensive income FEE2MAE
for the year N L 8,519 21,058
Attributable to: FE1S -
Equity holders of the Company KATIEZIZA A 12,142 22,456
Minority interest DEIR RS (3,623) (1,398)
Total comprehensive income FEEME
for the year ON 8,519 21,058
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these M RAEGRE MBIk 2 K EMD

118 consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAREBEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ ==

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
KARRERHE ALY
Other
Share reserves Retained Minority Total
capital (Note 17) earnings interest equity
Hitvkt
R (HfzE17) REEH PBRRER ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Balance at 1 April 2008 ~BR)\FME—H &R 57,720 212,326 405,371 424 675,841
Comprehensive income/(expense) 2EKA /(BF)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREH /(BR) - - 22,081 (1,648) 20,433
Other comprehensive income Hitt2EBA
Effect of foreign exchange rate change  JMEEREE) 7 5/ 2 - 375 - 250 625
Total comprehensive 2ERA/(ER) £3
(GRS R .. . L
Transaction with owners HEGREARS
Employee share option scheme: EERRET 2 -

- value of employee services - EERBZEE - 337 - - 337
Transfer to retained earnings BRARIERVE / Kim

upon cancellation/lapse of EBERB N

share options - (13,300 13,300 - -
Repurchase of shares ffn EIEE (10) 10 (41) - (41)
Capital injection from SERRTE

minority shareholder - - - 44,000 44,000
Total transaction with owners HESHEAR HEH (10) (12,953) 13,259 44,000 44,29
Balance at 31 March 2009 FZA=T—-Rz#&e 57,710 199,748 440,711 43,026 741,195
Balance at 1 April 2009 “ZTNENA-BZE 57,710 199,748 440,711 43,026 741,195
Comprehensive income/(expense) ZHEWA /(BR)

Profit/(loss) for the year EERHN,/(B8) = - 12,497 (3,387) 9,110
Other comprehensive expense HivZEBA

Effect of foreign exchange rate change  JMEEREE) 7 5/ 2 - (355) = (236) (591)
Total comprehensive 2ERA/(ER) 85

MOMSENE) SR - L G0
Transaction with owners HERREARS

Employee share option scheme: B RmARET 2 -

- value of employee services - RERKZ(BE = 419 = = 419
Dividend paid Bk E - - (8,657) = (8,657)
Total transaction with owners HESHEAR HEH - 419 (8,657) - (8,238)
Balance at 31 March 2010 T-TF=A=t-HZ& 57,710 199,812 444,551 39,403 741,476
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these MR AERE B Sk 2 KB D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

II‘I_\ /E\ EE, % 5)2|fi % %

For the year ended 31 March 2010 Bl Z—

Z—EF=A=1t—HIt

=—==

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bd3E FExT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities QBT /IS RE
Profit before taxation FR AR R A 7,277 23,740
Share of loss/(profit) from FE(REEE N R 2
associated companies B8 CaF) 2,682 (201)
Depreciation of property, ME - HENEREZ
plant and equipment e 47,020 56,294
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE &+
land use rights 152 PR 2 i 35 1,248 1177
Share-based compensation expense VARR 19 2 f-H 3R 2
T 419 337
(Gainy/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment mEz (W),
B (658) 772
Gain on disposal of leasehold land and HEME+ &
land use rights T A 2 Was (845) -
Provision/(write-back of provision) for — [RE 2 thTF &
obsolete and slow moving By S CEE
inventories B 42 ) 3,667 (1,805)
Provision for impairment of B 5 & H A FEUR K
trade and other receivables BB LR - 728
(Reversal of provision)/provision for RERE S
long service payments (EFz BB,/
AEE (4,665) 3,194
Interest expenses FE S H 5,392 12,888
Interest income MEMKA (3.312) (10,071)
Operating profit before LBECEERIZ
working capital changes Sy 58,225 87,053
Inventories FE (46,241) 39,095
Trade receivables 2 Z IR 2,914 11,678
Prepayments, deposits and BN - Be &
other receivables At EUIIR 3K 13,564 81,198
Amount due from JRE LSSt 5 8 RIBR X
an associated company (10,226) -
Trade payables B S EMIRER 106,547 (52,783)
Accruals and other payables EETER KR
E {th FEAT IR X (13,325) (1,961)
Receipts in advance TEU IR X 1,248 1,022
Amount due to an associated company X EEANEI e 94 (600)
Cash generated from operations KEEE V7RG 112,800 164,702
Interest paid ERAFE (5.392) (12,888)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEENEH (6,219) (4,848)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded RiEEBANER 6,257 533
Long service payments paid BRIk S - (58)
Net cash generated from KEEEEE L
operating activities FHiNE 107,446 147,441
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cont'd)
IIV_\/E\Eﬁﬁsﬁéi (I%E)

For the year ended 31 March 2010 - —ZFF=A=+—HIt
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FExT FHT
Cash flows from investing activities KE T ZIRERE
Purchase of property, REWE BER
plant and equipment B (82,893) (114,641)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE K&
plant and equipment R PTG 885 171
Proceeds from disposal of HEME TR Hb
leasehold land and 2 R 2 FT1S 3K
land use rights 6,858 =
Increase in investment in SN /N
associated companies & (30,380) =
Interest received B U F & 3,312 10,071
Increase in time deposit I ANE EATE 30 (91,312) -
Net cash used in investing activities KE TR Z
IH 4 HEg (193,530) (104,399)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBCHERE
Capital injection from minority interest LERFTE - 44,000
Repurchase of shares A&7 E1HE - (41)
New long-term bank borrowings HRHRITEE 264,500 -
New short-term bank borrowings AR TIEE 382,700 1,173,870
Repayment of long-term bank BERRITEER
borrowings (306,900) (85,875)
Repayment of short-term bank EREHRITEE
borrowings (507,600) (902,570)
(Decrease)/increase in CR),/ B IiEs
trust receipts bank loans BHRIRITE R (50,805) 15,432
Dividends paid BIRARE (8,657) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE (FrA),/
financing activities EEZHEFE (226,762) 244,816
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReLReEED
cash equivalents 2% i),/
10 (312,846) 287,858
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MA—BzHRzk
ReFEY 641,440 352,957
Effect of foreign exchange rate GINEE [ R
changes k7% (591) 625
Cash and cash equivalents ZA=+—HZR%
at 31 March KRR EEY 14 328,003 641,440
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these M RAEGRE M Ik 2 EKE D

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of computer
casings, office automation products, video cassette
housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and provision of
electronic manufacturing services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company are listed in the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), unless otherwise
stated, and have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 19 July 2010.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

1 —RER

EFBERERERAR ([A2F)) REMBA
A (ABIAEE]) FERERERHETN
PhER  WAEXBES NG - A -

PREeBE M RERETEXRTER -

RAARIR—NAARETAZ+TABRBRES
fzBREMEAR @ P#EEHUZ Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

RKRABZBEOR—ANRF+_ATRARE
BHMARIABARABERLET -

GAMBRENBTZR (RIESEHE) - &
ARBBACEREFRE T T LAT
B IS -

2 EESTHREE

RAENEEMBTRREA TR S BOREAN
TX - BRBHAN  HLERREME M
BEFEENEREM -

2.1 REEE

AU BBREARRBEESMBREER ([F
BRI - RIBE L KAERS - I IA
RNPEFEEGZVHEERM B RESE B
AB#ZmMEREDR

RHTRBAMBEA U BHRRFTERAS
THEgE G ENFTEEEBERALE
BleestRBREPITEELHE - P REEH
s BRI 28 - P MERE M B H
REBEANRRMEET < 805 - EMZ4PKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and amended
HKFRSs as of 1 April 2009:

HKFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’
(amendment). The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only results
in additional disclosures, there is no impact on earnings
per share.

HKAS 1 (revised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’.
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items
of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes
in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement
of comprehensive income. As a result the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes
in equity are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Comparative information has
been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the
revised standard. Since the change in accounting policy
only impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Share-based payment’ deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that
vesting conditions are service conditions and performance
conditions only. Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. These features would need to
be included in the grant date fair value for transactions
with employees and others providing similar services; they
would not impact the number of awards expected to
vest or valuation there of subsequent to grant date. All
cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting treatment. The Group
and the Company has adopted HKFRS 2 (amendment)
from 1 April 2009. The amendment does not have a
material impact on the Group’s or the Company’s financial
statements.

e MR R M et
2 EESHBERE (&)

21 RREE(F)
(@) AFBEEFRMZHETREEZZER

AEBER=FENFNA—BRMATHIHT
REETEAMERE LA :

ERMBRELEATIERITAE-BEI(E
7)) IR ERRESARA T EFENRE
R ZWE - HEFTR R BRI A FE 2
ERBHREATEE BNSFTHRZINE
REYFIMNEE - BUHEBEN T BZE -

FRGEN (BERD [ HHRERZER] -
IR R ZE T ERREHRT 2RWAR
EREE (A [FEEAZREES])  WRTE
[FEFEAAZEZES | AiFE2EKERTP Y
RERRBEAACERESDHER - Bt
AEBESERDEHRTEREHEBAL
RDEE MIERBAZEREPUELGSR
HRBERTFEH LBRBFEEHE2®H - AT
BEFTER - AN SABR CRBERATEER
AE - BEHSRRN T EZE

BFREVBHEEN2 (EF]) [ AP RERZ
K BRIE BRI TR AR AR » tER]T RIS
T R ATRE(RIT E IR BRI IR AR IR AR © LABR
D BERE 2 N2 AR T R AT TRERIT o
B EFRHEGKHE B RE R T M E MR AL
BBALZRGRETHZAFEAR  LFR
BT ER T RREMK A 1T ZBEA
HEHMGE - AEEUE Tl B EMITE
ho BARERZ G RIEAAR - AEE K
ARREH-_TTNFHA-HERATEY
B EERN2 (BR]) o BT T HAKE KA
RAZHERRBERNTE -
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e MR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Cont'd)

HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing Costs’. The standard has
been revised to require capitalization of borrowing costs
when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of
the cost of that asset. As the Group’s current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the revised
standard, the revised standard did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14, 'Segment reporting’, and aligns segment reporting
with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related
information’. The new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information is presented
on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. In addition, the segments are reported in a
manner that is more consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

(b) Amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are effective but not currently
relevant to the Group

The following amendments and interpretations to existing
standards are mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2009, but are not currently relevant
to the Group.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of HKFRS

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendments)

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Eligible Hedged Items

Customer Loyalty Programmes

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) = Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

2 EESTHHREE #)

2.1 wBEXE (EF)

(@ AEEERHA
(%)

fonf&ﬁ/fnfz/gg/

B e ER23 (BER[ERKA] - 1]
f& ET‘?EE'J’\%E&EE%E%E\ W EERRZ
EERAERNAERZEEZ G MAA - R
AEERGZEBERABRRRRBEETZE
K E&E{I%ETZEE\'J&E;TK%IZEM‘KH%R
AEEREATE -

EBMBEHRELERS [EEDIL] - BAEMBIR
HEBSMR T EEBSFT L4 [H RS

WS EPHRE EEBAER] SFAS 131 [ B
DEAMIMEER 2HEE] 2 REHR LR - ot
B ERNEREA [BERBE A A B &R

~
<

B R AR B PO B R R > AR R 2 5 -
5N+ 5 ED 2 2 8755 B[ L B AT A R R
> AR E T A -

(b) EERNET TN E TR < 5 AT &
2

ATETRHBRBLEA BN BEE_TTA
FOA—BRBZERTBFEERA - BER
SERE TR -

AR BEHREEAN BRRANE BT

(1858]) 2R
BEEgELR2R hESMTAR

BB LR (1BF]) BREMEEZ

=T

EES4RI39 (B5]) Aéﬁ Hh1g H
5% (BB BHRE FRHEE

uﬁﬁy,\ @) — 213

B (BB B®RE EibEREE S

u%%ﬁi ,:iA _u%%i’lli_)
7% (BRI S
RELZEg) 2816
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2.1

©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and

e MR R M et
2 EEETERXRREE @)

2.1 REEE (F)

(€ IKRLEMXANEBEEIEPIRAZER
EET R Z B ER 2 it FE

have not been early adopted by the Group

HKFRS 3 (revised)

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 9 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(FRIC) — Int 18

HK(FRIC) — Int 19

Business combinations
(effective from 1 July 2009)

Financial Instruments (effective
from 1 January 2013)

Related Party Disclosures
(effective from 1 January
2011)

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
(effective from 1 July 2009)

Classification of Rights Issues
(effective from 1 February
2010)

Embedded Derivatives
(effective from 30 June
2009)

Prepayment of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
(effective on or after
1 January 2011)

Distribution of non-cash assets
to owners (effective on or
after 1 July 2009)

Transfers of Assets from
Customers (effective from
1 July 2009)

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments (effective from
1 July 2010)

In addition, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants also published a number of amendments to
existing standards under its annual improvement project.

EBYBRELED3 EBAH
(#&485]) (A-ZEThE
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EEYBREEL emIA
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2REZEY) (A=Z—%F
— #2814 (485) —B—HBRER)

5% (BEBHB|RE REEADER
Z2EBZES) RS EE
—BE17 (BT NF

+A—BEAR)

B (BERYBHRE RFEFEEEZE
“EZE®) (A-ZTNF
— %2218 +A—BEAR)

5% (BEBHBRE WExTA
ZREZET) SERRemas
— 2’19 (A=Z—ZF

IS -

+A—HEEH)

ERGHMASTNAEFESEERRA S

NEE TIREERZ(EFT ©

125



126

Karrie International Holdings Limited 5z FBIFR 1A BRAE) ¢ Annual Report 2009/10 G4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

The Group has not early adopted these new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards
in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010. The adoption of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards
in future periods is not expected to result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

The Group will adopt the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations when they become
effective.

(d) In May 2009, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants issued modifications to the
following existing accounting standard which is not
yet effective but had been early adopted by the
Group

HKFRS 8 (Amendment) Operating Segments

(effective from 1 January
2010)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

2 EESTHHREE #)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(b) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from minority interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
minority interests are also recorded in equity. For disposals
to minority, the difference between any proceeds received
and the relevant share of minority interests is recorded in
equity.

e MR MR
2 EESHEERE )

2.2 HRAMRE (&)
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e MR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment
in associated companies includes goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss. See
Note 2.8 for the impairment of non-financial assets.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associated company equals or exceeds its
interest in the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associated companies are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who make strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents, are presented
in the income statement.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the “available-for-sale financial assets
fair value reserve” in equity.

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies (Cont’d)

(if) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 2% t0 4%
Fixtures and leasehold improvements 8% t0 12%
Machinery 6% to 15%

Moulds and tooling 15%
Furniture and computer equipment 15% to 33.33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the income statement.

2.6  Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plants and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.5.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plants and buildings are situated for periods
varying from 10 to over 50 years. Amortisation of land use
rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of the land use rights.
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2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associated companies is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associated
company in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

2.12 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company'’s equity holders.
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2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and associated companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

2.16 Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2.16 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several pension schemes.
The plans are generally funded through payments to
trustee administered funds. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

() Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date
on high quality corporate bonds which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to the
income statement in current period.

(d)  Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the income statement
when the Group is contractually obliged or when there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2.17 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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2.20 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.
(c) Management income

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates
and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and cash management.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the
PRC and most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK dollars, United States
dollars (“US dollar”) and Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
that are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. As HK dollars are pegged against US
dollar, management considers that the Group is mainly
exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to Renminbi.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. The Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk as at 31
March 2010. The conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2010, if HK dollars had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the Renminbi with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$4,459,000 higher/lower
(2009: HK$3,129,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
the net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
which are primarily issued at variable rates. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2010, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis-
point, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group's post-tax profit by approximately
HK$1,619,000 (2009: HK$2,530,000).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's credit
risk mainly arises from financial assets and deposits with
bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to the customers, including outstanding trade and other
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

Customers are assessed and rated based on the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. Individual
risk limits are set by management and the utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit limit was
exceeded during the year, and management does not
expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.

There is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group’s sales are made primarily to few
key customers. As at 31 March 2010, the trade receivables
from five largest customers accounted for approximately
90% (2009: 88%) of the total trade receivables.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

(@) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all time.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

3 BIEEkE

B (&)

3.1 MBERREZR (&)

(©  Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (c) TmEEEE (&)
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years
DPR—F —EWF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FA&T
Group REE
At 31 March 2010 RZE—TF
=A=+—8
Trade payables B S ETIRK 405,143 - -
Accruals and other payables FERtER K
H A ERTIRX 144,435 - -
Bank borrowings R1TEE 311,530 44,800 31,500
Interest payable FERFE 5,699 1,244 616
At 31 March 2009 RZZTENF
=A=+—H
Trade payables B 5 ERIRRR 298,596 - -
Accruals and other payables EtER R
HL A - IR 3K 144,853 - -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 487,235 55,000 63,700
Interest payable FESFIS 10,432 1,869 1,346
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years
DR~ —EmE —zH%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&T FAT
Company VAN
At 31 March 2010 R_TE—FF
=A=+—8
Accruals and other payables EAER R
H A ERTIRX 2,720 = -
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZENGF
=A=+—H
Accruals and other payables EETER K
HL A < R 3R 2,106 - -

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

The Group's strategy, which was unchanged from prior
year, was to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The
net gearing ratios at 31 March 2010 and 2009 were as
follows:

3 BXERER#Z)

3.2 EBEXEKMER (£)

RERBIABEARGE  AEERGHEMN
TRRZHE - BRETHRRZEA - BITHK
S EEERIEETR

HEENEMAR K AKREMNREAREL
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5I) DB AR -

REBZHRBEFTFAE  AIFRABFIES
ZFRITEELRZER R —FTFRZ
ETAF-A=t-H2ERAMELEM
™

2010 2009

—EF-FF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Total borrowings (Note 19) BERE ([F19) 387,830 605,935

Less: Time deposit (Note 13) B E TR (B1sE13) (91,312) -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) B IREeRBEEEEY

(F=E14) (328,003) (641,440)

Net cash R FRE (31,485) (35,505)

Total equity R iBE 741,476 741,195

Net gearing ratio FIRITIEE L ® -4% -5%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives. It will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

During the year, management carried an extensive review
of the useful lives of the Group’s major machinery. The
Group has appointed an independent valuer to re-estimate
the useful lives of certain machinery and extended the
useful lives from ranging 6-10 years to 10-15 years.
Such change in accounting estimate has been accounted
for prospectively, resulting in net profit for the year
ended 31 March 2010 being increased by approximately
HK$10,864,000.

(b) Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(e) Employee benefits — share-based payments

The valuation of the fair value of the share options granted
requires judgment in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected on the shares, the
risk-free interest rate during the life of the options and the
number of share options that are expected to vest. Where
the outcome of the number of options that are vested
is different, such difference will impact the consolidated
income statement in the subsequent remaining vesting
period of the relevant share options.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group’s internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group is organized on a worldwide basis into two
main operating segments. They are (i) metal and plastic
business; and (ii) electronic manufacturing services
business.

Others mainly comprise rental and management fee
income.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From a
products and services perspective, management assesses
the performance of metal and plastic business, and
electronic manufacturing services business. And there is
further evaluation on a geographic basis (Japan, Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Asia (excluding Japan, Hong
Kong and Mainland China), North America and Western
Europe). Management assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on operating profit. Segment
information provided to management for decision making
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 SHER(
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2010 are HE_T—ZTHF=-"A=1T—"BLEFEZHHXE
as follows: BT
2010
—E-=F
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
BB BrEHE
E) S RIEHK Hith aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
F&T FH&T FH&T FH&T
Segment revenues SEUA
Total segment revenue DEWALETE 958,741 1,403,883 4,408 2,367,032
Inter-segment revenue 2B A (121,860) = = (121,860)
Revenue from REINIEFZ
external customers WA 836,881 1,403,883 4,408 2,245,172
Gross profit EF 103,284 44,326 4,408 152,018
Distribution and selling DIERIEER
expenses and general and  —#& M7 E
administrative expenses (69,301) (70,678) - (139,979)
Operating profit/(loss) s R (EiE) 33,983 (26,352) 4,408 12,039
Operating profit/(loss) R (E1E)
includes: B -
Depreciation e 23,935 23,085 - 47,020
Amortisation HEEH 652 596 = 1,248
Provision for/(Write-back of [RE & iFS
provision) for obsolete B (T
and slow-moving o] )
inventories 5,318 (1,651) - 3,667
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 SHER &)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2009 are HE_TTENF=A=1T—"BLEFEZHHXE
as follows: BT
2009
—ZETNF
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
hEBR BFEHE
Ei RIER EAfth A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T4 BT THETT T
Segment revenues D EBUA
Total segment revenue SERUT A LB%EE 1,354,059 1,203,650 3,348 2,561,057
Inter-segment revenue S EPEUA (97,131) = = (97,131)
Revenue from REINPEFZ
external customers A 1,256,928 1,203,650 3,348 2,463,926
Gross profit S| 146,353 27,751 3,348 177,452
Distribution and selling DI NMIEE K&
expenses and general and  —f& R1THE A
administrative expenses (84,633) (66,463) - (151,096)
Operating profit/(loss) s Rl (E58) 61,720 (38,712) 3,348 26,356
Operating profit/(loss) RN (E8)
includes: B
Depreciation e 36,287 20,007 = 56,294
Amortisation BN 791 386 = 1,177
Provision for impairment & 5 K H b fE U iR
of trade and other B
receivables 728 - - 728
(Write-back of provision)/ — [RE M#&EHTFE
provision for obsolete and (&~ [@#)
slow-moving inventories KL (4,246) 2,441 = (1,805)
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZSWER (&)
A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before taxation R E NP ERB DR AT

is provided as follows:

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Operating profit R A 12,039 26,356
Finance income BT U 3,312 10,071
Finance costs BTG RN (5.392) (12,888)
Share of (loss)/profit of associated companies — JE{REEZ A T2 (EH8) %Kl (2,682) 201
Profit before taxation B AR RS A 7,277 23,740
The segment revenue by geographical information as B &R E RS WAL T -
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Japan HZx 172,198 178,956
Hong Kong BB 434,752 483,769
Mainland China B K B 619,036 612,010
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and S (PEEARN - FEN 258,257 332,569
Mainland China) AR RRE )
North America =M 251,695 264,275
Western Europe PaER 509,234 592,347
Total revenue W A 4a =8 2,245,172 2,463,926
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the WARB A NEBNMAERR S o
final destination of shipment is located.
The Group’s sales are made primarily to few key customers. 1‘ SEZHEXTEZRmMAEME P -
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the revenue derived HE-_ZE—ZEF=FA=+—H WAKXETR
from five largest customers accounted for approximately ABEPHAEAREERKALT% (ZEZT N5 -

87% (2009: 84%) of the Group’s total revenue. 84%) °
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 6

RIGHTS - GROUP

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

e MR R M EE
AET R+ E AR - AEE

AEBPREEL R L BERRBMNLE
MEFE - HEREFESTOD

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHEIT
Net book amount at beginning of the year FEREFE 72,096 46,873
Transfer from deposit paid in prior year FEEfRSBEBA - 26,400
Disposal k== (6,013) -
Amortisation charged to cost of sales Bt ASHER AN (1,248) (1,177)
Net book amount at end of the year FEIREFE 64,835 72,096
Cost AR 72,399 78,587
Accumulated amortisation RIE# Y (7.564) (6,491)
Net book amount at end of the year FEIREFE 64,835 72,096
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Hong Kong BE — HEH10E50F 1,009 1,036
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China PR KREE — S B 108504 62,893 70,109
Leases of over 50 years in Mainland China FREARE — HERS0FA £ 933 951

64,835 72,096

The leasehold land located in Hong Kong are held under
medium-term leases expiring in June 2047. The leasehold
land located in Mainland China are held under land use
rights of 45 to 57 years expiring in April 2043 to October

2062.

mEFH o

EEB2HELHIIREE —TMEFRAD
MZPHEEMRS - ERBEAREZHE L
DRERHNTAEEATEF (AIEE-FTN
—FMAE-—TER_FTAI) 2L MERE

151



152

Karrie International Holdings Limited 5z FBIFR 1A BRAE] ¢ Annual Report 2009/10 G4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE- BERRE-FTKHE
- GROUP
Furniture
Leasehold and
Construction- improvements Tools and computer
Buildings  in-progress and fixtures ~ Machinery  equipment  equipment Total
BRE
BT ERIR NELE #®E TERRE ElRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
At 31 March 2008 “EE\¥=A=t-H
Cost AR 224212 26,666 82,424 407,518 28,383 50,135 819,338
Accumulated depreciation  Z7&#7E (40,646) = (41458)  (299,948) (20,229) (38,729)  (441,010)
Net book amount IREFE 183,566 26,666 40,966 107,570 8,154 11,406 378,328
Year ended HZ2-ZZRE
31 March 2009 ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ EA¥IIRE % (& 183,566 26,666 40,966 107,570 8,154 11,406 378,328
Additions RE 38,110 10,558 20,381 36,422 3,509 5,661 114,641
Transfer in/(out) #ZA /(1) 11,150 (11,150) = = = = =
Disposals e (359) - (215) (288) - (81) (943)
Depreciation e (5,423) - (7440 (34,707) (2.474) (6,256)  (56,294)
Closing net book amount ~ HARIRE (& 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435,732
At 31 March 2009 “EENF=A=1-H
Cost A 273,113 26,074 102,590 424,905 24,553 55,608 906,843
Accumulated depreciation  Z7&#TE (46,069) = (48,898) (315,902 (15,364) (@4878)  (471,111)
Net book amount IREFE 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435732
Year ended H2-Z-2F
31 March 2010 ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ EA¥MIRE % (& 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435,732
Additions NE 18,536 24,672 5,208 27,161 2,577 4,739 82,893
Transfer in/(out) #A /(1) 18,990 (19,025) 35 (88) 90 ?) =
Disposals il - - - 17) = (10) (227)
Depreciation & (6,084) = (7,831) (24,258) (2,818) (6,029) (47,020)
Closing net book amount B ARIRE (& 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9,428 471,378
At 31 March 2010 “E-EF=A=+-H
Cost A 310,639 31,721 107,833 449,555 27,236 60,243 987,227
Accumulated depreciation 27 E (52,153) = (56,729) (337,954) (18,198) (50,815) (515,849)
Net book amount IREFE 258,486 31,721 51,104 111,601 9,038 9,428 471,378
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— GROUP (contd)

Depreciation expense of HK$45,265,000 (2009:
HK$53,907,000) and HK$1,755,000 (2009:
HK$2,387,000) has been charged to cost of sales and
general and administrative expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group extended the useful lives
of certain machinery. Please refer to Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

e MR MR
7 W% WERRE - AEEE)

#r & H45,265,0008 (= T T N F:
53,907,0005% 7T) &1,755,000/%75 (:%?%jm
F : 2,387,000 7T) D AIFEHEEKRAE R —HK K
THERYH -

EW AEELERETHE AERFS - &
MFLERAMTERERM TS -

AEBEEFT 2 RS REREFESTET

The Group’s interests in buildings at their net book values

are analysed as follows:

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Buildings in Hong Kong, REBFEETF 2,018 2,096
held on leases between 10 to 50 years 10E50F 828
Buildings in Mainland China, KRB RPERF B EF 254,049 222,475
held on leases between 10 to 50 years 10250F 2 HE
Buildings in Mainland China, R BEAEREETF 2,419 2,473
held on leases over 50 years %Zi@B50F s HE
258,486 227,044
8  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8 RHWEARZKRE - XQF
- COMPANY
Company
¥ /N
2010 2009
—B-FF —ZEThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares investments, at cost FE_ETIRID 2 BXAE 193,285 193,285
Less: Provision for impairment of investment & : RHTEB QT 2R ERME (3,087) (3,087)
in subsidiaries A
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note i) JE LBt B A RIMR R (BT 299,121 306,409
489,319 496,607
Amount due from a subsidiary (Note ii) FEUSHT B A mItRER (BT &Eii) 7,000 -
i) The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries represent (i) EHTE A 723'5/”@)}@15 KRR DRIRBEES
funding provided by the Company to the respective EEMBAR - ZIRKAEER « A2 RT

subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and not repayable
within the next twelve months and are denominated in HK

dollars.

(ii) The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free (ii)
and repayable on demand and is denominated in HK dollars.

ﬁHEAﬂiPH—_TIH B8 - MABEREN -

JRE U P B X RIR TR AR IR IR - AR A B E R

REE - RIABBREA -
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e MR MR

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

— COMPANY (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

8 MRHBRAZKRE -ALF @A)

R-E-ZTF=-A=+—"HIZMNBLRFZE

2010 are: £
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-in capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£8 EERRER IRXBREELY ERTREARE BEEE
Karrie International (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, Ordinary share of (i) US$100 100%
Limited limited liability company the British Virgin Islands LRAR()100ETT
RBRAZHEEREMALNR KERR RBELHE
Castfast Industrial Company  Hong Kong, limited liability  Plastic injection moulding Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company operations, Hong Kong LBR100757T
FEEBRSAERAA BERBBEMAT LEBBEE B Non-voting deferred share of -
(ii) HK$990,200
ERSERITMR)
990,2007575
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture of computer casings,  Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company office automation products, LimiR100757T
ERZEZBLEMARAR BEAREMLA moulds and plastic and metal Non-voting deferred share of -
parts; provision of electronic (i) HK$10,000
manufacturing services, B R G)
property holding and investment 10,000/7T
holding, Mainland China
SEBRINR - BAEXEEM
REAREBEGEE
REEFERRIRG -
RAMERREER - PEAE
Castfast Magnetics Moulding  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacture of plastic injection Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company moulds and metal stamping LER10B7T
FENMETERERAR BEREREEAR dies, Hong Kong Non-voting deferred share of -
EIREARSBHERR (ii) HK$30,000
95 ERFERIEMR)
30,000/ 7T
Dongguan Yanxun Mainland China, limited ~ Manufacture of computer Paid-up capital (iii) 85%

Electronics
Company Limited
RREAETERAR

liability company
MEARSEAT

casings, video cassette
housings, office
automation products and
plastic and metal parts,
Mainland China
HESHINR - BEBIR
RREXNEERREBK

ERE - PEARE

HK$4,500,000
B A (i)
4,500,000 7
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8
— COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and

e MR MR

RBAR2RE — AQF (4)

Particulars of

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-in capital Interest held
a1 AR L 3t B
£ EEERER TEXBREELN ERITREARE BERE
Grand King Trading Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EREHBRLA company EmEE ERERIBT
BERREMELT
Grandway Investment Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
(Group) Limited company Mainland China ERRIET
RERE (RB) BRAR BHEEREMLA REER - PEIARE
Hong Kong Hung Hing Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacture and sale of Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Metal Manufacturing company metal parts, Hong Kong LRR100E T
Company Limited EREREELRA SERHESESMY B Non-voting deferred share -
BARREREmARRA of (ii) HK$250,000
v e 3R ())
250,000/ 7T
Jiang Su Castfast Electronic  Mainland China, limited ~ Manufacture of office automation ~ Paid-up capital (iv) 100%
Technologies Company liability company products and provision of US$18,600,000
Limited REEREREAR electronic manufacturing EHER(v)
IHEEEETREERAA services, Mainland China 18,600,000 7T
HERRENBREMRRAZTT
EERTIRY - PEARE
Kar Sharp Development Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited company Emex LRR1ET
RHERBRLA EEEREMELA
Kar Top Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EhRERRAT company TEEE ERERIBT
EREEREELT
Karrie Creation Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
EHERERAR company TEEE AR 1,00078 7T
EREREELTA Non-voting deferred share -

of (ii) HK$1,000,000
B FRETR()
1,000,000/ 7T
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e MR MR

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8 MRMEBATRZERE —A&Rn7 (&)
— COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-in capital Interest held
11 A L 3t B
£ EEBRER TEXBREELN ERITREARE BERE
Karrie Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacture and sale of video Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
Limited company cassette housings, sale of LER1,0005T
EHERBRAA BEBREEAT computer casings, office Non-voting deferred share -
automation products, plastic of (i) HK$5,000,000
and metal parts, metal stamping ERZERETMR (i)
dies, plastic injection moulds, 5,000,000/ T
Hong Kong
HERHEBRTBIIR
HEBMINR  BREXEER
PRREESMG  FEEAR
tBHEEE - BE
Karrie Investment Holdings ~ Hong Kong, limited lability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company Tmex EBRI10AT
SAREZRERAT BEBREEAT Non-voting deferred -
share of (i) HK$2
BERFERILEMR)
28T
Karrie Logistic Company Hong Kong, limited lability Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
Limited company Mainland China LER2ATT
EHRERRE BEAREART REER - hEARE
Karrie Technologies Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing and sales of Ordinary share of 100%
Company Limited company plastic parts, sales of metal HK$30,000,000
BRI ER AT BABREAEAT stamping dies and plastic 3[%30,000,00078 7
injection moulds and provision
of electronic manufacturing
services, Hong Kong
RERHEBRBE
HESEAHBEA TBRA
RREEFERRIRE - &8
Karpo Technologies Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
RERRBRAA company Mainland China EEM1,0008 7T
ERBRAEARA RERR - PEARE Non-voting deferred share -

of (ii) HK$ 1,000,000
BERFEETR)
1,000,000% 7T



Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 FBIFR 1A BBRAE) ¢ Annual Report 2009/10 G4

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

— COMPANY (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and

e MR MR

RBAR2RE — AQF (4)

Particulars of

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-in capital Interest held
11 A L 3t B
£ EEBRER TEXBREELN ERITREARE BERE
Kartech Investment Group ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited company Tmex EBRIAET
REREREARAR BEAREART
Karwin Electronic Mainland China, limited Inactive Paid-up capital (v) Nil 100%
Technologies (Suzhou) liability company it EHERVE
Company Limited REEREEAR
RET TR (BM)
BRAR]
Karwin Engineering Hong Kong, limited liability Design, manufacture and sale of ~ Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Company Limited company computer casings, office LER1057T
FERRIREERAR EEEREMELA automation products; sale of  Non-voting deferred share -
plastic and metal parts, metal of (i) HK$100
stamping dies, plastic injection R ZHEREIT AR i)
moulds, Hong Kong 100/ 7T
Rt BEERHEERIN
WAEXEEM  HEL
BReBHH  2BHE
RARIEREA T
Karwin Technologies The United States of Provision of consultancy services  Ordinary share of US$100 100%
Incorporation America, limited liability ~ to group companies, LAR100ETT
company the United States of America
EEEREELA REBERRETAEERR - XE
Kings Dragon Investment Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited company REER - &S LB T
SERE (B8) BRRA  BEABREMLAA
Kings Horse Investment Hong Kong, limited liability Property holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$10 100%

Limited
YERERRATA

RENE B

company

BEERAMARA

TRR10BT

Non-voting deferred share =
of (ii) HK$10,000

BERFREEM)
10,000/ 7T
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e MR MR

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8
— COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and

Particulars of

RBAR2RE — AQF (4)

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-in capital Interest held
AR AR L i B R
£ EERRER IEEBREELE ERTREARE BEEE
Kwong Hing Computer Hong Kong, limited liability Property holding, Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Metallic Components company Mainland China EER100% T
Limited BEBREEAT REME  PEARE Non-voting deferred share -
EREHEBENFBRAT of (ii) HK$1,250,010
EIRZRE AR )
1,250,010/ 7T
Sagem Karrie Technologies  Hong Kong, limited liability Provision of electronic Ordinary share of 60%
(Hong Kong) Company company manufacturing services, HK$110,000,000
Limited BREBRAEARA Hong Kong A% 110,000,00075 T
EAEERE (BE) RUEFEERIRG  BF
BERRA
FERZEFEEAMRAR  Mainland China, limited  Property holding, Paid-up capital (vi) 100%
liability company Mainland China HK$24,000,0000
REEREEAT REYE  PEARE EBEAR(vi)
24,000,000/ 7T
Note: Bt &E
(i) The shares of Karrie International (BVI) Limited are held (i) Karrie International (B.V.l.) LimitedZ }&1p J575
directly by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are NRIEERFE - HMMB AR 2% T4 AR)H
held indirectly. BiE o
(ii) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. (ii) EREREERD I IERANEEMHES - 5Lt
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to B ERERE TEES>ZRE - RIEHH
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding NAEERKERAEEBRRRE 2 BHHERA
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed 200,000,000,000/8 7 : BRIZERMDEEDZ
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares. EA DK °
(iii) Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited (“DYECL") (i) REBEAESFBRAF ([REREMD THRHTEH
is a co-operative joint venture established in Mainland China Kz E6ERE  EE88ATHRF K22 —
with an operating period of 15 years up to May 2010. TFERAEM BE—HR—ANLAFTAZT
Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 October 1995, the WHEEZHE  REEAMIFAEZARER
Mainland China joint venture partner of DYECL (the “joint BHAZF RGN < e - ARE—IBTEE
venture partner”) has agreed to waive its entitlement to ZEB NFEER AEEHEABPHFEBALSE
share the profit of DYECL in return for a pre-determined P IREE °
annual fee. Subsequent to year ended, the Group and the
joint venture partner are in the process on a distribution of its
assets in accordance with their respective equity interests.
(iv) Jiang Su Castfast Electronic Technologies Company Limited (iv) IH=BEFNEERARAND—RHIBENIEE

158

is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to January
2058.

Karwin Electronic Technologies (Suzhou) Company Limited is
a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to July 2057.

BANEDLR  HEXMRAL T+ R-FhH
NE—HEim °

FEE TR (M) BRARTI—Rh Bk
2EBAIEDLE  HEXEHMBR AR TF N
TREFEREMR -
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e MR MR

8  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8 RWEBARAZKRE -EAQH#)
— COMPANY (Cont'd)
Note: (Cont’d) st - (&)
(vi) REmEBEBETEEARAA is a wholly-owned foreign (Vi) REREETEEXERARAD—MRHEKIEZE
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating }‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂ Bz HEXHRAZTHE RNZF
period of 25 years up to 18 February 2030. TE_RA+/\BfEm °
(vi)  None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any (vii) 73/\%61 T-TF=A=+—HIFERZHE
time during the year ended 31 March 2010. NEEEMBEETZEEER -
(viii)  All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have financial (vii)  EKBARLEERE - TERPR BRI 2 KB E)
accounting year end dated 31 December in accordance with ZHMBEERARTA="T—0H  BEEAQFLT
the local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous — B o ANEE ZIRE M SRR IR A Z LT B A A
with that of the Company. The consolidated financial HE-_ZTZEF=A=+—HIE+-EAZER
statements of the Group were prepared based on the R 4R B K o
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve
months ended 31 March 2010.
9  INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED 9 REEQATRZRE -FX5H
COMPANIES - GROUP
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Share of net assets DEEEFE
Beginning of the year F7)) 601 400
Investment in an associated company REEE RN R ZIKE 30,380 -
Share of (loss)/profit of associated JEIEEE R RZ (2,682) 201
companies (E518), /& F
End of the year FK 28,299 601
Amount due from an associated company FEUS B 2 A BIR X 10,226 -
Amount due to an associated company ST & N RIIR X 305 211
The outstanding balances due from/to the associated ZUEBE N R MKREEZRR ENIRKAE
companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and B AEHNE - WESRFEE - RABE

repayable on demand, and are denominated in HK dollars.

REM -
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e MR MR

9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED 9
COMPANIES - GROUP (Cont'd)

The Group’s share of the results of its associated

REERR2RE - AKH (@)

AEBEREBERRZ2EE (2B LTAR

160

companies, all of which are unlisted, and its aggregated q) EHWEERBELT :
assets and liabilities, are as follows:
Attributable to the Group
KEEES
Place of Interest
Particulars of incorporation/ held
Name issued shares establishment Assets  Liabilities  Revenues Loss indirectly
BERE
B ERTRG TR R BE [ KA BE B&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT THER THER
2010
“EB-FF
NEC Nagano Karrie ordinary share of Hong Kong,
Electronics HK$20,000,000 limited liability
Limited (i) A% 20,000,000 7T company
KHEBAERER BAARAML
AR AT NE] = = - - 30%
TIS Karrie ordinary share of Hong Kong,
Technologies HK$62,000,000 limited liability
(Hong Kong) L/A62,000,0008 7T company
Company Limited () BEAERALE
REREE (BE) AT
ARAR() 36,228 (8,458) - (2,610) 49%
Xiongguan Precision ordinary share of Hong Kong,
Metal Product HK$1,000,000 limited liability
Company Limited ()  E#f%1,000,000/&7T company
SR Pl ki I EBEREE
AR A7) YNE] 655 (126) 515 (72) 40%
36,883 (8,584) 515 (2,682)
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e MR MR

9  INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED 9 REBEQTAZRE-A&E @)
COMPANIES — GROUP (Contd)
Attributable to the Group
REBEE
Place of Interest
Particulars of incorporation/ held
Name issued shares establishment Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit indirectly
EERE
£ BETR ALY avE: L BE afg L/ON A Ean
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAT TET
2009
—ITNE
NEC Nagano Karrie ordinary share of Hong Kong,
Electronics HK$20,000,000 limited liability
Limited (i) T3®A%20,000,00087C  company
RERAERE BAARER
EFARAR () N = - - - 30%
Xiongguan Precision ordinary share of Hong Kong,
Metal Product HK$1,000,000 limited liability
Company Limited (i) ~ &38#%1,000,0007% 7T company
HEREL NS BAARER
BB () Af 732 (131) 1,209 201 40%
732 (131) 1,209 201
Note: PiaE
(i) All these companies are indirectly held by the Company. (i) BEERRZRMTIIARRIEERE -
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e MR MR

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

10 REFIBZEMTA

CATEGORY
Group
REH
Loans and receivables
ER R BN
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHEIT
Assets BiE
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) B 5 NEMmEUIRT (F:E11) 444,419 470,701
Deposits (Note 11) =e (fEE11) 23,443 14,396
Amount due from an associated company JEUE < A TR K
(Note 9) (FF5E9) 10,226 -
Time deposit (Note 13) FEHIFFR (F97E13) 91,312 -
Cash and bank balances (Note 14) W& KRG (BHiE14) 328,003 641,440
897,403 1,126,537

Financial liabilities

U 3=Ri
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Liabilities BfE

Trade and other payables (Note 18) B 5 REAMEAIRK (H5E18) 592,283 499,061
Bank borrowings (Note 19) IRITIEE (MIzE19) 387,830 605,935

Amount due to an associated company  JE{TH: S A BIMR K
(Note 9) (M97E9) 305 211
980,418 1,105,207
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e MR MR

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 10 REHSEZE®MIA &)
CATEGORY (Cont'd)

Company
¥ /N
Loans and receivables
B EWR
2010 2009
—g-%F -TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FH&TT
Assets BE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 8)  FEULFIB A TIIER (MizE8) 306,121 306,409
Deposits and other receivables (Note 11) #2& & H b fEUR R (FzE11) 411 335
Cash and bank balances (Note 14) Re MIR1TTHTE (BisE14) 375 382
306,907 307,126
Financial liabilities
g =N
2010 2009
—E-TF —ETAEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Liabilities afE
Trade and other payables (Note 18) B 5 REMEMIRR (FIFE18) 2,720 2,106
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 11 ESEWRER AR EBER
=
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES H i & W IR =X
Group Company
AEE ¥ NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —ZT—EfF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TET TET
Trade receivables B 5 IR TR 427,247 430,161 = -
Other receivables b fE YT bR FX 28,997 52,365 411 335
456,244 482,526 411 335
Less: Provision for B B REAM
impairment of trade FEUTIR X
and other receivables TRE 2 (11,825) (11,825) = =
444,419 470,701 411 335
Prepayments SEENE=N 4,210 3,453 - -
Deposits Ze 23,443 14,396 - -
27,653 17,849 _ _
Less: Other non-current B B3R ED
assets (Note) & (s (12,803) = = -
14,850 17,849 _ _
459,269 488,550 411 335
Representing: K&K :
Trade receivables, E 5 IR
net of provision MR 416,150 419,064 - -
Prepayments, deposits BN ek
and other receivables, HoAh e IR X
net of provision 2R 43,119 69,486 411 335
459,269 488,550 411 335
Note: BIEE -
Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for purchase of HMERBEERRBEENE BEKREZEME]
property, plant and equipment. & o
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11  TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Cont’d)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from 30
to 90 days. Aging analysis of trade and other receivables is

e MR MR

11 ESEWRKRER BN -BER
HEWIRRR (&)

AEB—RETEP <HHH30AE0AH - &
5 R EA YIRS Z IRE D ITEAT

as follows:
2010 2009
—g-8F  -—TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 429,838 474,966
91 to 180 days 912 180H 9,313 4,848
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 15,359 1,059
Over 360 days 360H A 1,734 1,653
456,244 482,526

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximate their fair

values.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

B2 RKIR - AR - e M HE A RUIR R
B B E A A

AREBEZE S NEMEYIRKEEATIIEE
REBAL

Group Company
TEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF —E-ZF —ZEThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHET FHT
Trade and B 5 &HA
other receivables FEURIR R
— HK dollar — AT 10,496 11,497 411 335
— US dollar — £ 423,920 415,713 - -
— Singapore dollar — EfET 5 1,061 - -
— Renminbi — NS 21,823 54,255 - -
456,244 482,526 411 335
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

11 é%@%ﬁﬂ»ﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁ

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade and B ok EMBRIRFUREREE 2 SEHHT -
other receivables is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Beginning of the year F4] 11,825 11,097
Provision for impairment TREZER
(included in general and (BE—HE
administrative expenses) 1TEER) = 728
End of the year FE 11,825 11,825

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expense in the income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade and other receivables has been
made in the financial statements.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due
are not considered as impaired except for customers which
are in unexpected difficult economic situations.

As of 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HK$38,239,000
(2009: HK$54,582,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relates to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging
analysis of these trade receivables are as follows:

HERERKIER 2 RZMEHEC BREERR
RP—BEITRER - EEFHRP PR ZH
B-REEBHEXREFRINRSFME - £
SRR TREEZEZRUIEREESS
AR RS

BHAIR=EAZEZEBYIRR TR SEE
R - BR SF (8 Rl BB 2 8 YR 5% 3 22 B P A
ARz EENBEBNZEFPER °

RZZE—ZFTF=ZA=1+—H BFRKERRA
38,239,000/% 7T (ZZE & )14 : 54,582,000/
T0) RE BB ERE - ERESKRZE
RIS BHRERLHRZIBIURE - LWEE 5
FEUIR IR Z R D ATUO T -

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT

1 to 90 days 1£290H 16,913 49,143
91 to 180 days 91%180H 8,373 4,209
181 to 360 days 1812360H 12,947 487
Over 360 days 360H A E 6 743
38,239 54,582
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables stated above. The Group did not hold
any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group’s and the Company’s trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
the historical information about counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults
in the past.

12 INVENTORIES - GROUP

e MR MR

11 ESEWRKRER BN -BER
HEWIRRR (&)

RB\ER - FERR 2 &RSAE R BB KR
A RE REAMERIRRZIREE - AEEDR
BRBEERERZER M

REBEXPHEREUAKERARAIESE
WIRK - REe MEMBRIRK 2 EELREY
At BRZBEPEBESBEAN AR -

12 BFE-—-&X5£H

2010 2009

—E-EF —EBTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TETT

Raw materials R 150,484 118,066
Work-in-progress F R oh 43,234 37,974
Finished goods 2Rk T 75,918 71,022
269,636 227,062

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,724,786,000 (2009:
HK$1,912,962,000).

During the year, the Group has provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories for an amount of approximately
HK$3,667,000 (2009: write-back of provision of
HK$1,805,000).

As at 31 March 2010, certain inventories were held under
trust receipts bank loan arrangement.

13 TIME DEPOSIT - GROUP

Time deposit represents a deposit with a bank in Mainland
China with initial term of maturity of one year. The
weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 March
2010 was 2.25% (2009: Nil). The balance is denominated
in Renminbi.

The conversion of this RMB denominated deposit into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China Government.

FEKRAEREERIIABEERAZ &
8 A&1,724,786,00008 T (=Z & T h &F:
1,912,962,000/ 7T ) °

KEBRAEERENABHETELEE 2SN
53,667,000 L (Z T N F : X 2 O &
1,805,000/ 7T) °

KR=F-BE=A=+-A
Yol ATER R P A o

13 EHENR - FEH

FEHEREEGTHRRFRARREZRIT - W]
FHIHBA A —F - MEFHEBRENEEZ
E—FF=F=+—H225% (ZEF L F:
) o HEAARKBETE -

F ATHRENRER

RBARERINEEE LIRINERE ST P BEBT
FOSNEEAZ I AR 5] B AR
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14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

14 BHERBTER

Group Company
AEE ¥ NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF —E-ZF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx TFETT
Cash at bank and on hand /TR RIS 243,322 209,290 375 382
Short-term bank deposits 45 BR$R7T1E 30 84,681 432,150 = -
328,003 641,440 375 382
Maximum exposure to FEERRZ
credit risk = AdE 328,003 641,440 375 382
Cash and bank balances were denominated in the Re RBITHEFUTINEE REM -
following currencies:
Group Company
AEE ¥iN/N|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF —E-EfF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FET
HK dollar BT 25,966 10,394 375 382
US dollar ET 149,533 506,341 - -
Renminbi AR 133,423 115,413 = =
Singapore dollar B st 4,246 8,986 - -
Others Hith 14,835 306 - =
328,003 641,440 375 382

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits,
with maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months, was 0.18%
(2009: 0.79%) per annum during the year ended 31
March 2010. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

BHE_ZT-—ZE-A=1T—RBILEFEAR " 3
BElR—EAR=EAARZERARITHERER

FHEAE0.18%

— = =

NE 0.79%)  R1T

TR BHA AT B R1TFRARFE R E -
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15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 B
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
R EE HE I8 B &
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
* FHET + FAT
Authorised: ETERRA
Ordinary shares of LR e
HK$0.1 each H{E 10381 800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETR
BRI ¢
Ordinary shares of LB
HK$0.1 each EE 10741
Beginning of the year F1) 577,098 57,710 577,198 57,720
Repurchase of share A% [B1 & - = (100) (10)
End of the year FKE 577,098 57,710 577,098 57,710
16 SHARE OPTIONS 16 [BHR#E

The Company adopted a share option scheme in May
2002, under which it may grant options to employees of
the Group (including executive directors of the Company)
and other third parties to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the
exercise of options. The exercise price will be determined
by the Company’s board of directors and shall at least be
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant of the options, (i) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of
HK$0.1 each.

AARIR ST -_FHARMN —EBERE
g AERRAAEEZEE (BEAQRFZH
TES) RE=ERLBERENERELRLDR]
2 ERZAKRAREREETRAT
BE(TEERTEEREMEITZ’G) 30%
BR - -ZERETEESHARAZESE
BT OARRBIRMOREBERERTB ZKT
B: (I BZERTEREBNAERSEART
Dz FHRME - R(i)ANARRKRD 2 HES
AR108ML - =FBUBSE B o
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16 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) 16 fBKAE (#)
Details of movement of share options under the share TERENE CERERBE-_ZTE—TF=H
option scheme during the year ended 31 March 2010 = +—RHIEFEZEEHFE -
were:
Number of shares
BREHE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled
Exercise Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period Vesting period price of year  theyear theyear the year year
KEE EEE  REEE
R AM TR RFHR fTEER £9 56 BT AMEEUH FE
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
it F F i i i
5 March 2010 1 December 2010 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-ZF 4 March 2020 1 December 2010
=RAH —E-TF —T-TF
+=A—-BZ% =ARAZE
.2 2
=AmA +=—F—H 0.55 = 9,515 = = 9,515
5 March 2010 1 July 2011 to 5 March 2010 to
—ZT-TF 4 March 2020 1 July 2011
=RAH T —T-FF
tA—HZ =“ARBZE
—TTF 2
=AMA +H—H 0.55 - 8,865 - - 8,865
5 March 2010 1 July 2012 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-TF 4 March 2020 1 July 2012
=RAH “T-CF —T-%F
tHA—RZ —“HaHZE
it Sk 33 it Sk :3
= AlA +H—H 0.55 - 11,820 - - 11,820
- 30,200 - - 30,200
Note: PisE

The vesting of the share options is subject to the performance of the

Group.

BREZATITRETDREARE 2 EER]A -
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16 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was estimated at the grant date by using the Hull White
Trinomial model, after taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
significant assumptions and inputs used in the valuation
model are as follows:

Option value HK$0.223 to HK$0.244
Market price at the grant date HK$0.55
Exercisable price HK$0.55
Risk-free interest rate 2.68%
Expected volatility 50.73%
Expected dividend per share 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective nature
of and uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs
to the model as well as certain inherent limitations of the
model itself. Any changes in the above assumptions or
inputs may materially affect the fair value estimation.

The fair value of the 30,200,000 share options granted on
5 March 2010, amounting to approximately HK$7,006,000
is to be recognised as employee benefit expense of the
Group according to the vesting conditions. An amount
of approximately HK$419,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2010.

e MR MR

16 BRE &)

LAHull White Trinomial modelffzt %% ¥ B
HFAREZEREZAFEE  HEED
EEE R BRE ZAGK G EERABK
MEAERZ HEERDT ¢

fEEEE 0.2238ITE0.244 7T
RIEFHBZTHER 0.55/8 7T
TEER 0.55/87T

4 [ fez A1) & 2.68%

TE DR IR 50.73%
TEHEIRR R 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial model@ X FELLE K 7[R
l BEBoMERTEEEESH 2 BEREE
ABR - UER—LBEB RN E 2 BRI -
i Et BRI AT EAEL - ATREHAFE
ERECEYNZ-X

R-ZZT—FF = AR HBEHE30,200,0000% 8 i%
W2 NFE - ©F#AET7,006,0008 7T 0 WER
BRETBREBHEREAEBE 2EEEBHN L -
REBE-_ZT—ZTF=A=1+—"BILtEEZHSE
BEaROERZE5%419,0008 T °
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17 OTHER RESERVES 17 Hitf#E
(@) Group (a) &£
Capital  Share-based
Share Capital  redemption compensation  Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
E5RE  UREXA
R aE pN e ZMeRE BERE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TATL TATL TEL TAL
Balance at 1 April 2008 “ET\ENA-ArEH 193,014 5,900 449 12,963 - 223
Employee share option scheme B ERIE:E
- value of employee services - EERBEBE - - - 337 - 337
Transfer to retained earnings upon  EEARIEERE /K3
cancellation/lapse of share options  EZREEF = = = (13,300) = (13,300)
Repurchase of share TRinEEE - - 10 - - 10
Effect of foreign exchange IEEXEE, 2
rate change - - - - 375 375
Balance as at 31 March 2009 ZEENF=A=1-H
28 193,014 5,900 459 - 375 199,748
Balance at 1 April 2009 ZETNENA-B &R 193,014 5,900 459 - 375 199,748
Employee share option scheme (BB B IE: 2
- value of employee services - EERBEE - - - 419 - 419
Effect of foreign exchange SRR R g 7 2B
rate change - - - - (355) (355)
Balance as at 31 March 2010 —E-F£-A=1-H
S 193,014 5,900 459 419 20 199,812
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17 OTHER RESERVES (Contd)
(b) Company

Share
premium

Rt aE
HK$'000

e MR MR

17 EHibE (&)

(b) ZA&AF
Capital Share-based
redemption  Contributed compensation
reserve surplus reserve Total
AR
BXRORE N S &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET T FET
Balance at 1 April 2008 “ET\FMA—-RB iR 193,014 449 193,185 12,963 399,611
Employee share option scheme (B 8B k#E=t 2]
— value of employee services - EERBZBE - - - 337 337
Transfer 1o retained earnings BBRERUE /K3
upon cancellation/lapse of BEREBEH
share options - - - (13,300) (13,300)
Repurchase of share RiDEE - 10 - - 10
Balance as at 31 March 2009 “ZTNF=A=1—H
B 193,014 459 193,185 - 386,658
Balance at 1 April 2009 “ETNENA-BEH 193,014 459 193,185 - 386,658
Employee share option scheme {8 B k#E=t2]
- value of employee services —EERBZEE = = = 419 419
Balance as at 31 March 2010 s e =
P 193,014 459 193,185 419 387,077

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

BREBRE-NN—FRFER (MEEF])
BABRBAIHDIRTRR - BEMRIAREE
(VRRAINEEXMZIHIBE - H(NHEEZH
FHEESEAMINEEBRERECHETRA
AEBMDEE AT WARFAAAE
ffo ~ XK - IRBABRBKEL DK
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18 EBEZRHEMEMRR

Group Company
rEE /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —E-EF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FET FHET
Trade payables Z 5 BRI
0 to 90 days 0£90H 371,913 283,603 - -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 26,523 12,903 - -
181 to 360 days 181£360H 2,213 376 - -
Over 360 days 360H A 4,494 1,714 - -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o EEEREEEEE .
Accrual for rental expenses 724 7 F81E 23,455 17,235 = =
Accrual for purchase of EBEETEE
fixed assets Z a5 28,654 46,243 - -
Salaries and staff welfare  E#FHE&NET
payable =l 40,669 25,888 - —
Others Hih 94,362 111,099 2,720 2,106
187,140 200,465 2,720 2,106
592,283 499,061 2,720 2,106

AEBZEZRNERZ AFEEREEREE
EAEAT

The fair values of the Group’s trade payables approximate
their carrying value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBZEGRNERZIREABERTIER R

denominated in the following currencies: B -
2010 2009
—g-2F —EERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
HK dollar BIT 86,570 62,879
US dollar e 273,829 182,585
Renminbi ARE 40,267 51,200
Euro BL 28 1,220 1,206
Japanese Yen Hot 3,156 550
Others HAh 101 176
405,143 298,596
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 18 EBEFZRHMEMSIKRR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other AEEZEFERAREMEMNERRZIEEEE
payables are denominated in the following currencies: T35 B8 REN
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
HK dollar BT 39,728 40,693
US dollar ETT 33,546 22,663
Renminbi AR 113,866 137,109
187,140 200,465
19 BORROWINGS - GROUP 19 B8 - *5KH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Non-current FERED
_Long-term bank borrowings skl S 76300 118,700
Current E
Trust receipt loans SEWIEE R 41,130 91,935
Short-term bank borrowings Lﬁﬂfﬁﬂ R 211,200 325,300
Current portion of long-term bank Eﬁﬂﬁﬁf?fﬁgz
borrowings BIHEAER 59,200 70,000
311,530 487,235
Total borrowings EEwmzn 387,830 605,935
(@  The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as (a) AEEEEZZHBANT :
follows:
Long-term bank Short-term bank
borrowings borrowings Trust receipt loans
RESRITEE EHSRITEE EERBER
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTHNF ZE-E§ —TTNF ZE-E§f —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET TER FAET TER FET
Within 1 year —&ER 59,200 70,000 211,200 325,300 41,130 91,935
Between 1 and 2 years —EEE 44,800 55,000 - - - -
Between2 and 5years ~ WEERF 31,500 63,700 - = - =
Wholly repayable RAFHZE
within 5 years B 135,500 188,700 211,200 325,300 41,130 91,935
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19 BORROWINGS - GROUP (Cont'd)

(b) The average effective interest rates of the Group’s

19 BB —&Xx&EH (&)
b) AEEREERAZETESEHERF

bank borrowings at the balance sheet date are as KR
follows:
2010 2009
—B-BF —ETNF
Long-term bank borrowings, at floating rate ~ RHEJRITEE @ 28X 1.62% 1.59%
Short-term bank borrowings, at floating rate (S HItRITEE - jF 8% 1.41% 1.70%
Trust receipt loans SRCUURE R 1.29% 2.08%
(0  The carrying amounts of the borrowings (0 BEZEEDSBEEQFEBEMIRENA
approximate their fair values and are denominated BILRER -
in HK dollar.
20 DEFERRED TAXATION - GROUP 20 EEHE - FEHE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary ELEHBHEABGEEIREREZEERIENX
differences under the liability method using a principal 16.5% (ZZEZTNF : 16.5%) 1ERHEHE -
taxation rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%).
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when EBRETCHEMNAKEEHRIEEEREEHIER
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the B - MBEEMMSH P RE—TEH%E - 8
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction. AREERIEEEREENRIEAE G KN -
The following amounts, determined after appropriate A ABEEREE  TISBESREEERR
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: RAFIMR -
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Deferred tax assets RER IR A B (1,692) (349)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIITE A E 4,742 6,880
3,050 6,531

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$6,721,000 (2009:
HK$8,741,000) representing the tax effect of cumulative
tax losses which can be carried forward against future
taxable income.

Unprovided deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$4,781,000 (2009: HK$8,741,000) representing tax
losses which can be carried forward indefinitely (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities). The remaining
balances representing tax losses which will fully expire in a
five-year period.

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H  KEBDKREE

EFRIE 2 B EEL6,721,0008 7T (ZEFH
F :8,741,0008 L) - RRBFHIEBE 2R

E/
B ZE

% BE A) RS DA SH R SR FERR U ©

HARERHRAFNEREOREELHEZ
B E 44,781,000 T (Z T F N F:
8,741,000 L) ' RERRFMEEBE I RBEF
Z(EAXEBARBREARE)  LERBKEER
RS R THHREEESENAFARE
o



Karrie International Holdings Limited 52 7IBIBR AR BRRAF]  Annual Report 2009/10 4%k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

20 DEFERRED TAXATION - GROUP (Cont'd) 20 RIERIE — XEEH (&)

The movement of the deferred tax assets and liabilities Al — iR 2 AR B AT AT - IRERIBE
prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation ERBEZEHNT

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEESE
Accelerated
depreciation
and total
METER A
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 March 2008 —EENF=ZA=+—H 8,753
Credited to income statement FEEmRFTA (1,235)
As at 31 March 2009 —EENEF=A=+—H 7,518
Charged to income statement EEHRNR 679
As at 31 March 2010 —EEF=ZA=+—H 8,197
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEEE
Tax losses Others Total
Bi| Hit EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
As at 31 March 2008 —EBEENF=A=1+—H - (387) (387)
(Credited)/charged to ‘FiEsER GEA)/ Mk
the income statement (638) 38 (600)
As at 31 March 2009 —EENFE=A=+—H (638) (349) (987)
Credited to the income statement FEEZRTA (4,066) (94) (4,160)
As at 31 March 2010 —E—ZFF=A=+—H (4,704) (443) (5,147)

A summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to Bl — B FiME 2 &er G EEER > ELEFHIE

offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction (BE) RBBEZ2HMENRT :
is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Deferred tax assets BETIREE (5,147) (987)
Deferred tax liabilities BT R E 8,197 7,518
3,050 6,531
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
- GROUP

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in Mainland China. The Group
contributes approximately 10% (2009: 10%) of the basic
salaries of its employees, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$3,729,000 (2009: HK$3,696,000).

(b)  Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group'’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.

21 EUREFNEE - AEHE

(a) SREHEGE

AEBERHEBRESLEATIIERTEEFE
(TgiE2s8]) - RIESFSBN E B ENGE
2 ABUREABRE - REBRERFE - K
SENEESAVREREE ZEF (EXER
sBHERTERIED) 5% LA EMELHK - &
THES 2T AMHKLA,0008T AR - Hig
ZH R ABERRIEE -

BRBEPBEEZETE  AEEERATBREEM
REBZBERERNKRGTEEL RN - NEBEA
REPEEEEAFEHI0% (ZZZLEF
10%) fEE R - MBEFENERRARESZ N
SRR R F B BB E H R AE - RIKES
ZHBERREY H—BIHBERE B ZERGTE
HAIE o

RAFERNAREE G R IKETEIEL 2 3K
#9 /53,729,000 7T (ZEZE N, : 3,696,000
BIT) °

(b) RERBEER

RGBS EBRAKERESE (BREIEH)D
EETHERTEILERESM N2 KBRS
EFRTEZEE -

ZETHERNMEEMEEAFTE Y a:t8
REZR(E R MBR AN R BURKE 8 T AN R B RAT
hZ st HEm - R RHRBEETHBILAE
REBEEMEEANERBERAERAGGE -
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 21 EBURBAEE - XEE (&)
— GROUP (contd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) RERKE%EE (&)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet EHEeEERBBERERZEBETIAAE
are determined as follows: JE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Present value of unfunded obligations and EREEEAERA
liability in the consolidated balance sheet REIEEERBEZRE 8,264 12,929
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income e BRaRERZEBOT

statement are as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest cost BB AR 664 522
Net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised ERREE (W), K8
s (5.329) 2,672
Total, included in employee benefit &t (FIREERA
expenses (Note 24) X HA) (FFE24) (4,665) 3,194

The above (credit)/charges were included in general and AE (GFA)/ ZHEBERE—REITHREAR -
administrative expenses.

Movements of the provision for long service payments of AEBERRGSEFEESWT -
the Group are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&T FHT

Beginning of the year =] 12,929 9,793
(Reversal of provision)/provision for current year AN (2[5 /A

(Note 24) (Pi5E24) (4,665) 3,194

Payments made during the year FREHER = (58)

End of the year FE 8,264 12,929
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 21 EBURBEAEE - XEE (&)

— GROUP (contd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) RERKE&%EE (&)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: KAZEFEZRERKRWOT :
2010 2009
—E-EF —EBETNF
Per annum Per annum
BF FF
Discount rate BRIR = 2.90% 2.00%
Expected rate of future salary increases AR EH M~ FEHR g R & 3.00% 1.00%
22 REVENUE 22 WA
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Turnover BT
Sales of merchandise from HE
— Metal and plastic business — A BRBER 836,881 1,256,928
— Electronic manufacturing services business —BFHEERITER 1,403,883 1,203,650
2,240,764 2,460,578
Other gains E bl
Rental income e WA 3,220 3,348
Management fee income EEBWRA 1,188 -
4,408 3,348
Total revenue WA 4e%E 2,245,172 2,463,926
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 EBME>ECER

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Cost of inventories FERKA 1,724,786 1,912,962
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERFE
equipment (Note 7) ZIE (M5E7) 47,020 56,294
Amortisation of leasehold land and TS 4 K 4t A
land use rights (Note 6) 2 E5H (Miske) 1,248 1,177
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAXH (B
directors’ emoluments) (Note 24) EEME) (H5E24) 252,276 255,097
Operating lease rental of premises MEZKEHRERE 13,082 15,760
Net exchange loss/(gain) bE 5 E51E(Ukas) SF58 877 (650)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREM N & 1,580 1,700
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 KBt FEWIR 5K
and other receivables (Note 11) WEEE (1) - 728
Provision/(write-back of provision) for obsolete PRE K& ETFE
and slow-moving inventories (Note 12) Bt (2 )
(BzE12) 3,667 (1,805)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BiE R EE
and equipment 2 (W), EBFHE (658) 772
Gain on disposal of leasehold land and S TS i % 4 Hb {5 FRAE
land use rights pal & (845) -
Other expenses E AR 190,100 195,535
2,233,133 2,437,570
Representing: K&
Cost of sales HER A 2,093,154 2,286,474
Distribution and selling expenses DHRHEEMA 27,276 30,709
General and administrative expenses — /e R ITIEE 112,703 120,387

2,233,133

2,437,570
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

24 EERAXH-BRFEEHE

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as () AFEEERHNZHWNAT :
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Wages and salaries FMRTE 252,793 247,870
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRKA — REHKEE 3,729 3,696
(Reversal of provision)/provision for RERG® (EHE2EE),
long service payment (Note 21) A5 (MEE21) (4,665) 3,194
Share option expenses for options granted BTEE KEBERE
to directors and employees ZEBH 419 337
252,276 255,097
(b)  Directors and senior management (b) ESREREEAER
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 BHE-ZT-ZTE=-A=+—HILZESZZH:
March 2010 is set out below: RMT -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
MERH  EXEKE
ESEH e e 2R EHEIZER aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT THT THT THT
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai {Al=E s & - 4,436 370 12 4,818
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 2K ER A A - 922 324 12 1,258
Mr. Lee Shu Ki RIS - 841 208 12 1,061
Non-executive director HHTEF
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming BT 266 22 - - 288
Independent non-executive director BB ITEE
Mr. So Wai Chun EBEEEE 95 - - - 95
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond PBREm R A4 95 - = = 95
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing BRI A 57 - - - 57
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24 EERAXXH-BRESH=
(%)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Directors and senior management (Cont’d)

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31

(b) ESREREEASR (&)

BE_ZZNF=ZA=1+T—BLERESTZH&E

March 20009 is set out below: FIREAT -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
missn  EXEAKE
EZEB ik e 2L RHEZM aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THT THT THT FTHT
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (BESY> it - 4,687 398 12 5,097
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 20K ER A A - 936 397 12 1,345
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHEEE - 868 252 12 1,132
Non-executive director HHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming [ AR % &= 438 - _ _ 438
Independent non-executive director BB TTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BEREE 99 - - - 99
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond PREm R A4 99 = = = 99
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Vb kit 59 - - _ 59

' Included fair value of share options charged to the consolidated

income statement during the year.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year
(2009: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any

director during the year (2009: Nil).

' BREAFERAESABRaRHKZBREQFE -

AEEBRESIHENE (ZFFNF &) 7§
EO RN FIBS TERNES ARSI ENA
AEERKEBU2HE (ZTTNF &) -
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

()  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2009: three) Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2009: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

24 EERAZXH-BRESH=
(%)

() ITHEBESHFMAL

AEEEEARERSFMALEE=% (=
ZE2NF: ZR)EF HMEEHRN XS
e RAFAEBR R (ZTTNF  —F) &
EHALTZEMNBEIT

2010 2009

—EB-TF —ETNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Basic salaries and allowances' BEARF & KER 1,731 1,803
Discretionary bonus BB Rz fEAL 117 101
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKES A — REMHKET 2 24 24
1,872 1,928

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMETHASHRER

2010 2009
—$-¥F  -—TIAF
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001;87C% 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2

L Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which
are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant employees at the date of grant and
recognised over the vesting period.

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2009: Nil).

25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

W EeBEERUBRN BERZHE  ZHERER
}?EE@EEﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ@ﬁﬁ%i&Eﬁ% HA

AEERERRFAL (BRESERAEMBE)
Y EENERMESERRERUZHE (ZF
TNEFE) o

25 HBBARKRAE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Finance costs BATSRAR
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —REFAEZHEER
wholly repayable within five years ZRITEENEX 5,392 12,888
Finance income B HA
— Interest income from bank deposits — SRITH B A (3.312) (10,071)
Net finance costs BTG R AN R 2,080 2,817
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26 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda but
exempted from Bermuda taxation until 2016. Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year for
all group companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

e MR MR

26 FrBH (;tA), /X H

N/NCIDEDT=E S+ 3 AVAVA/NCIIE -+ 528 o3
REBRBEE_T—RF-IAKILIREBZA
EBZRARIIRBAFE Z A5 R R IR
16.5% (ZZTZTNF : 16.5%) 2 FHRFIRE B
RIS &R -

EHREHEmR

(FEAN)/ Xz HEMT :

2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Current taxation: Hong Kong profits tax WRITRIA « HENER
— current year — RNEE 2,960 4,999
— (over)/under-provision in prior years —FF2z (B%8),/ TREE (1,312) 143
Deferred taxation (Note 20) EIERIE (F9E520) (3.,481) (1,835)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frig®t (Gt A),/ X (1,833) 3,307

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from

REE B AR A /ﬁnﬂzfrﬂlﬁéﬁiﬁj“%% B

the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits ZHREME (KRB 2ALER) MetE 2B H
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as TREzR =FER
follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation R B BT s A 7,277 23,740
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% IR 16. 5% (:%@%371$ :
(2009: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5t& 1,201 3,917
Effect of different taxation rate in FEMERHRERE 7 &
other countries (1,000) -
Income not subject to taxation BRI (11,249) (15,909)
Expenses not deductible for EGIEi L s s
taxation purposes 8,674 10,556
(Over)/under-provision in prior years FFz (B5),/ TREE (1,312) 410
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FREFRERATISER
tax losses (2,717) -
Tax losses for which no deferred RER ZIRAEFTSH 2 BIAE1E
income tax asset was recognised 4,570 4,417
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred REMGHNEES o 28
income tax - (84)
Income tax (credit)/expense BE Gt A) /X H (1,833) 3,307
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27 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of approximately HK$7,025,000 (2009: loss of
HK$1,550,000).

28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

27 ARRE@RFEAEMGRT

KNARIEZEEE AL EF 47,025,000 7T
(ZZZNF : 181,550,000 7T) RAR 7
T RRIEER ©

28 #R=F

FRENGMNDRBERNA A ER A ARG
MERAFABE BT EBRINEFIEHHAE -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
Profit attributable to equity holders of RATERFFE ARIE R
the Company (in HK$'000) (FATaT) 12,497 22,081
Weighted average number of BEETEERZ
ordinary shares in issue nwEFag (FRkET)
(in thousand shares) 577,098 577,150
Basic earnings per share BRERRF
(HK cents per share) (FRELASALET) 2.2 3.8

There was no dilutive effect of the outstanding share
options on earnings per share for both the years ended 31

HRFARITE 2 EERES REEIE - AR
E-TTNF=-A=1T—HULERBE-ZT-F

March 2009 and 2010 since all outstanding share options FZA=1T—RHLEFEZER&EMLIEHEZ
were anti-dilutive. A o
29 DIVIDENDS 29 KE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Interim dividend, declared, of Nil EIRFHRE — S EkE
(2009: Nil) per ordinary share (ZEZENhF : |E) - =
Final dividend, proposed, of HK1 cent BRARERE — BERR
(2009: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 1B (ZFEFNF
1.57841l) 5,771 8,657
5,771 8,657
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30 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company had the following significant
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments:

e MR MR
30 AERAAEME

AEBREARRBATARBERNMBEHRE 5T
REBZEZRAERKAREE :

(a) EREE

AEBBEATDEERRN 2 EARALE

Group Company
rEE bINE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —E-2F —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FA&T
Construction of factory A B
premises in Mainland g
China - 30,392 - -
Purchase of property, plant BE¥¥% - BE R
and equipment Bidi] 6,815 2,507 - -
6,815 32,899 - =

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land
and buildings under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

(b) KEHAEFRE

AEEESENRE-SARF+ABHART
Wi EIERE S GEBE DS - REAR
EAMT -

Group Company
rEH FINE]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF —E-BF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FExT FAT
Amounts payable BN 258
Not later than one year B —F 9,147 7,748 - —
Later than one year and FBim—F &
not later than five years TNEBAFE 26,335 26,475 = =
More than five years BRAF 256,749 263,709 = -
292,231 297,932 - -
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30 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Cont’d)

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

30 ABERIAREME (@)

(b) REHEERE &)

AREBERRZAAIHH 2 EEHE 2 HIKE W
HE WA

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Not later than one year TBiE—F 783 588
Later than one year but not later than tBiR—F R HBARF

five years 1,595 2,087

2,378 2,675

(d) Guarantees

As at 31 March 2010, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$1,229,790,000 (2009:
HK$1,210,674,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. Such
banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2010 amounted
to HK$387,830,000 (2009: HK$418,490,000).

31 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries.

() HER

RZE—ZFF=ZA=+—H8 ARQRAHKTIHH
BEESREEHRTRE THMOMNB AR 2 R1E
1R 4 %8 51,229,790,0008 T (ZEZE AL F -
1,210,674,00087T) - R ZE—ZTF=ZA=+
—H ' EFAZRITRE A£387,830,000/% 7T
—ETNAF : 418,490,000/ 7T) ©

31 RITRME
W-Z—FA=ZA=+—A ALERTHE
ARD A A TFHEBRRZ A REREER -
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BAEAELXRS

Related party is a party that is related to the Group if HMEATR - ATEEXBEZR —ExXZE
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, FREALT BEHAEE #HAEE (BFEAA
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common ANE2ENFEECHBAR) ZEHlkHEAR
control with, the Group (including the Company or its SEZHRZEHZAL ZABRELAEEZ
wholly or non-wholly owned subsidiaries); or the party has B MxEnG TEHAERTREATE
an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence 7 HRAT AR —BEAAEERITREAR
over the Group; or the party is an entity that is controlled, ERIITEEBAEERELEEZES - LRE
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which FIKITRE R L ) 2 [EHEE -

significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly
or indirectly, any individual who is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group.

(@) Transactions with related parties (a) HEBEEATZRS
2010 2009
—E-ZF —FENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Sales of goods and services: HEBY LR
Sales of raw materials to SHEE TN T Wk
an associated company 798 -
Purchase of goods and services: BESYMERE
Purchase of raw materials from Bl AN EA=E 7
an associated company 1,287 3,018
Others: HAth -
Rental income from an associated company 1B 44 A B ERFE & A 1,188 -
Management service fee income from B E A R E IR B
an associated company 1,188 =
Rental charged by a related company XS TEERR 1,594 1,594
Consultancy service fee charged by SNEMER T E AT
an associated company - 642

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party BiEEE20 LB ESSERBARE
transactions were carried out in the normal course of B 2 %15 K EEE N R E ZIERMETT
business of the Group and on terms as agreed with the

related companies.

i
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEAXTXREF (&)
(Cont'd)
(b) Balance with related parties (b) EEBEATZEER
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Amount due to an associated company FETESE & A RIBRER 305 211
Amount due from an associated company & UkEE & A a] bR 10,226 -
(d) Key management compensation (9) IREEEME
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses il ~ T& - 1285 RIEAL 14,984 13,632
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  RIREA — REAEKRE 2 165 142
15,149 13,774
(d) Ultimate controlling party (d) ‘JREAEHFAL

The directors regard New Sense Enterprises Limited,
which owns 42.25% in the Company’s shares, to
be the ultimate controlling party of the Company.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, their children
under 18 and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the beneficial
owner of the New Sense Enterprises Limited.

¥ £ #® ANew Sense Enterprises
Limited * FEARNRAI42.25% &5 - W
BRARIZ BT HME - gL & - 7]
BRZML 18U T2 FRRMAE
BRSE 4 & New Sense Enterprises Limited
ZEmA °
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The results of the Group for the last ten financial years
ended 31 March 2010 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005,
2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 are as follows:

Ten-Year Financial Summary

THEUBRREE

AEBEE T ZEF=A=+—HIt+@AH
BEFEEHEE - &m 27 F._TT -
F._TT=F. _ggmix:%ﬁﬁi
—ET/\E 79?\9?\t¢ —ZEENF
ERNFM_ZT—ZTF=F=+— EZéF&%
BuF :

RESULTS EF
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-ALEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
ZE-BF CTTNF TE\E CERHF CEEF IERF CIEMF CEECF E5CF “ET-f
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEr
(Restated)
(E31)
Revenue WA 225172 2463926 2802974 3328097 3597242 2511537 1697925 1,743,768 1,162,395 898,322
Operating profit eyl 12,039 26,356 26,870 150,394 218,540 174,766 104,907 140,374 90,587 43556
Finance income BRI 3312 10,071 14,853 11,104 10,127 3,964 1620 3,101 4095 2857
Finance costs B (539)  (12,888) (20,07) (23764)  (24531) (8,720) (6,145) (10,401) (9,244) (15,981)
Share of (loss)profit of FlBEAT
associated companies &/ (B8) (2,682) 201 - - - (1034 (1766) - - -
Profit hefore taxation TN 1211 23,740 21,652 137,734 204136 159,776 98616 133,074 85,438 30432
Taxation i 1,833 (3,307) (8,504) (12,806) (17.757) (13,203 (8,176) (13,266) (7.008) (4.064)
Profit for the year RERGH 9,110 20433 13,148 124928 186,379 146,573 90,440 119,808 78310 26,368
Profit atirbutable KRR
to Fquity holders FEfb&A
of the company 12,497 22,081 13,148 124928 186,379 146,573 90,440 119,808 78310 26,368
Minority interest DERRER (338) (1649 = = = = = = = =

9,110 20433 13,148

124928 186379 146,573 90,440 119,808 18310 26,368

The Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated
as required. Figures as at and for each of the previous
years ended have not been adjusted as it is not practicable
to restate earlier years for comparison purposes.

AREBHE_TSENFZA=ZT—BIEZ2FHE
BIRMIIE ERT BBV BIREER - HE
—ETRF=ZA=T—HLEZEFEREBEX
B RERBENNBSFFRZEFIEIED
AR BEIEFE 2T AR A AT o
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THEUBRREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONSOLIDATED) LhEeEESE
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=t-ALEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
IE-BE EENE CEE)\E CERLE _EENF ETnE CIEME _3E-F BT F 2Rk
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000
Tan TR TR TEr TR TR TR TEr TR TEn
(Restated)
(&5)
ASSETS &E
Non-Current assets FrBEE 579007 508778 42388 318,119 281445 24556 260677 236549 37463 285632
Curtent assets TEHEE 1160777 1361060 1204429 1303248 1290113 1375377 7280 MO 56701 424605
Total assets BEBE 1730780 1869847 165817 1621367 1572558 1617933 983557 948460 80494 710257
EQUITY %
Share capita R& S0 57710 SI70 M8 405 0777 40076 38150 3769 373%4
Reserves Bk 64363 640459 617697 14970 485147 37515 3963 36,168 309709 319,03
0203 698169 675417 55,198 526,198 415931 35039 364318 347403 396477
Minorty interest DERFIES 9403 83006 4 14 04 04 04 04 04 04
A6 41195 BT84 5622 526620 A163% 375463 64T 378 3601
LIABILITIES &f
Non-current liabilties = 80306 138509 207246 104464 164478 106744 534 B9 4064 37778
Current liabilties rEaf 909002 990143 T30 960281 881458 100483 ST S4TTM6 413073 315578
Total iabiles afef 098308 112865 980976 1064745 104593 1201578 608094 583718 457137 3%33%
Total equity and liabilties BARake 1730780 1869847 165817 161367 1572558 1617933 983571 948460 80494 710257

The Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated
as required. Figures as at and for each of the previous
years ended have not been adjusted as it is not practicable

to restate earlier years for comparison purposes.

AEEBE_TTRNF=-A=+—"RHILZF#H
ERMFIE S RETEEVMBREER 8 F
TERRAF A=t HIZHBFEREEX

5] R REE NN GEER S BT IR
B AENEE L BT RL AT -
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